
15.0149 .05000 

Revised 
Amendment to: HB 1059 

FISCAL NOTE 
Requested by Legislative Council 

04/27/2015 

1 A. State fiscal effect: Identify the state fiscal effect and the fiscal effect on agency appropriations compared to funding 
1 1 d · r r · td d ti eves an appropna 10ns an 1c1pa e un ercurren aw. 

2013-2015 Biennium 2015-2017 Biennium 2017-2019 Biennium 

General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds 

Revenues $(25,000) 

Expenditures $252,400,000 

Appropriations $252,400,000 

1 B. County, city, school district and township fiscal effect: Identify the fiscal effect on the appropriate political 
subdivision. 

2013-2015 Biennium 2015-2017 Biennium 2017-2019 Biennium 

Counties 

Cities 

School Districts 

Townships 

2 A. Bill and fiscal impact summary: Provide a brief summary of the measure, including description of the provisions 
having fiscal impact (limited to 300 characters) . 

Reengrossed HB 1059 with Conference Committee amendments modifies the transmission line tax rate , authorizes 
certain transmission line tax payments to participate in the state-paid property tax relief credit , deals with certification 
of assessors, and expands the homestead tax credit program. 

B. Fiscal impact sections: Identify and provide a brief description of the sections of the measure which have fiscal 
impact. Include any assumptions and comments relevant to the analysis. 

Sections 1, 2, 4, 5, and 11 of the second engrossment with Conference Committee amendments relate to the 
certification of assessors. The amended bill creates two education and certificate levels for assessors and requires 
all assessors to be certified within two years of appointment, or July 31 , 2017, whichever is later. The amended bill 
proposes 180 hours of education to obtain a class I assessor certificate and 80 hours to obtain a class II assessor 
certificate. The cost to local governments for assessors to obtain certification with 180 hours of education is 
estimated to be $5,500 per assessor; the cost to obtain certification with 80 hours of education is estimated to be 
$1,680 per assessor. The overall fiscal impact cannot be determined because it is unknown what number of current 
assessor certificate holders will choose to remain an assessor with the increased education requirements . 

Section 6 of the bill relates to the homestead tax credit program and expands the maximum homestead value to 
which the credit applies from a true and full value of $100 ,000 to $125,000. This provision becomes effective 
January 1, 2016. The estimated fiscal impact is an increase of $1.2 million in 2015-17 biennium state expenditures 
to reimburse counties for the value of the credit. The appropriation for this program contained in the Office of Tax 
Commissioner budget bill (SB 2006) is expected to be adequate to fund this expansion . 
Sections 8 and 10 of the bill change the taxation of certain transmission lines to the rate of $300 per mile . The effect 
of this change is an estimated reduction of $25,000 in the electrical, generation, transmission, and distribution tax 
fund for the 2015-17 biennium. 

Section 9 removes the sunset date on NDCC 57-20-07.2, which would provide for continuation of the state-paid 
12% property tax credit program, estimated to cost $250 million for the 2015-17 biennium. This section also includes 
transmission line per mile taxes in the state-paid property tax credit provisions. This change is expected to increase 
expenditures for the credit by an estimated $2.4 million in the 2015-17 biennium . 



3. State fiscal effect detail: For information shown under state fiscal effect in 1A, please: 

A. Revenues: Explain the revenue amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each revenue type and fund 
affected and any amounts included in the executive budget. 

B. Expenditures: Explain the expenditure amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency, line item, and 
fund affected and the number of FTE positions affected. 

C. Appropriations: Explain the appropriation amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency and fund 
affected. Explain the relationship between the amounts shown for expenditures and appropriations. Indicate whether 
the appropriation or a part of the appropriation is included in the executive budget or relates to a continuing 
appropriation. 

The $20 million appropriation for the homestead credit program contained in the Office of Tax Commissioner budget 
(SB 2006) is expected to be adequate to fund the program including the expansion of homestead value to $125,000 
that is contained in this bill. 

An appropriation of $252.4 million would be required to fully fund the 12% state paid property tax credit program for 
the 2015-17 biennium, with the changes proposed in this bill. 

Name: Kathryn L. Strombeck 

Agency: Office of Tax Commissioner 

Telephone: 328-3402 

Date Prepared: 04/28/2015 



15.0149 .05000 

Amendment to : H8 1059 

FISCAL NOTE 
Requested by Legislative Council 

04/27/2015 

1 A. State fiscal effect: Identify the state fiscal effect and the fiscal effect on agency appropriations compared to funding 
I I d d d I eves an appropnat1ons ant1c1pate un er current aw. 

2013-2015 Biennium 2015-2017 Biennium 2017-2019 Biennium 

General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds 

Revenues $(25,000) 

Expenditures $253,600,000 

Appropriations $253,600,000 

1 8 . County, city, school district and township fiscal effect: Identify the fiscal effect on the appropriate political 
subdivision 

2013-2015 Biennium 2015-2017 Biennium 2017-2019 Biennium 

Counties 

Cities 

School Districts 

Townships 

2 A. Bill and fiscal impact summary: Provide a brief summary of the measure, including description of the provisions 
having fiscal impact (limited to 300 characters). 

Reengrossed H8 1059 with Conference Committee amendments modifies the transmission line tax rate , authorizes 
certain transmission line tax payments to participate in the state-paid property tax relief credit , deals with certification 
of assessors, and expands the homestead tax credit program. 

8 . Fiscal impact sections: Identify and provide a brief description of the sections of the measure which have fiscal 
impact. Include any assumptions and comments relevant to the analysis. 

Sections 1, 2, 4, 5, and 11 of the second engrossment with Conference Committee amendments relate to the 
certification of assessors. The amended bill creates two education and certificate levels for assessors and requires 
all assessors to be certified within two years of appointment, or July 31 , 2017 , whichever is later. The amended bill 
proposes 180 hours of education to obtain a class I assessor certificate and 100 hours to obtain a class II assessor 
certificate . The cost to local governments for assessors to obtain certification with 180 hours of education is 
estimated to be $5,500 per assessor; the cost to obtain certification with 100 hours of education is estimated to be 
$2, 100 per assessor. The overall fiscal impact cannot be determined because it is unknown what number of current 
assessor certificate holders will choose to remain an assessor with the increased education requirements . 

Section 6 of the bill relates to the homestead tax credit program and expands the maximum homestead value to 
which the credit applies from a true and full value of $100,000 to $125 ,000. This provision becomes effective 
January 1, 2016. The estimated fiscal impact is an increase of$1.2 million in 2015-17 biennium state expenditures 
to reimburse counties for the value of the credit. 

Sections 8 and 10 of the bill change the taxation of certain transmission lines to the rate of $300 per mile. The effect 
of this change is an estimated reduction of $25,000 in the electrical , generation , transmission , and distribution tax 
fund for the 2015-17 biennium. 

Section 9 removes the sunset date on NDCC 57-20-07.2, which would provide for continuation of the state-paid 
12% property tax credit program, estimated to cost $250 million for the 2015-17 biennium. This section also includes 
transmission line per mile taxes in the state-paid property tax credit provisions. This change is expected to increase 
expenditures for the credit by an estimated $2.4 million in the 2015-17 biennium . 



3. State fiscal effect detail: For information shown under state fiscal effect in 1A, please: 

A. Revenues: Explain the revenue amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each revenue type and fund 
affected and any amounts included in the executive budget. 

B. Expenditures: Explain the expenditure amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency, line item, and 
fund affected and the number of FTE positions affected. 

C. Appropriations: Explain the appropriation amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency and fund 
affected. Explain the relationship between the amounts shown for expenditures and appropriations. Indicate whether 
the appropriation or a part of the appropriation is included in the executive budget or relates to a continuing 
appropriation. 

Additional appropriations of $1.2 million would be required to fully fund the estimated cost of the homestead tax 
credit program. as proposed in this bill. An appropriation of $252.4 million would be required to fully fund the 12% 
state paid property tax credit program for the 2015-17 biennium, with the changes proposed in this bill. 

Name: Kathryn L. Strombeck 

Agency: Office of Tax Commissioner 

Telephone: 328-3402 

Date Prepared: 04/27/2015 



15.0149 .04000 

Amendment to: HB 1059 

FISCAL NOTE 
Requested by Legislative Council 

04/14/2015 

1 A. State fiscal effect: Identify the state fiscal effect and the fiscal effect on agency appropriations compared to funding 
1 1 d · r r· td d ti eves an appropna 10ns an 1c1pa e un ercurren aw. 

2013-2015 Biennium 2015-2017 Biennium 2017-2019 Biennium 

General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds 

Revenues $(25 ,000) 

Expenditures $254,800,000 

Appropriations $254,800,000 

1 B. County, city, school district and township fiscal effect: Identify the fiscal effect on the appropriate political 
subdivision. 

2013-2015 Biennium 2015-2017 Biennium 2017-2019 Biennium 

Counties 

Cities 

School Districts 

Townships 

2 A. Bill and fiscal impact summary: Provide a brief summary of the measure, including description of the provisions 
having fiscal impact (limited to 300 characters). 

Reengrossed HB 1059 with Senate amendments modifies the transmission line per mile tax rate , authorizes certain 
transmission line tax payments to participate in the state-paid property tax relief credit, deals with certification of 
assessors , and expands the homestead tax credit program. 

B. Fiscal impact sections: Identify and provide a brief description of the sections of the measure which have fiscal 
impact. Include any assumptions and comments relevant to the analysis. 

Sections 1, 2, 3, 4, 6, and 10 of the second engrossment with Senate amendments relate to the certification of 
assessors. The amended bill creates two education and certificate levels for assessors and requires all assessors to 
be certified within two years of appointment, or July 31 , 2017, whichever is later. The amended bill proposes 180 
hours of education to obtain a class I assessor certificate and 100 hours to obtain a class II assessor 
certificate . The cost to local governments for assessors to obtain certification with 180 hours of education is 
estimated to be $5,500 per assessor; the cost to obtain certification with 100 hours of education is estimated to be 
$2, 100 per assessor. The overall fiscal impact cannot be determined because it is unknown what number of current 
assessor certificate holders will choose to remain an assessor with the increased education requirements . 

Section 5 of the bill relates to the homestead tax credit program and expands the maximum homestead value to 
which the credit applies from a true and full value of $100,000 to $125 ,000. The estimated fiscal impact is an 
increase of $2.4 million in 2015-17 biennium state expenditures to reimburse counties for the value of the credit. 

Sections 7 and 9 of the bill change the taxation of certain transmission lines to the rate of $300 per mile. The effect 
of this change is an estimated reduction of $25,000 in the electrical , generation , transmission , and distribution tax 
fund for the 2015-17 biennium. 

Section 8 removes the sunset date on NDCC 57-20-07.2 , which would provide for continuation of the state-paid 
12% property tax credit program , estimated to cost $250 million for the 2015-17 biennium. This section also includes 
transmission line per mile taxes in the state-paid property tax credit provisions. This change is expected to increase 
expenditures for the credit by an estimated $2.4 million in the 2015-17 biennium . 



3. State fiscal effect detail: For information shown under state fiscal effect in 1A, please: 

A. Revenues: Explain the revenue amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each revenue type and fund 
affected and any amounts included in the executive budget. 

B. Expenditures: Explain the expenditure amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency, line item, and 
fund affected and the number of FTE positions affected. 

C. Appropriations: Explain the appropriation amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency and fund 
affected. Explain the relationship between the amounts shown for expenditures and appropriations. Indicate whether 
the appropriation or a part of the appropriation is included in the executive budget or relates to a continuing 
appropriation. 

Additional appropriations of $2.4 million would be required to fully fund the estimated cost of the homestead tax 
credit program, as proposed in this bill. An appropriation of $252.4 million would be required to fully fund the 12% 
state paid property tax credit program for the 2015-17 biennium, with the changes proposed in this bill. 

Name: Kathryn L. Strombeck 

Agency: Office of Tax Commissioner 

Telephone: 328-3402 

Date Prepared: 04/16/2015 



15.0149.03000 

Amendment to: Engrossed HB 1059 

FISCAL NOTE 
Requested by Legislative Council 

02/19/2015 

1 A. State fiscal effect: Identify the state fiscal effect and the fiscal effect on agency appropriations compared to funding 
levels and appro riations antici ated under current law. 

2013-2015 Biennium 2015-2017 Biennium 2017-2019 Biennium 

General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds 

Revenues $(25 ,000) 

Expenditures $2,400,000 

Appropriations 

1 B. County, city, school district and township fiscal effect: Identify the fiscal effect on the appropriate political 
subdivision. 

2013-2015 Biennium 2015-2017 Biennium 2017-2019 Biennium 

Counties 

Cities 

School Districts 

Townships 

2 A. Bill and fiscal impact summary: Provide a brief summary of the measure, including description of the provisions 
having fiscal impact (limited to 300 characters). 

HB 1059 second engrossment modifies the transmission line per mile tax rate , and authorizes certain transmission 
line tax payments to participate in the state-paid property tax relief credit. 

B. Fiscal impact sections: Identify and provide a brief description of the sections of the measure which have fiscal 
impact. Include any assumptions and comments relevant to the analysis. 

Sections 1 and 3 of HB 1059 second engrossment change the taxation of certain transmission lines to the rate of 
$300 per mile . The effect of this change is an estimated reduction of $25,000 in the electrical , generation , 
transmission, and distribution tax fund for the 2015-17 biennium. 

Section 2 will include transmission line per mile taxes in the state-paid property tax credit provisions. This is 
expected to increase expenditures for the credit by an estimated $2.4 million in the 2015-17 biennium. 

3. State fiscal effect detail: For information shown under state fiscal effect in 1A, please: 

A. Revenues: Explain the revenue amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each revenue type and fund 
affected and any amounts included in the executive budget. 

B. Expenditures: Explain the expenditure amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency, line item, and 
fund affected and the number of FTE positions affected. 



C. Appropriations: Explain the appropriation amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency and fund 
affected. Explain the relationship between the amounts shown for expenditures and appropriations. Indicate whether 
the appropriation or a part of the appropriation is included in the executive budget or relates to a continuing 
appropriation. 

Section 4 of engrossed HB 1059 contains an appropriation of $230 million from the state general fund to the state 
treasurer for the state-paid property tax relief credits during the 2015-17 biennium. 

Name: Kathryn L. Strombeck 

Agency: Office of Tax Commissioner 

Telephone: 328-3402 
Date Prepared: 02/20/2015 



15.0149 .02000 

Amendment to : HB 1059 

FISCAL NOTE 
Requested by Legislative Council 

02/05/2015 

1 A. State fiscal effect: Identify the state fiscal effect and the fiscal effect on agency appropriations compared to funding 
I I d ·r r · td d I eves an appropna 10ns an 1c1pa e un er current aw. 

2013-2015 Biennium 2015-2017 Biennium 2017-2019 Biennium 

General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds 

Revenues $(25 ,000) 

Expenditures $2,400 ,000 

Appropriations $230,000,000 

1 B. County, city, school district and township fiscal effect: Identify the fiscal effect on the appropriate political 
subdivision. 

2013-2015 Biennium 2015-2017 Biennium 2017-2019 Biennium 

Counties 

Cities 

School Districts 

Townships 

2 A. Bill and fiscal impact summary: Provide a brief summary of the measure, including description of the provisions 
having fiscal impact (limited to 300 characters). 

Engrossed HB 1059 provides for the continuation of the state-paid property tax relief credit , modifies the 
transmission line per mile tax rate, and authorizes certain transmission line tax payments to participate in the state­
paid property tax relief credit. 

B. Fiscal impact sections: Identify and provide a brief description of the sections of the measure which have fiscal 
impact. Include any assumptions and comments relevant to the analysis. 

Sections 1 and 3 of engrossed HB 1059 change the taxation of certain transmission lines to the rate of $300 per 
mile. The effect of this change is an estimated reduction of $25,000 in the electrical, generation , transmission , and 
distribution tax fund for the 2015-17 biennium. 

Section 2 will include certain transmission line per mile taxes in the state-paid property tax credit provisions . This is 
expected to increase expenditures for the credit by an estimated $2.4 million in the 2015-17 biennium. 

3. State fiscal effect detail: For information shown under state fiscal effect in 1A, please: 

A. Revenues: Explain the revenue amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each revenue type and fund 
affected and any amounts included in the executive budget. 

B. Expenditures: Explain the expenditure amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency, line item, and 
fund affected and the number of FTE positions affected. 



C. Appropriations: Explain the appropriation amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency and fund 
affected. Explain the relationship between the amounts shown for expenditures and appropriations. Indicate whether 
the appropriation or a part of the appropriation is included in the executive budget or relates to a continuing 
appropriation. 

Section 4 of engrossed HB 1059 contains an appropriation of $230 million from the state general fund to the state 
treasurer for the state-paid property tax relief credits during the 2015-17 biennium. 

Name: Kathryn L. Strombeck 

Agency: Office of Tax Commissioner 

Telephone: 328-3402 
Date Prepared: 02/08/2015 



15.0149.01000 

Bill/Resolution No.: HB 1059 

FISCAL NOTE 
Requested by Legislative Council 

12/20/2014 

1 A State fiscal effect: Identify the state fiscal effect and the fiscal effect on agency appropriations compared to funding 
I I d · r r · td d ti eves an approona ions an 1cma e un ercurren aw 

2013-2015 Biennium 2015-2017 Biennium 2017-2019 Biennium 

General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds 

Revenues 

Expenditures 

Appropriations 

1 B. County, city, school district and township fiscal effect: Identify the fiscal effect on the appropriate political 
subdivision. 

2013-2015 Biennium 2015-2017 Biennium 2017-2019 Biennium 

Counties 

Cities 

School Districts 

Townships 

2 A Bill and fiscal impact summary: Provide a brief summary of the measure, including description of the provisions 
having fiscal impact (limited to 300 characters) . 

Bill provides for the continuation of the state-paid property tax relief credit. The distribution system is in place 
currently and could be used going forward without modification . Notwithstanding the appropriation amounts shown 
in Section 2, there would be zero fiscal impact of this bill. 

B. Fiscal impact sections: Identify and provide a brief description of the sections of the measure which have fiscal 
impact. Include any assumptions and comments relevant to the analysis. 

3. State fiscal effect detail: For information shown under state fiscal effect in 1A, please: 

A Revenues: Explain the revenue amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each revenue type and fund 
affected and any amounts included in the executive budget. 

B. Expenditures: Explain the expenditure amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency, line item, and 
fund affected and the number of FTE positions affected. 

C. Appropriations: Explain the appropriation amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency and fund 
affected. Explain the relationship between the amounts shown for expenditures and appropriations. Indicate whether 
the appropriation or a part of the appropriation is included in the executive budget or relates to a continuing 
appropriation. 



Name: Ryan Skar 

Agency: Office of State Treasurer 

Telephone: 701-328-4637 
Date Prepared: 12/23/2014 



2015 HOUSE FINANCE AND TAXATION 

HB 1059 



2015 HOUSE STAN DING COM MITTEE MIN UTES 

Finance and Taxation Committee 
Fort Totten Room, State Capitol 

H B  1 059 
1 /1 2/201 5 
#2 1 836 

D Subcommittee 

D Conference Committee 

Committee Clerk Signature � � 
Explanation or reason for introd uction of bi l l/resol ution : 

A Bi l l  relat ing to state-paid property tax rel ief credit. 

Minutes: II Attachment #1 

Chairman Headland:  I ntroduced b i l l .  

John Walstad, Legal Di rector, Legislative Counci l :  I ntrod uced b i l l .  Th is  is  exactly the 
same leg islation that was passed last session . I t  includes 1 2% property tax credit which is 
hand led l ike the homestead credit; the reduction shows up on your  taxes and the county 
notifies the state of the reduction in dol lars then the state writes the check to cover it. The 
state is paying 1 2% of everybody's property tax b i l l  but it's 1 2% after everything is settled 
up otherwise. The interim tax committee d idn't feel strongly on what the level should be but 
feels strongly that this topic needs to be discussed again . This is a re-do of the bil l  last 
session with the exception of the cost which would be estimated at an increase to $230 
mi l l ion for the next b ienn ium to provide the same 1 2  percent. 

Chairman Headland : Any questions for Mr. Walstad? 

Zachary Smith , North Dakota Association of Rura l  Electric Cooperatives: Provided 
testimony in support .  See attachment #1 . 

Representative Froseth : Isn 't there a bill being d rafted to adjust the rates of the electric 
uti lities? 

Zachary Sm ith : For the cooperatives? 

Representative Froseth : Yes for the cooperatives. 

Zachary Smith : In our mind a better vehicle is to put it in th is bil l .  We just want it to be 
done the same way. That way if something happens to H B 1 059 we aren't constantly 
coming back to fix it. 



House Finance and Taxation Committee 
HB 1059 
January 1 2, 2015 
Page 2 

Chairman Headland:  Mr. Smith , you wi l l  help the tax department? 

Zachary Smith : Yes . 

Dale Niezwaag, Basin Electric Cooperative: We would stand in  support of the 
amendments .  The portion of the amendment that's important to us is the transmission l i nes 
tax being on the same level as the electrica l .  

Representative Kle in :  At the present time you're planning to l imit the $300 a mile. What 
is it now? 

Dale Niezwaag : The rate varies . When you look at a 345 kilovolt l ine it's at $600 per mi le 
and at a 200 kilovolt and above it is $400 per mi le .  

Representative Klein :  Where is the big 500 de l ine? 

Dale N iezwaag : I bel ieve that is at the same level as the 345 l ine. Anything above 300 
kilovolts and higher is at the $600 per mi le. 

Chairman Head land:  Any other questions for Mr. N iezwaag? Is  there any other 
testimony in support to H B 1 059? Is there any testimony in opposition to H B 1 059? Does 
the tax department have anyth ing? Seeing none we will close the hearing on H B 1 059. 



2015 HOUSE STAN DING COMMITTEE MINUTES 

Fi nance and Taxation Committee 
Fort Totten Room, State Capito l 

HB 1 059 
1 /1 4/201 5 

2 1 950 

D Subcommittee 

D Conference Committee 

Committee Clerk Signature . 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bi l l/resolution: 

A Bil l  relating to state-paid property tax relief credit. 

Minutes: Amendment attachment #1 

Chairman Headland : Distributed amendment drafted by the tax department. 

Dan Rouse, Legal Counsel to the Tax Commissioner: Distributed an amendment. See 
attached amendment #1 . It appears as though there cou ld be a $ 1 . 5  to $2 mi l l ion fiscal 
impact associated with these amendments if they are adopted . I wi l l  have Jolene walk you 
through these amendments . 

Jolene Vidal,  Office of Tax Commissioner: Explained attached amendments . We added 
the transmission l ine tax from 57-33.2-02 and the d istribution tax under 57-33.2-03. 
Number three of the proposed amendment l ists a tax based on the per mi le of the 
transmission l ines and how that would be certified for payment for them to get the 1 2  
percent. On number four  is the cred it against the d istribution tax to also receive the 1 2  
percent. The language below that would be to fund those back to the county as wel l .  On 
the back page the RECs requested a change to 57-33.2-02 which was the transmission l ine 
mi le tax. For the transmission l i nes that operate at 200 ki lovolts or more it would be $300 
per mi le instead of $400 per mi le .  And where it's from 200-300 , now it's anyth ing above 
200 so then item n umber five had to be removed . Now anyth ing above 200 ki lovolts would 
be $300 per mi le .  

Chairman Head land : That request was to put them in the same area as the investor 
owned uti l ities of taxation to level the playing field? 

Jolene Vidal : I don't know the answer to that. I also want to note that under 57-33 .2 this is 
on ly add ing the transm ission line tax and the d istribution tax to the 1 2% cred it; it does not 
add the generation tax. Under 57-06. 1 7  there is a transmission tax u nder that chapter of 
the code that would not be added for that 1 2% cred it as wel l .  It's just these two pieces that 
were requested to be added . 



House F inance and Taxation Committee 
HB 1059 
January 14, 2015 
Page 2 

Chairman Headland:  I th ink there is probably a reason for that but we can flush that out 
with the rural  electric corporations. 

Vice Chairman Owens : You just said there was a transmission tax in  another part of the 
code. 

Jolene Vidal :  Yes . Under 57-06. 1 7  there's a transmission l ine tax. There are d ifferent 
compan ies that pay that tax under 57-06; the investor owned uti l ities that have transmission 
l ines that are valued under that chapter. 

Vice Chairman Owens : So they are not in confl ict? 

Jolene Vida l :  The i nvestor owned uti l ities on that transmission l ine tax, because it is a tax 
per mi le, is not part of their valuation ; it's a separate tax so it would not receive the 1 2  
percent. 

Chairman Headland:  Thank you for clearing that up.  We're going to have to have the 
rural electric corporations comment on the amendment. 

Representative Froseth : I th ink one of the issues here was that the rural electric 
corporations were paying a h igher tax on their transmission l i nes than the investor owned 
uti l ities after what transpired last session . Does this bring the two into an equal proxim ity of 
taxes on the powers and l ines and everything? 

Jolene Vidal :  I bel ieve Sara Meier the property tax special ist with the tax commissioner's 
office has been working on updated numbers to show you the d ifferences between the 
taxes of the investor owned uti l ities and the rura l  electric corporations. I can check with her 
on the avai labi l ity of that memo on those figures and get those figures to you for your 
review. 

Chairman Headland:  That wou ld be helpfu l .  

Representative Klein :  Isn 't there a b i l l  in the senate add ressing this same issue? 

Jolene Vidal :  I don't know if there is a b i l l  that addresses the amounts of the taxes paid in  
the senate but  there's a b i l l  that makes adjustments to reporting requ i rements under 57-
33 .2 where we added some cleanup work. 

Chairman Headland:  I had a d iscussion with Senator Cook th is morn ing on that and that 
b i l l  wil l  not be introd uced . Is  there anyth ing else for Jolene? We wil l  wait unti l  next week to 
hear from Zach Smith . 



2015 HOUSE STANDING COM MITTEE MIN UTES 

Finance and Taxation Committee 
Fort Totten Room, State Capitol 

HB 1 059 
2/4/201 5  

23237 

D Subcommittee 

D Conference Committee 

Committee Clerk Signature 

Explanation or reason for i ntroduction of bi l l/resolution: 

A Bi l l  relat ing to state-paid property tax relief credit. 

Minutes: Ii Attachment #1, 2 

Chairman Headland:  I asked Sara Meier to explain the amendments. 

Sara Meier, Property Special ist with Office of State Tax Commissioner: Explained 
amendments dated February 5, 201 5 .  See attachment #1 . 

Representative Klein :  What was item four? 

Sara Meier: I tem 4 is for d istribution tax. 

Chairman Headland:  Even though I think we are all sti l l  confused I know the intent here .  
th ink i t  would be helpful i f  we could read th is  in a Christmas tree version .  

Sara Meier: It's d ifficult to  balance between two completely d ifferent forms of  taxation .  We 
have the tax based on value with the investor owned uti l ities and we have the tax based on 
a flat rate with the RECs. There's no real way we could ever say they are going to be 
equal; there are just too many d ifferent factors at play. The new lines are taxed at the 
same rate. 

Chairman Headland:  For future development both sides of the party, those new l ines 
would operate under the same tax. I th ink that is probably the best we are going to be able 
to do.  

Representative Klein :  When we gave the tax break last session to the investor owned it 
was about a 1 2% tax break. We were able to take care of the d istribution cooperatives 
because they're taxed on a gross revenue tax.  We were never able to take care of the 
generation and transmission which is Basin Electric, Great River Energy, M innkota and a 
l ittle bit of Elliot which is a Minnesota company. I n  this first one she was referring to new or 
upgraded transmission lines that are all going to pay the same tax. This is an attempt to 
take care of those four  generation and transmission and bring them similar to the 1 2%; it's 
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a guess but it's probably as close as we're going to get. MADE A MOTION TO ADOPT 
THE AMENDMENT OF FEBRUARY 5, 201 5. 

Representative Dockter: SECONDED. 

Chairman Headland:  Does everybody understand what the amendment is going to do? 

Representative Froseth : Isn 't this going to change the fiscal note? 

Chairman Headland:  I had d istributed a document from Sara Meier and it showed the 
total for the bienn ium in the best estimate is about $2.4 mi l l ion .  See attachment #2 . 

Sara Meier: Mostly that is the d istribution compan ies, the 1 2% on the d istribution 
compan ies, because they are the bigger form of taxation under 57 .33 .2 .  

Representative Steiner: Why wasn't this done last session? 

Chairman Headland:  We tried . There was a previous tax department employee who is 
now reti red that thought it was fair  what we ended up with but over the interim it was 
pointed out to the committee that the problem wasn't taken care of. We then made a 
commitment to those involved that we wou ld do what we cou ld to try and level the playing 
field so this is our attempt at that. 

Representative Kle in :  I t  isn't going to correct the long term problem . I wou ld l ike to see 
the tax based on a carrying capacity; the size of the pipe. It would penal ize especial ly the 
Minnesota companies that run d i rect current l ines that shove about ten times the power as 
an ac l ine.  When you start trying to figure out how to do it the problems become unsolvable 
so this is an attempt to correct the generation and transmission cooperatives that didn't 
share in that 1 2% to get there .  

Chairman Headland:  The amendment has a date of tomorrow on it. 

Sara Meier: My legal  advice is to correct it to February 4 ,  201 5 . (Per John Walstad) 

VOICE VOTE: MOTION CARRIES TO ADOPT THE AMENDMENT. 

Representative Klein: MADE A MOTION FOR A DO PASS AS AMENDED AND 
REREFER TO APPROPRIATIONS. 

Vice Chairman Owens: SECONDED. 

ROLL CALL VOTE: 14 YES 0 NO 0 ABSENT 
MOTION CARRIES. 

Representative Klein will  carry this bi l l .  
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PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO HOUSE BILL NO. 1059 

Page 1, line 1, replace "section" with "sections 57-06-17 .3," 

Page 1, line 1, after "57-20-07.2" insert", and 57-33.2-02" 

Page 1, line 2, after "a" insert "new transmission line property tax exemption, a" 

Page 1, line 2, after "credit" insert ", and the transmission line mile tax rate" 

Page 1, after line 5, insert: 

"SECTION 1. AMENDMENT. Section 57-06-17.3 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

57-06-17.3. New transmission line property tax exemption. 

A transmission line of two hundred thirty kilovolts or larger, and its associated 
transmission substations, which is not taxable under chapter 57-33.2 and is initially 
placed in service on or after October 1, 2002, is subject to a tax at the rate of three 
hundred dollars per mile [1.61 kilometers] or fraction of a mile. A transmission line 
subject to taxation under this section is exempt from property taxes for the first taxable 
year after the line is initially placed in service, and the taxable valuation as otherwise 
determined by law on the transmission line and its assooiated transmission 
substationstaxes under this section must be reduced by: 

1. Seventy-five percent for the second taxable year of operation of the 
transmission line. 

2. Fifty percent for the third taxable year of operation of the transmission line. 

3. Twenty-five percent for the fourth taxable year of operation of the 
transmission line. 

After the fourth taxable year of operation of the transmission line, the 
transmission line and its associated transmission substations are exempt from property 
taxes and are subject to a tax at the rate of three hundred dollars per mile [1.61 
kilometers] or fraction thereof of the line located in this state. The per mile tax imposed 
by this section applies to the transmission line and its associated transmission 
substations and is subject to allocation among counties in the proportion that the miles 
of that transmission line in the county bears to the miles of that transmission line in the 
state. 

For purposes of this section, "initially placed in service" includes both new 
construction and substantial expansion of the carrying capacity of a preexisting line, 
and "substantial expansion" means an increase in carrying capacity of fifty percent or 
more." 

Page 1, line 19, after "3." insert: "The owner. operator. or lessee of transmission lines assessed 
by the state board of equalization under section 57-06-17.3 is entitled to a credit 
against taxes per mile in the amount provided in subsection 1. The tax commissioner 
shall determine the total amount of credits under this subsection and certify the amount 
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to the state treasurer for transfer from the general fund to the electric generation. 
transmission. and distribution tax fund. The credit for each transmission company must 
be allocated and distributed to counties in the same manner as the tax collected from 
that company is allocated. 

4. The owner. operator. or lessee of electric transmission or distribution 
property assessed by the state board of equalization under section 
57-33.2-02 or 57-33.2-03 is entitled to a credit against the transmission or 
distribution tax in the amount provided in subsection 1. The tax 
commissioner shall determine the total amount of credits under this 
subsection and certify the amount to the state treasurer for transfer from 
the general fund to the electric generation. transmission. and distribution 
tax fund. The credit for each transmission or distribution company must be 
allocated and distributed to counties in the same manner as the tax 
collected from that company is allocated. 

Page 2, line 4, overstrike "4." and insert immediately thereafter "6." 

Page 2, line 9, overstrike "5" and insert immediately thereafter "I" 

Page 2, line 10, overstrike "5." and insert immediately thereafter "7." 

Page 2, line 18, overstrike "4" and insert immediately thereafter "§" 

Page 2, line 19, overstrike "6." and insert immediately thereafter "8." 

Page 2, line 19, overstrike "4" and insert immediately thereafter "§" 

Page 2, line 19, overstrike "5" and insert immediately thereafter "I" 

Page 2, line 23, overstrike "7." and insert immediately thereafter "9." 

Page 2, line 23, overstrike "5" and insert immediately thereafter "I" 

Page 3, line 3, overstrike "8." and insert immediately thereafter"~" 

Page 3, after line 6, insert: 

"SECTION 3. AMENDMENT. Section 57-33.2-02 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

57-33.2-02. Transmission line mile tax - Exemption. 

Transmission lines are subject to annual taxes per mile [1 .61 kilometers] or 
fraction of a mile based on their nominal operating voltages on January first of each 
year, as follows: 

1. For transmission lines that operate at a nominal operating voltage of less 
than fifty kilovolts , a tax of fifty dollars. 

2. For transmission lines that operate at a nominal operating voltage of fifty 
kilovolts or more, but less than one hundred kilovolts, a tax of one hundred 
dollars. 
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3. For transmission lines that operate at a nominal operating voltage of one 
hundred kilovolts or more, but less than two hundred kilovolts, a tax of two 
hundred dollars. 

4. For transmission lines that operate at a nominal operating voltage of two 
hundred kilovolts or more, but less than three hundred kilovolts, a tax of 
four hundred dollars. 

5. For transmission lines that operate at a nominal operating voltage of three 
hundred kilovolts or more, a tax of six hundred dollars. 

6. A transmission line initially placed in service after January 1, 2009, and 
before December 31. 2013. is exempt from transmission line taxes under 
this section for the first taxable year after the line is initially placed in 
service, and transmission line taxes under this section must be reduced 
by: 

a. Seventy-five percent for the second taxable year of operation of the 
transmission line. 

b. Fifty percent for the third taxable year of operation of the transmission 
line. 

c. Twenty-five percent for the fourth taxable year of operation of the 
transmission line. 

d. After the fourth taxable year of operation, such transmission lines are 
subject to the standard transmission line taxes under this section. 

L A transmission line of two hundred thirty kilovolts or larger initially placed in 
service after January 1. 2009. is subject to a tax at the rate of three 
hundred dollars per mile [1 .61 kilometers] or fraction of a mile. A 
transmission line subject to tax under this subsection is exempt for the first 
taxable year after the line is initially placed in service. and transmission line 
taxes under this subsection must be reduced by: 

~ Seventy-five percent for the second taxable year of operation of the 
transmission line. 

!L Fifty percent for the third taxable year of operation of the transmission 
line. 

c. Twenty-five percent for the fourth taxable year of operation of the 
transmission line. 

d. After the fourth taxable year of taxable operation. such transmission 
lines are subject to the standard transmission line taxes under this 
subsection . 

8. For purposes of this section. "initially placed in service" includes both new 
construction and substantial expansion of the carrying capacity of a 
preexisting line. and "substantial expansion" means an increase in carrying 
capacity of fifty percent or more." 

Renumber accordingly 
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2015 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE 
ROLL CALL VOTES 

BILL/RESOLUTION NO. I 05 q 

Date : ~ -lf-f5 
Roll Call Vote #: J 

House Finance and Taxation Committee 

D Subcommittee 

AmendmentLC#orDescription: f~ , S ,d-06 ~ 

Recommendation: rk.rAdopt Amendment 

D Do Pass D Do Not Pass D Without Committee Recommendation 

Other Actions: 

D As Amended 
D Place on Consent Calendar 
D Reconsider 

D Rerefer to Appropriations 

D 

Motion Made By --#'---+--· _K~~--~---- Seconded By 

Representatives Yes No Representatives 
CHAIRMAN HEADLAND REP HAAK 
VICE CHAIRMAN OWENS REP STRINDEN 
REP DOCKTER REP MITSKOG 
REP TOMAN REP SCHNEIDER 
REP FROSETH 
REP STEINER 
REP HATLESTAD 
REP KLEIN 
REP KADING 
REP TROTTIER 

Total No 

Yes No 

(Yes) ----------- --------------~ 

Absent 

Floor Assignment 

If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent: 
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Com Standing Committee Report 
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Module ID: h_stcomrep_23_014 
Carrier: Klein 

Insert LC: 15.0149.01001 Title: 02000 

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE 
HB 1059: Finance and Taxation Committee (Rep. Headland, Chairman) recommends 

AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended , recommends DO PASS 
and BE REREFERRED to the Appropriations Committee (14 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 
0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). HB 1059 was placed on the Sixth order on the 
calendar. 

Page 1, line 1, replace "section" with "sections 57-06-17.3," 

Page 1, line 1, after "57-20-07.2" insert", and 57-33.2-02" 

Page 1, line 2, after "a" insert "new transmission line property tax exemption, a" 

Page 1, line 2, after "credit" insert", and the transmission line mile tax rate" 

Page 1, after line 5, insert: 

"SECTION 1. AMENDMENT. Section 57-06-17 .3 of the North Dakota 
Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

57 -06-17 .3. New transmission line property tax exemption. 

A transmission line of two hundred thirty kilovolts or larger, and its associated 
transmission substations, which is not taxable under chapter 57-33.2 and is initially 
placed in service on or after October 1, 2002, is subject to a tax at the rate of three 
hundred dollars per mile (1 .61 kilometers] or fraction of a mile. A transmission line 
subject to taxation under this section is exempt from property taxes for the first 
taxable year after the line is initially placed in service, and the taxable valuation as 
otherwise determined by law on the transmission line and its associated 
transmission substationstaxes under this section must be reduced by: 

1. Seventy-five percent for the second taxable year of operation of the 
transmission line. 

2. Fifty percent for the third taxable year of operation of the transmission 
line. 

3. Twenty-five percent for the fourth taxable year of operation of the 
transmission line. 

After the fourth taxable year of operation of the transmission line, the 
transmission line and its associated transmission substations are exempt from 
property taxes and are subject to a tax at the rate of three hundred dollars per mile 
(1 .61 kilometers] or fraction thereof of the line located in this state. The per mile tax 
imposed by this section applies to the transmission line and its associated 
transmission substations and is subject to allocation among counties in the 
proportion that the miles of that transmission line in the county bears to the miles of 
that transmission line in the state. 

For purposes of this section, "initially placed in service" includes both new 
construction and substantial expansion of the carrying capacity of a preexisting line, 
and "substantial expansion" means an increase in carrying capacity of fifty percent or 
more." 

Page 1, line 19, after "3." insert: "The owner, operator, or lessee of transmission lines 
assessed by the state board of equalization under section 57-06-17.3 is entitled to a 
credit against taxes per mile in the amount provided in subsection 1. The tax 
commissioner shall determine the total amount of credits under this subsection and 
certify the amount to the state treasurer for transfer from the general fund to the 
electric generation, transmission, and distribution tax fund. The credit for each 
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Module ID: h_stcomrep_23_014 
Carrier: Klein 

Insert LC: 15.0149.01001 Title: 02000 

transmission company must be allocated and distributed to counties in the same 
manner as the tax collected from that company is allocated. 

4. The owner. operator. or lessee of electric transmission or distribution 
property assessed by the state board of equalization under section 
57-33.2-02 or 57-33.2-03 is entitled to a credit against the transmission 
or distribution tax in the amount provided in subsection 1. The tax 
commissioner shall determine the total amount of credits under this 
subsection and certify the amount to the state treasurer for transfer from 
the general fund to the electric generation. transmission. and distribution 
tax fund . The credit for each transmission or distribution company must 
be allocated and distributed to counties in the same manner as the tax 
collected from that company is allocated. 

~" 

Page 2, line 4, overstrike "4." and insert immediately thereafter "6." 

Page 2, line 9, overstrike "5" and insert immediately thereafter "Z" 

Page 2, line 10, overstrike "5." and insert immediately thereafter "L" 

Page 2, line 18, overstrike "4" and insert immediately thereafter"§" 

Page 2, line 19, overstrike "6." and insert immediately thereafter "!L" 

Page 2, line 19, overstrike "4" and insert immediately thereafter "§" 

Page 2, line 19, overstrike "5" and insert immediately thereafter "Z" 

Page 2, line 23, overstrike "7." and insert immediately thereafter "9." 

Page 2, line 23, overstrike "5" and insert immediately thereafter "Z" 

Page 3, line 3, overstrike "8." and insert immediately thereafter ".1.Q,." 

Page 3, after line 6, insert: 

"SECTION 3. AMENDMENT. Section 57-33.2-02 of the North Dakota 
Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

57-33.2-02. Transmission line mile tax - Exemption. 

Transmission lines are subject to annual taxes per mile [1 .61 kilometers) or 
fraction of a mile based on their nominal operating voltages on January first of each 
year, as follows: 

1. For transmission lines that operate at a nominal operating voltage of less 
than fifty kilovolts, a tax of fifty dollars. 

2. For transmission lines that operate at a nominal operating voltage of fifty 
kilovolts or more, but less than one hundred kilovolts, a tax of one 
hundred dollars. 

3. For transmission lines that operate at a nominal operating voltage of one 
hundred kilovolts or more, but less than two hundred kilovolts, a tax of 
two hundred dollars. 

4. For transmission lines that operate at a nominal operating voltage of two 
hundred kilovolts or more, but less than three hundred kilovolts, a tax of 
four hundred dollars. 

(1) DESK (3) COMMITTEE Page 2 h_stcomrep_23_014 
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5. For transmission lines that operate at a nominal operating voltage of 
three hundred kilovolts or more, a tax of six hundred dollars. 

6. A transmission line initially placed in service after January 1, 2009, and 
before December 31, 2013. is exempt from transmission line taxes under 
this section for the first taxable year after the line is initially placed in 
service, and transmission line taxes under this section must be reduced 
by: 

a. Seventy-five percent for the second taxable year of operation of the 
transmission line. 

b. Fifty percent for the third taxable year of operation of the 
transmission line. 

c. Twenty-five percent for the fourth taxable year of operation of the 
transmission line. 

Q.,_ After the fourth taxable year of operation , such transmission lines are 
subject to the standard transmission line taxes under this section. 

L A transmission line of two hundred thirty kilovolts or larger initially placed 
in service after January 1, 2009, is subject to a tax at the rate of three 
hundred dollars per mile [1.61 kilometers] or fraction of a mile. A 
transmission line subject to tax under this subsection is exempt for the 
first taxable year after the line is initially placed in service, and 
transmission line taxes under this subsection must be reduced by: 

a. Seventy-five percent for the second taxable year of operation of the 
transmission line. 

~ Fifty percent for the third taxable year of operation of the 
transmission line. 

c. Twenty-five percent for the fourth taxable year of operation of the 
transmission line. 

Q.,_ After the fourth taxable year of taxable operation . such transmission 
lines are subject to the standard transmission line taxes under this 
subsection. 

~ For purposes of this section. "initially placed in service" includes both 
new construction and substantial expansion of the carrying capacity of a 
preexisting line, and "substantial expansion" means an increase in 
carrying capacity of fifty percent or more." 

Renumber accordingly 

(1) DESK (3) COMMITTEE Page 3 h_stcomrep_23_014 



2015 HOUSE APPROPRIATIONS 

HB 1059 



201 5 HOU S E  STA N DING COMMITTEE M I N UTES 

Appropriations Committee 
Roughrider Room, State Capitol 

HB 1 059 
2/1 2/201 5 

Job # 23787 

D Subcommittee 

ee 

Explanation or reason for i troduction of bi l l/resolution : 
Relating to a new transmission l ine property tax exemption ,  a state-paid property tax 

rel ief cred it, and the transmission l i ne mi le tax rate 

M i nutes : 

Chairman Jeff Delzer 
Cal led the hearing to order. 

t information." 11/o N<:._ 

Representative Craig Headland District 29 spoke about the bi l l  as chair of the orig inating 
committee . I wou ld l ike to refer questions to the tax department. 

Chairman Jeff Delzer 
Have you seen the 2 .05 . 1 5  fiscal note? It says its $230M.  

Headland:  that came from the interim committee and we left that u nchanged, that is  the 
cost to continue the property tax relief. It wasn't brought to my attention that those numbers 
changed . Now it's about $250M.  

Brady Larson :  it's in  the Treasurers budget. 

Chairman Jeff Delzer 
Who put it in? 

Larson : it was interim tax committee. 

Chairman Jeff Delzer 
Where's the cost go? 

Sarah Meier Property Tax Special ist, Office of State Tax: on the fiscal note from 
February 5 ,  the expenditures l isted under genera l  fund;  the $2.4M is only the portion that 
would be attributed to electric transmission and d istribution tax. The 1 2% would be appl ied 
to the taxes we col lect from those compan ies for d istribution and transmission tax. 
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Chairman Jeff Delzer 
There wi l l  be less income tax to the state? 

Meier: only the expend iture that the state would make up to the counties and other political 
subd ivisions that receive the entire portion of the electric generation and d istribution tax. 

Chairman Jeff Delzer: We are sh ifting this from the coops. To the state paying it .  . .  why 
are we doing that? 

Meier: that is how the 1 2  % property tax credit also operates. Simi lar to what property tax 
rel ief that is g iven to ind ividuals;  it's just for the coops. 

Chairman Jeff Delzer 
B rady (Larson, Leg. Council)  is this l isted in your  fiscal note as both 230 inthis b i l l  and 
250 in the treasurer's? 

Larson :  we do note both of them, but we have an adjustment for the d upl ication .  

Chairman Jeff Delzer: was there any talk about the overal l  tax structure? And looking at 
the fa irness, between IOU's and coops; when you take the income tax side in as wel l? 

Headland: there was information offered to the interim tax committee in that area . The 
REC's were paying a bit h igher tax and they brought that to us last session and we were 
unable to gather the information to fin ish up last session. The interim committee looked at 
it and as a matter of pol icy decided that it was appropriate to make these adjustments to 
the l ine .  It's only on new l ines moving forward or l ines s ince the exemption was put in place 
for the REC's. 

Chairman Jeff Delzer 
Since January 1 , 2009? 

Headland:  yes ,  as a matter of pol icy, since the IOU's their  mechan ism for paying taxes, 
received the 1 2% property tax benefit, that in  fairness it should also flow to the REC's. 

Chairman Jeff Delzer 
Sarah ,  if we take this appropriation out of here ,  does it affect the bi l l  at all since that 
appropriation is a lready in  the treasurers? 

Meier: the $230M is covered by the Treasurers budget, which is the $250M.  

Representative Nelson 
Representative Head land ; the tax bi l l  came out of your  committee last year, d id you have 
d iscussion about this with the REC's not being part of this; when d id this jump out and h it 
you? 

Headland:  late last session , we were unable to  do that because the way they're taxed ; 
IOU's pay an ad valorem tax and the Coops . . .  it's a flat rate. 
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Representative Nelson 
The legislature had no idea we were looking at a $250M addition to this? 

C ha i rman Jeff Delzer 
It's not $250M its 2.4M. The issue on the taxing is $2.4M. The $250 is the 1 2% overal l .  

Representative Nelson 
Given that, there was not any d iscussion about this issue? 

Chairman Jeff Delzer 
Wasn't there an issue of .4 to .43 on state aid d istribution? 

Headland: there was that issue, but on a separate issue; it was based on a % of cost per 
m ile. The coops position was that it should be something in the area of . . . . he cannot 
recall . . . . The RE C's were unhappy with the conclusion of that. 

C hairman Jeff Delzer 
Last time you considered the IOU tax breaks, and this is the coops. wanting the same tax 
break. 

Headland: was not on the conference committee; it had to do with the rate of tax per mi le 
and an adjustment downward , to reflect a more fair tax rate between the two d ifferent 
industries. 

Chairman Jeff Delzer 
Brady does the Treasurer's; the $250, does that not incorporate this 2.4? 

Larson: no it does not. 

Representative Monson 
The portion to the counties . . .  what about the portion to the schools? 

Headland: I believe the tax is paid out to the county and sent out to the counties. 

Hearing closed . 
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Appropriations Committee 
Roughrider Room, State Capitol 
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240 1 1 

D Subcommittee 

D Conference Committee 

Explanation or reason for i ntroduction of bi l l/resolution: 
Relating to a new transmission l ine property tax exemption ,  a state-paid property tax relief 
cred it, and the transmission l ine mi le tax rate. 

Minutes :  II No attachment 

Chairman Jeff Delzer: This bil l came out of the House Finance and Tax Committee. Th is 
b i l l  changes the taxing on cooperative transmission l ines. The interim committee said it 
puts it in l ine with what the I OUs pay. I think there might be some questions about the 
income tax side between the IOUs and the cooperatives that should be looked at as wel l .  
The vote in com mittee was 1 4-0. The one thing we have in this b i l l  is the same as in  the 
last b i l l ;  there's a $230 mi l l ion appropriation wh ich also sits in the State Treasurer's budget 
and this is for the 1 2% property tax rel ief. It doesn't belong in both of them ; it belongs in the 
treasurer's. I th ink we should take that out of this b i l l .  This bi l l  has a fiscal effect of $2.4 
m i l l ion which would be needed for the counties and part of that is the issue we'l l  have to 
deal with when the treasurer's bi l l  comes over. I th ink they a lso took out $23 mi l l ion for 
County Social Services of the $250 which was orig inal ly in the treasurer's b i l l .  That wi l l  a l l  
have to be l ined up  but i t  wi l l  have to be l ined up in the treasurer's budget where the 
appropriation for the property tax rel ief is. 

Representative Brandenburg :  I was on the Finance and Tax when they made the switch 
from 2% of generation to property tax and also g ross receipts tax on transmission l ines and 
d istribution .  It was a matter of fairness to get in l ine with property taxes at that t ime. At the 
end of last session they got left out and as a matter of fairness to take care of the 1 2% I 
wou ld support that. 

Representative Brandenburg :  Made a motion amend the bi l l  and remove section 4 to 
take the $230 mil l ion out because that should be in the treasurer's budget. 

Representative Skarphol : Seconded. 
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Chairman Delzer: We will have to deal with the issue of the 1 2% and the treasurer's bi l l  
when we get it  in the second half. I certainly don't think it  belongs in both bi l ls. I th ink this 
is a fairness issue. We should remove the appropriation of the $230 mil l ion. 

Voice vote to amend: Motion carries. 

Representative Brandenburg :  Made a motion for a do pass as amended. 

Representative Boe: Seconded. 

Roll call vote: 22 Yes 0 No 1 Absent 
Motion carries 

Representative Brandenburg wil l  carry this bil l .  



1 5.01 49.02001 
Title.03000 

Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for 
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PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED HOUSE B ILL NO. 1 059 

Page 1 ,  l ine 3, remove "; to provide an" 

Page 1 ,  l ine 4,  remove "appropriation" 

Page 5, remove l ines 28 through 30 
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Finance and Taxation Committee 
Lewis and Clark Room, State Capitol 

H B 1 059 
3/1 7/201 5  

Job #24945 

0 Subcommittee 

0 Conference Committee 

Committee Clerk Signature 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bil l/resolution: 

Relating  to a new transmission l ine property tax exemption ,  a state-paid property tax relief 
cred it, and the transmission l ine m ile tax rate, and to provide an effective date. 

Minutes : Attachments #1 , #2 

Chairman Cook opened the hearing on H B 1 059 

Emily Thompson, Staff Attorney, Legislative Council -- I 'm here today to testify in  a 
neutral capacity to explain the provisions of H B 1 059 as this was one of the bi l ls 
recommended by the i nterim taxation committee. It should be noted this b i l l  was also 
reviewed and recommended by the interim advisory commission on intergovernmental 
relations.  H B 1 059,  as introduced , related to a continuation of the 1 2% state paid property 
tax credit. The credit, which was first provided during the 20 1 3  legislative session, SB2036, 
functions much l ike the homestead cred it. The reduction appears on your  property tax 
statement. The county informs the state of the amount of property tax reduction in dol lars 
and the -state provides that funding to cover the reduction .  (meter 1 : 08-5: 1 1 ) 

Zac Smith, North Dakota Association of Rural Electric Cooperatives -- I 'm g lad to see 
Emi ly up here explain ing this bi l l .  (Attachment #1 ) U rge adoption of the proposed 
amendment to H B 1 059. 

Sen. Triplett - - Two p laces in  your  testimony you reference the amendment we seek. I 'm 
wondering if you have new amendments prepared? 

Zac Smith -- I 'm referring to the amendment as passed . 

Sen. Triplett -- So you are in  favor of the bi l l  as it has been engrossed? Okay, 

Jean Schafer, Basin  Electric Power Cooperative -- In support of engrossed H B 1 059. 
(Attachment #2) 

Al Christianson, G reat River Energy -- My testimony is very short: me too. 
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No further testimony. 

Chairman Cook closed the hearing on H B 1 059. 
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Explanation or reason for i ntroduction of bi ll/resolution:  

Committee work 

Minutes: 

Chairman Cook opened the com mittee work on H B 1 059. 

Sen. Cook - - This has to go to appropriations so Ray would l ike to see it out of here .  We 
can hold it unt i l  Monday, if we want. Anybody got any changes they want to make to this 
b i l l?  1 2% buydown. 

Sen. Unru h  -- Are there some amendments you would l i ke to see? 

Sen. Cook -- No,  I 'm comfortable with the b i l l  just as it is .  

Sen. Unruh - - As am I .  I wi l l  move a do  pass o n  reengrossed H B 1 059, and rerefer to 
appropriat ions. 

Sen. Bekkedahl -- Seconded . 

Sen. Dotzen rod -- When we had the hearing on this was there anybody that spoke in  
opposition? 

Sen. Cook -- Nope. 

Sen. Triplett - - On the same page, just trying to recollect, we did have testimony from Zac 
Smith on behalf of the Assoc. of REC's and in h is  testimony he referenced an  amendment 
but then it seemed, in d iscussion ,  that he was referring to amendments that were added in 
the House and so he wasn't actual ly asking us to amend . 

Sen. Cook -- You rea lize that if we pass th is b i l l ,  as it came to us ,  that for the first t ime in  4 
sessions, th is being the 4th, there wi l l  not be a property tax conference committee meeting 
on the last day of the session? Sen . Dotzenrod , can you handle that? You can m anage 
that with no withdrawals? 
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Sen. Unru h  -- I 'd l i ke to amend the b i l l .  

Sen.  Triplett -- On the topic that we j ust had on the second previous b i l l  about stab i l ity over 
the long term, Emi ly Thompson from legislative council ,  reported to us that as it reduced 
the bi l l  had a large fiscal note and that now it has a smal ler  fiscal note because of the 
amendment, I g uess . . .  

Sen. Cook -- The money has been put in  the treasurer's budget. The on ly money left i n  
this b i l l  i s  the $2.4 mi l l ion  that the REC amendment wi l l  put on the  b i l l .  The $226 mi ll ion or  
whatever i t  was to fund the 1 2% h as been put i nto the treasurer's budget. Appropriations 
did that and that managed to take this down to an actual  1 1  % buydown because the cost of 
the socia l  service moved from county to state is the other 1 %. 

Sen. Triplett -- So what actua l ly is the fiscal note on th is b i l l  at the moment? 

Sen. Cook -- $2.4 mi l l ion .  

Sen. Dotzenrod -- The language on page 2, l i ne 1 2, where we refer to the credit is equal to 
1 2%.  Can we leave that in there at the number 1 2? 

Sen. Cook -- I t  wi l l  go  to appropriations and then they wi l l  put their fingerprints on it. So for 
property tax rel ief, we h ave this: the s hift of socia l  services from county to the state, and the 
two together it . looks l ike it is going to equa l  1 2%. The senate education funding b i l l  that we 
passed , started to red uce the amount of mi l ls that local government had to impose and I 
th ink the p roperty tax reduction in  that b i l l ,  as we passed it, was somewhere around $22 
mi ll ion. I bel ieve the House, as they are going to pass it, wi l l  be taking that out so that wi l l  
be a conference committee decision, u lt imately, where we end up  with an  education 
fund ing b i l l .  That looks l ike property tax rel ief in  its total ity, from what I have seen. 

Sen. Dotzenrod --That $22 mil l ion,  that was a figu re that was this biennium's foundation 
a id support relative to what we did 2 years ago? That was where we g et the $22 mi l l ion? 

Sen. Cook -- I t  would be $22 mi l l ion more.  I a lways use the number 60 mil ls that local 
school d istricts have to i mpose. I th ink the education b i l l  that we passed out, before 
crossover, lowered that 60 mi l ls down to 56 or something l ike that. That reduction was 
worth $22 mi l l ion .  

Sen. Dotzenro d  -- My memory of when Sen .  F lakol l  carried that on the floor was that he 
took what we d id 2 years ago and then they said 3 mi l ls in  the first year of the biennium and 
then a second 3 mi l ls  i n  the second.  (meter 6:47-6:59) 

Sen. Cook -- Yes, you a re right. But that is it for property tax rel ief. 

Sen. Dotzenro d  -- When you take the socia l  services out of the 1 2% ,  that remainder, that 
$226 mi l l ion, where is that i n  our  system? Is that in  the treasurer's budget? 

Sen. Cook -- The treasurer's budget.  And then we passed out a homestead tax credit. 



Senate Finance and Taxation Committee 
HB1 059 
March 24, 201 5 
Page 3 

Sen. Dotzenrod -- We changed the brackets? We took the b rackets that we had from 
before and expanded them? Is  that the bi l l  you are talking about? 

Sen. Cook -- You know what, they ki l led it. Do you want  to amend it on here? 

Sen. Bekkedahl -- D id they ki ll it  because of its provisions expanding the brackets or by 
expanding the a llowable amount .  . .  ? 

Sen. Cook -- Let's pu l l  back our  do pass motion and second,  shal l  we? 

Sen. Unruh -- I wi l l  do that. 

Sen. Cook -- Who seconded it? Sen. Bekkedahl? What was the bi l l  number that we 
passed on homestead tax credit? Do you have it, Terry? 

Sen. Triplett -- Whi le he is looking maybe we should assign Cole, if he has time, to l isten in  
to the d iscussion or check the committee minutes or  something so that we u nderstand why 
they d id what they d id  on the House side so that maybe there is some accommodation that 
we could make to them that wou ld make them less l ikely to go for a conference committee 
as opposed to reamending it d i rectly. I th ink it wou ld be useful to understand their 
reasoning.  

Sen. Cook - - Cole,  can you do that? 

Sen. Bekkedahl -- Was it SB222 1 ? 

Sen. Cook -- Who's p rime? 

Sen. Bekkedahl -- P rime is Kle in .  

Sen.  Cook -- That's it, 2 22 1 . Cole, can you draft amendments? Listen to the testimony 
first, if you can hear a nything .  We a re going to work towards amending 2221 on to this b i l l .  
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Explanation or reason for i ntroduction of bil l/resolution:  

Committee work 

Minutes: 

Chairman Cook opened the committee work on HB1 059 . 

Sen. Cook -- This morn ing I suggested that we keep it a whi le. Further thought, I would 
suggest that we pass it out just as is. If what happens, happens. We have time, yet, to put 
it on the floor in  appropriations, whatever we th ink we need to do. I 'd l ike to get it down to 
Ray so that he  can have a hearing on it. 

Sen. Unruh -- 1 move a do pass on H B 1 059, and rerefer to appropriations.  

Sen. Bekkedahl  - - Seconded . 

Sen. Triplett -- Is  the idea then that because the other b i l l  is not a ltogether dead yet, we 
don't want to wait the extra t ime? 

Sen. Cook - - Yes and it might s it on  their calendar for a while and if they think that I am 
hold ing this o ne, I g uarantee i t  wi l l  sit on their calendar. So let's not p lay the game. 

Roll call vote on do pass, rerefer, HB1 059. Vote 7-0-0. Carried. 

Carrier: Sen. Bekkedahl  
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REPORT OF STANDING COMMITIEE 
HB 1 059, as reengrossed: F inance and Taxation Committee (Sen .  Cook, Chairman) 

recommends DO PASS (7 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). 
Reengrossed H B  1 059 was placed on the Fourteenth order on the calendar. 
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D Subcommittee 

D Conference Committee 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bi l l/resolution :  

Relating to a new transmission l ine property tax exemption , a state-paid property tax relief credit, 
and the transmission l ine mi le tax rate. 

Minutes : 

Leg islative Counci l  - Adam Mathiak 
OMB - N ick Creamer & Tammy Dolan 

Attachment 1 - 2 

Chairman Holmberg ca l led the committee to order on H B  1 059. 

Senator Dwight Cook, District 34, Bi l l  Sponsor: I 'm carrying 1 059 to you and ask that 
you g ive it a favorable do pass. This is the property tax exemption b i l l  that extends the 1 2  
% buy-down . It brings a fix to , I cal l  it the REC tax, as we buy down ad valorem taxes, the 
REC's don't get to enjoy any of that buy-down so this g ives them a fix to keep them the 
same tax rel ief that other electric uti l ity compan ies get. The fiscal note for that part of this 
b i l l  is $2.4M.  Zac Smith with the REC's is here to speak to that issue. I 'm also asking if 
you wou ld consider putting an amendment on this b i l l ,  which is not fin ished yet. The 
amendment wi l l  bring another issue and that is the bi l l  that we passed earlier in the Senate 
and was defeated on the House floor. That b i l l  increases the tra in ing requ i rements on 
assessors. We are making some mod ifications so that some of the issues that caused 
concerns wi l l  be rel ieved . The b i l l  requ i red 1 60 hours of tra in ing for a l l  certified assessors 
in the state of North Dakota . Townships had some problems with that and thought it was 
too much .  I th ink that brought a lot of the NO votes. The amendment was supposed to be 
done by 9 :00 but I hope to bring it down today. 

Chairman Holmberg :  We wi l l  put th is in the nest and sit on it for a whi le. Are you fami l iar 
with Sen .  Oehlke's amendment ? 

Sen. Cook: I was going to welcome Sen . Oeh lke so that he could ta lk to you about 
another amendment that is here for the same reason as mine,  and I would hope we cou ld 
put it on the bi l l  a lso. 

Chairman Holmberg : The appropriations committee should note that for the fi rst t ime this 
session we are going to be dea l ing ,  potentially, with pol icy issues, wh ich we never do. 
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Sen. Cook: I would certain ly never, I don't th ink,  chal lenge that you do do it, but if you do 
just these two that we are bringing to you ,  we would welcome the d iscussion on policy. 

Senator Dave Oehlke, District 1 5: I 'm here to ask your consideration for an  amendment 
to H B 1 059. Handed out 1 5. 0 1 49.0300 1 (Attachment 1 ) .  This is the Homestead Tax 
cred it. As Sen .  Cook mentioned , the previous bi l l  that was passed out of the Senate has 
lost its way in  the House. This is a reduced amendment. This one that was in it ial ly 
proposed provided an i ncrease i n  the valuation from $ 1 00, 000 to $ 1 50 ,000 for the 
Homestead Tax cred it. It  also increased the levels of income sign ificantly to qua l ify. It a lso 
had a renters tax cred it. This amendment does not have any increase in  the levels of 
income to qual ify . No renters tax cred it. The only thing this does is increase the home 
valuation from $ 1 00 ,000 to $ 1 25 ,000.  Going from $1 00,000 to $ 1 50,000,  the fiscal note on 
that part of it was $5 . 1 M . Only going to $ 1 25,000 from $ 1 00 . 000 for qual ification ,  th is 
should rough ly come in at about $2 .5M to $2.6or 7M for a fiscal note . I do not have an 
actual fiscal note to go with it . 

Chairman Holmberg : Unfair question:  in your personal opin ion , which wou ld be a higher 
priority, th is amendment or what we heard earl ier on 1 223? If on ly one cou ld come out of 
the garage? 

Sen. Oehlke: I don 't have any problem with this amendment. And 1 223,  was I here for 
that? 

Chairman Holmberg : Your fingerprints are on it. 

Zachary Smith, Communications & Government Relations Director, North Dakota 
Association of Rural Electric Cooperatives (NDREC) 
Testified in  favor of HB 1 059.  Attachment 2. 

We are major property taxpayers in the state and deserve the same tax rel ief afforded other 
taxpayers. 

Senator Carlisle: You said , as amended . You are not referring to the Oeh lke 
amendments? 

Zach Smith : We don't have a position on those, just as it came through the House, as 
engrossed . 

Chairman Holmberg closed the hearing on HB 1 059. 

Senator Mathern: I was wondering ,  if  Legislative Counci l  cou ld help on the amendments 
offered by Sen .  Oehlke .  I th ink we ought to adopt i t  but I 'm  wondering why there i s  no 
word ing in  the amendment that relates to $ 1 00,000 going to $ 1 25 ,000 .  I s  that impl ied in  
the formula or is i t  incorrect wording? 

Senator Wanzek: I th ink that is  in the taxab le valuation number. 
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Emily Thompson, Legislative Council : You won't see that actual n umber of $ 1 00 ,000 
and the $ 1 25,000.  How that is calcu lated is the true and ful l  value .  You wou ld take 
$ 1 00 ,000 by the 4 .5% and then you wou ld get a number and that's the maximum reduction 
you wou ld get. So instead of taking that $ 1 00 .000 x 4 .5% to get the changes you see in  
each section , you would take the $ 1 25, 000. I t  increases the maximum reduction you 
wou ld get. 

Senator Mathern : So this amendment is correct to meet that purpose? 

Emi ly Thompson :  Yes, i t  i s  correct. 

C hairman Holmberg :  The reason there is not a Statement of Purpose on this is because 
it was prepared by lega l ,  not by fiscal ,  counci l .  
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bi l l/resolution : 

A B I LL for an Act to amend and reenact N DCC relating to a new transm ission l i ne p roperty 
tax exem ptio n ,  a state-paid p roperty tax rel ief cred it, and the transm ission l i n e  m i le tax rate ; 
and to p rovide an effective date . 

Min utes : # 1- Amendment # 15.0149.03003 
# 2 - Amendment # 15.0149.03001 

C h a i rman Holmberg cal led the com m ittee to order on Tuesday, Apri l  1 4 , 20 1 5  at 8 :30 am in 
rega rd s  to HB 1 059.  Rol l  Cal l  was take n .  All  comm ittee mem bers were p resent. B rady 
Larson,  Leg islative Cou nci l  and Becky Deichert, O MB were a lso p resent. 

Senator Dwight Cook, D istrict 34 subm itted amendment # 1 5 . 0 1 49 .  03003 and exp lained 
the amendments . Attachment # 1 .  

C h a i rman Holmberg : Why was the orig ina l  b i l l  was defeated in  the House beca use of the 
arg u ments that it was too m u ch tra i n i n g .  What was the vote in the Senate , do you reca l l ?  

Senator C o o k :  There were 1 8  total no votes. 

C h ai rman Holmberg :  C o u ld it have been beca use of the n u mber of h o u rs of tra i n ing for the 
town s h i p  assessors .  

V . C h a i rman Bowm a n :  Did t h e  assessors come i n  a n d  want t h i s  o r  is t h i s  j u st an idea? 

Senator Cook:  This idea came from the state tax eq u a l ization officer, state tax 
comm issioner's office and cou nty tax eq ual ization officer are the ones who work hand and 
hand that is where the idea came from . It 's been an ongoing problem,  we have tried to 
address it in a n u m ber of sessions the ro le of accessing property for tax p u rposes . If you 
ca n't get the assessment r ight,  it's broken . It seems to be more lack of attentio n ;  doing the 
assessment rig ht d oesn't change the revenue the pol it ical subd ivis ions get. They levy the 
tax to generate the revenue;  if the assessment isn't done right it d oesn't raise the levy or 
l ower it .  

Senator Erbele:  D i d  the House make any effort at al l  to address the h o u rs .  
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Senator Cook: The House Finance and Tax Comm ittee supported this,  took it to the floor 
with a do pass and pretty soon somebody ki l led the b i l l .  

Senator Mathern : Has this amendment been seen by your  committee and what is the 
d ifference between assessor one and assessor two . 

Senator Cook: This b i l l  has been seen by the Senate Finance and Tax Comm ittee. They 
have not seen the amendment but it has been exp la ined to them.  As far what is the 
d ifference between the two assessors, noth ing? They wi l l  both assess the same properties , 
it is j ust that assessor 2 , with the 1 00 ·hours' of tra in ing ,  can work for townships.  

Senator O'Connel l :  Is there a design prog ram when you come up with 1 00 hours or 1 80 
hours? 

Senator Cook: Yes there is a design program.  

Senator Sorvaag : SB 2054 is  the senate b i l l  passed 26/20.  

Senator Wanzek: Where do they go to get th is instruction? 

Senator Cook: They can get it on l ine .  The state tax eq ual izat ion would arrange the 
tra in ing . Some loca l cou nty, local township assessors can get tra in ing from the local tax 
equal ization .  

Senator Carlisle moved the amendment # 1 5 . 0 1 49 . 03003 with a second by V .  Chairman 
Krebsbach . 

Senator Carl is le: I notice this d rafted by legal  folks. The statement and purpose is just to 
red uce the hours .  

Emi ly Thompson,  Leg is lative Counci l .  Correct, this is  red ucing the hours.  What th is 
amendment does is b reaks into class 1 and class 2 assessor, the fi rst class has 1 80 hours 
of instruction ;  two has 1 00 hours of instruction .  There is cred it a l lowed for tra in ing a l ready 
received . This p rovides for a transition period as wel l .  Right now the townships and smal ler 
cities do have a lower tra in ing req u i rement. 

Senator O'Connel l :  Is  there a pena lty for loca l county assessors? 

Emi ly Thompson:  In reviewing th is amendment I do not bel ieve so. 

Senator Heckaman:  Could lose their certification . Is that in  current law? 

Senator Cook: Yes , it is in current law and state eq ual ization officer wou ld have to know 
about it and they have the authority to take away the certification . 

Senator Gary Lee: Is  there a fee to take the cou rse to get certified . 
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Senator Cook. Yes there is a cost. 

Senator Wanzek:  So there is a one-time requ i rement of 1 00 hours for class 2 and for 1 80 
hours for a class 1 .  To maintain going forward you have put in  20 hours in  a 2 year period 
for a class 1 and 1 0  hours for class 2, is that correct? 

Senator Cook: There is continu ing education requ ired . 

Chairman Holmberg al l  in  favor of amendment # 1 5 . 0 1 49 . 03003 Say aye .  It passed. 

Chairman Holmberg :  We have another amend ment g iven by Senator Oehlke. I am g lad 
this Senate was q u ite supportive of making some changes to the homestead tax cred it 
area . The issue ran into a buzz saw in the House. Attachment # 2 - Amendment # 
1 5 .0 1 49 . 0300 1 . 

Senator Cook. I do recal l  when we passed out our homestead tax cred it b i l l  that we 
expanded the income brackets , from $42 ,000 to up to $50,000.  The most important thing 
we d id pol icy wise is ra ised the value of income tax cred it on the home from $1 00,000 to 
$ 1 50 , 000 of true and fu l l  value. It had an $8, 000, 000 fiscal note; I bel ieve that $5,  1 00 , 000 
was d ue to increasing the valuation from $1 00 , 000 to $ 1 50 ,000.  Someone in  the House 
defeated that b i l l .  The homestead cred it whether we go home with it or not, it leaves the 
income tax brackets the same and reduces the amount of the increase in  the taxable 
va luation ;  it should red uce the fiscal note to $2 , 500, 000. 

Senator Carl isle moved amendment # 1 5 . 0 1 49 . 03001 with a second by V. Chairman 
Krebsbach . 

Chairman Holmberg : This is an old friend and very supportive of the Senate. The goal is to 
have the two issues back in for the conference committee. 

Senator Wanzek: We are schedu led for the tax department in  conference committee; we 
probably need to hold out unt i l  we know what we do here. The leader said someth ing 
about ra ising the value of the homes. 

Chairman Holmberg :  Send it out but coord inate with the tax department. 

Senator Mathern : I do th ink this is a positive amendment. I am a l ittle bit confl icted , we 
have mixed , it's a l l  happening in  the appropriation committee not the pol icy committee , I 
find it a l ittle uncomfortable. Th is very good amendment. 

Chairman Holmberg :  All in  favor of amendment # 1 5 . 0 1 49 .03001  say aye .  It carried . 

Senator Carl isle moved a Do Pass as Amended with a second by Senator Sorvaag . 

Chairman Holmberg :  Cal l  the roll on a Do Pass as Amended on HB 1 059 .  

A Rol l  Cal l  vote was taken .  Yea : 1 3 ; Nay: O ;  Absent: 0 .  
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Chairman Holmberg :  This goes back to Finance and Tax and Senator Bekkedah l  wi l l  carry 
the b i l l .  The hearing was closed on H B  1 059.  
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PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO REENGROSSED HOUSE BILL NO. 1059 

Page 1, line 1, after "Act" insert "to create and enact section 57-02-01.1 of the North Dakota 
Century Code, relating to training and certification of assessors;" 

Page 1, line 1, after "sections" insert "11-10.1-01 , 11-10.1-05, 57-02-33," 

Page 1, line 2, after "to" insert "training and certification of assessors," 

Page 1, after line 5, insert: 

"SECTION 1.AMENDMENT. Section 11-10.1-01 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

11-10.1-01. County director of tax equalization. 

1. The board of county commissioners of each county in this state shall 
appoint a county director of tax equal ization who must be qualified and 
experienced in property appraisals, familiar with assessment and 
equalization procedures and techniques, and who is the holder ofholds a 
current certificatecertification as a class I assessor issued by the state 
supervisor of assessments. The state supervisor of assessments shall 
confer with representatives of the county commissioners, city governing 
bodies, state township officers association , and personnel at North Dakota 
state university to establish or revise the minimum requirements for 
attaining the certificate. Any person who is denied such certificate may 
appeal to the state tax commissioner for a hearing under the provisions of 
chapter 28 32. 

2. The board of county commissioners may, in its discretion , appoint a 
personcounty director of tax equalization on a probationary basis who does 
not hold a current certificate as provided for in subsection 1 certification as 
a class I assessor, if the board deems such personthe individual qualified 
to act as county director of tax equal ization by virtue of education , train ing , 
a00 experience, and willingness to obtain certification as a class I 
assessor. The appointment must be for a term of not more than tflreetwo 
years. Any person receiving a probationary appointment who does not 
obtain a certificatecertification as a class I assessor within tflreetwo years 
from the appointment is not eligible for reappointment. 

3. The county director of tax equalization shall serve at the pleasure of the 
board of county commissioners and may be employed on a full-time or 
part-time basis. Vacancies in the office of county director of tax 
equal ization must be filled in the same manner as the original appointment. 

SECTION 2. AMENDMENT. Section 11-10.1-05 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 
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11-10.1-05. Powers and duties of county director of tax equalization -
Qualifications of assessors. 

1. The county director of tax equalization shall havehas the power, duty, and 
responsibility to call upon and confer with tovmship and city assessors in 
the county and to instructassist them in the preparation and proper use of 
land maps and property record cards , tRe preparation of assessment 
books, tRe changes in assessment laws and regulationsrules , #le 
determination of proper standards of value , #le use of proper 
classifications of property, determination of what property qualifies as 
exempt from property taxes. and tRe authority to require attendance at 
meetings, to the end that apromote uniform assessment of all real property 
in the county will prevail. 

2. Any city with a population of under five thousand or township may, by 
resolution of its governing body, retain an assessor who is certified or 
eligible to be certified as a class II assessor who shall retain the powers. 
duties, and responsibilities of the office. Any city with a population of five 
thousand or greater may. by resolution of its governing body. retain an 
assessor who is certified or eligible to be certified as a class I assessor 
who shall retain the powers. duties, and responsibilities of the office. A 
person may not serve as an assessor for longer than twenty-four months 
before being certified by the state supervisor of assessments as having 
met the minimum requirements. The expenses of the city or township 
assessors must be paid by the city or township exercising this option. 

2-:-.3.,. On January 1, 1981 , theThe county director of tax equalization shall 
succeed to all the pmvers and duties of assessors of townships, cities with 
a population of under five thousand, and unorganized districtssupervise all 
individuals performing assessor services in the county and arrange for the 
assessment of property within the county, except that any city 'tvith a 
population of under five thousand or township may, at its option by 
resolution of its governing body, employ an assessor who shall retain the 
powers, duties, and responsibilities of the office. The resolutionwithin the 
jurisdiction of a city or township in which the governing body to employ 
aHretains a certified class I or class II assessor continues in force until 
rescinded by the governing body. Notwithstanding any other provision of 
law to the contrary, the state supervisor of assessments shall confer with 
representatives of the county commissioners, city governing bodies, state 
tmvnship officers association , and personnel at North Dakota state 
university to establish minimum requirements for all city and township 
assessors. The standards shall reflect their limited jurisdiction and need 
not be equal to those minimum requirements set for county directors of tax 
equalization. Any courses of instruction included in those minimum 
requirements for assessors of townships or cities with a population under 
five thousand must be conducted by the county director of tax equalization 
who may cooperate •Nith other county directors of tax equalization in 
holding joint classes. The county director of tax equalization may call upon 
the state supervisor of assessments for any necessary materials and 
assistance. No person may serve as an assessor of a township or a city 
with a population under five thousand for longer than twelve months before 
being certified by the state supervisor of assessments as having met the 
minimum requirements . No person may serve as an assessor of a city with 
a population of five thousand or more for longer than three years before 
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being certified by the state supervisor of assessments as having met the 
minimum requirements. The expenses and salaries of city and township 
assessors must be paid by the city or tovmship exercising this option. 

a:-4. Any city or township wffiffithat does not employ its ownretain a certified 
class I or class II assessor shall utilize the certified assessor of the county 
in which the city or township is located. The county commission may 
require the city or township to reimburse the county for the expenses 
incurred in assessing the property of that city or township. 

4.--5.,. Any assessment made by an assessor who is not currently certified as 
qualified for that assessment jurisdiction must be reviewed and approved 
by a certified county director of tax equalization , or a certified city assessor 
of a city with a population of five thousand or moreassessor, prior to the 
township or city board of equalization annual meeting. The cost of the 
assessment review must be paid by the township or city having jurisdiction 
over the assessment at the same rate as paid to a special assessor in 
section 57-14-08. 

SECTION 3. AMENDMENT. Section 57-01-05 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

57-01-05. State supervisor of assessments. 

The state tax commissioner shall appoint a state supervisor of assessments 
who must be a person trained and experienced in property appraisals and familiar with 
assessment and equalization procedures and techniques. The state supervisor of 
assessments serves at the pleasure of the state tax commissioner and office space 
must be furnished to the state supervisor of assessments by the commissioner. 

The state supervisor of assessments shall perform the following duties under 
the direction of the tax commissioner: 

1. The state supervisor of assessments shall advise and give the various 
assessors in the state the necessary instructions and directions as to their 
duties under the laws of this state , to the end that apromote uniform 
assessment of all real and personal property in this state will be attained. 

2. The state supervisor of assessments shall assist and instruct the various 
assessors in this state in the use of soil reconnaissance surveys, land 
classification methods, ffi-.tl:le preparation and proper use of land maps and 
record cards, ffi-.tl:le proper classification of real and personal property, and 
ffi-.tl:le determination of proper standards of value. 

3. The state supervisor of assessments may require the attendance of groups 
of assessors at meetings called by the state supervisor of assessments for 
the purpose of giving them further assistance and instruction as to their 
duties. 

4. The state supervisor of assessments may make sales, market, and 
productivity studies and other studies of property assessments in the 
various counties and cities of this state for the purpose ofto properly 
advisingadvise the various assessors and directors of tax equalization in 
the state and for the purpose of recommendingto recommend to the tax 
commissioner changes to be made by the state board of equalization in 
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the performance of #teits equalization powers and duties prescribed for it 
by section 57 13 04. In any sales, market, and productivity study made 
according to section 57-01-06 , the county directors of tax equalization or 
city assessors, as the case may be, are responsible for compiling shall 
compile a record of sales of property made in the county or city, and in 
conjunction with the board of county commissioners shall analyze the 
sales for the purpose of advising the state supervisor of assessments as to 
the value of using the sales in any such study. The compilations must be 
forwarded to the state supervisor of assessments with the findings of the 
county director of tax equalization , city assessors, and the board of county 
commissioners. In any county or city or any part thereof where the number 
of sales of properties is insufficient for making a sales, market, and 
productivity study, the county director of tax equalization or city assessor, 
as the case may be, in cooperation with the state supervisor of 
assessments or that person's assistants shall make appraisals of 
properties in order to determine the market value. 

5. The state supervisor of assessments shall cooperate with North Dakota 
state university in the development of a soil mapping program, a land 
classification system, valuation studies, and other matters relating to the 
assessment of property and shall provide for the use of such information 
and procedure at the earliest possible date by the assessors of this state. 

6. The state supervisor of assessments has general supervision of assessors 
and county directors of tax equalization pertaining to methods and 
procedures of assessment of all property and has authority to require all 
county directors of tax equalization to do any act necessary to obtain 
uniform methods and procedures of assessment. 

7. Whenever an investigation by the state supervisor of assessments shows 
there is probable cause to believe the holder of a certificate issued by the 
state supervisor of assessments under chapter 11 10.1 section 57-02-01.1 
has failed to comply with any of the provisions of this titlelaw pertaining to 
assessments, or any rules prescribedadopted by the tax commissioner, the 
state supervisor of assessments may petition the tax commissioner for a 
hearing to show cause why the certificate should be suspended or 
revoked. 

a. The state supervisor of assessments must provide the certificate 
holder at least ten days' notice of the time and place of the hearing. 

b. If cause to suspend or revoke the certificate is shown, the tax 
commissioner may suspend or revoke the certificate. 

c. The tax commissioner may restore a certificate after suspension or 
revocation. 

d. An individual whose certificate has been suspended or revoked in the 
manner provided in this section may appeal that determination to the 
district court as provided in section 28-32-42. 

8. If a certificate holder's certificate is suspended or revoked under this 
section , the governing body of the county in which the certificate holder 
performs duties shall ensure the continued administration of assessments 
within that county by a person authorized under section 11-10.1-05 and be 
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responsible for any expenses associated with the fulfillment of this 
responsibility. Expenses incurred by a county to fulfill the duties of a 
township or city assessment official whose certificate has been suspended 
or revoked must be charged to the political subdivision in which the 
certificate holder is employed and must either be paid directly to the county 
by the political subdivision or deducted by the county treasurer from funds 
coming into the treasurer's control which are apportionable to the 
subdivision . 

9. The state supervisor of assessments shall perform such other duties 
relating to assessment and taxation of property as the tax commissioner 
directs. 

10. The tax commissioner may prescribeadopt rules under chapter 28-32 
necessary for the detailed and efficient administration of this section. 

SECTION 4. Section 57-02-01.1 of the North Dakota Century Code is created 
and enacted as follows: 

57-02-01.1. Certification of assessors. 

The state supervisor of assessments shall certify assessors as provided in this 
section. 

1. To be certified as a class I assessor, an individual must: 

§..:. Have a high school diploma or its equivalent. 

Q,. Successfully complete one hundred eighty hours of assessment and 
appraisal instruction approved by the state supervisor of 
assessments. The number of hours of instruction determined 
necessary by the state supervisor of assessments for each of the 
following topics is required : 

ill Tax administration . 

.(2.). Principles and theory of value . 

.Q1 Residential property appraisal. 

ill Commercial property appraisal. 

.(fil Agricultural property valuation. 

£. To be certified as a class II assessor. an individual must: 

§..:. Have a high school diploma or its equivalent. 

b. Successfully complete one hundred hours of assessment and 
appraisal instruction approved by the state supervisor of 
assessments. The number of hours of instruction determined 
necessary by the state supervisor of assessments for each of the 
following topics is required: 

ill Tax administration . 

.(2.). Principles and theory of value. 
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Ql Residential property appraisal. 

.(4). Commercial property appraisal. 

.{fil Agricultural property valuation. 

~ The state supervisor of assessments may allow credit against required 
instruction in any topic under subdivision b of subsection 1 and subdivision 
b of subsection 2 upon receipt of documented training in this state or 
another state in the topic. 

4. An individual appointed as an assessor must hold the required assessor 
certificate at the time of appointment or obtain that certificate within two 
years after initial appointment or by July 31. 2017, whichever is later. An 
assessor who does not obtain the required certificate within two years after 
initial appointment or by July 31. 2017. whichever is later. or who does not 
maintain that certificate in good standing is not eligible for reappointment. 

5. An assessor certificate is valid for a term of two years from the first day of 
the calendar year for which it becomes effective. 

6. A class I assessor certificate may be renewed if the holder has completed 
twenty hours of approved classroom instruction or seminars during the 
term of the certificate. For purposes of this subsection. an assessor 
certificate holder is entitled to one and one-half hours of credit for each 
hour spent as an instructor of approved classroom instruction or seminars 
during the term of the certificate. 

L A class II assessor certificate may be renewed if the holder has completed 
ten hours of approved classroom instruction or seminars during the term of 
the certificate. 

a_ The state supervisor of assessments shall notify the holder of an assessor 
certificate of the time for application for renewal of the individual's 
certificate. The state supervisor of assessments shall notify the governing 
body of the taxing district employing an assessor whose certificate is not 
renewed or whose certificate is suspended or revoked. 

9. Any person who is denied a certificate under this section may appeal to the 
tax commissioner for a hearing under chapter 28-32. 

1Q,_ The tax commissioner may adopt rules under chapter 28-32 for the 
administration of this section. 

SECTION 5. AMENDMENT. Section 57-02-33 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

57-02-33. Assessor districtsservices for unorganized territory. 

All counties or parts of counties in this state not organized into civil 
townshipsAny area not within an organized township or city must be divided into 
assessor districts, 1Nhich must be designated by the board of county 
commissionersassessed by a certified assessor under the supervision and direction of 
the county director of tax equalization. The board of county commissioners shall 
appoint the district assessors to a four year term of office, the first term commencing on 
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January 1, 1974. In case of vacancy in the office of district assessor in any of such 
districts, such vacancies must be filled by the board of county commissioners for the 
balance of the term. In making the appointment of a district assessor, theThe county 
director of tax equalization for such county is eligible for appointment to a district 
assessor positionmay serve as an assessor of property under this section . Every 
individual performing assessor of territory not organized into civil townships shall 
receive asservices under this section is entitled to compensation for services a sumand 
mileage and travel expenses determined by the board of county commissioners for the 
time actually and necessarily employed in making and completing the assessment of 
the districtproperty. The compensation and expenses must be paid from the treasury of 
the county in which such districtthe assessed property is located only upon submission 
of an itemized statement setting forth the actual time spent in the work of the assessor 
and mileage traveled , approved by the board of county commissioners. In addition , the 
district assessor must be paid such mileage as is required to perform the duties of the 
office. The board of county commissioners has the authority to appoint a deputy 
assessor if needed, to be compensated in the same manner as the district assessor." 

Page 5, after line 29, insert: 

"SECTION 10. TRANSITION. The state supervisor of assessments shall 
recertify assessors at the end of the term of any certification that expires after July 31 , 
2017, upon application and submission by the certificate holder of evidence of 
completion of required educational sessions under North Dakota Administrative Code 
chapter 81-02.1-02 or under section 57-02-01 .1 or rules adopted to administer that 
section , subject to the following additional requirements: 

1. The holder of a township assessor or class II city assessor certification 
may be recertified as a certified class II assessor upon completion of the 
instruction required for class II assessor certification, with credit allowed by 
the state supervisor of assessments for any instruction previously received 
by the applicant for certification as a township assessor. 

2. The holder of a class I city assessor or county director of tax equalization 
certification may be recertified as a certified class I assessor upon 
submission of evidence of completion of required education sessions 
during the term of the class I city assessor or county director of tax 
equalization certification." 

Renumber accordingly 
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PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO REENGROSSED HOUSE BILL NO. 1059 

Page 1, line 1, after "reenact" insert "subsection 1 of section 57-02-08.1 and" 

Page 1, line 2, after "to" insert "the homestead tax credit," 

Page 1, after line 5, insert: 

"SECTION 1. AMENDMENT. Subsection 1 of section 57-02-08.1 of the North 
Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows : 

1. a. Any person sixty-five years of age or older or permanently and totally 
disabled , in the year in which the tax was levied, with an income that 
does not exceed the limitations of subdivision c is entitled to receive a 
reduction in the assessment on the taxable valuation on the person's 
homestead. An exemption under this subsection applies regardless of 
whether the person is the head of a family. 

b. The exemption under this subsection continues to apply if the person 
does not reside in the homestead and the person's absence is due to 
confinement in a nursing home, hospital , or other care facility, for as 
long as the portion of the homestead previously occupied by the 
person is not rented to another person. 

c. The exemption must be determined according to the following 
schedule: 

(1) If the person's income is not in excess of twenty-two thousand 
dollars, a reduction of one hundred percent of the taxable 
valuation of the person's homestead up to a maximum reduction 
of few:five thousand #vesix hundred twenty-five dollars of 
taxable valuation. 

(2) If the person's income is in excess of twenty-two thousand 
dollars and not in excess of twenty-six thousand dollars, a 
reduction of eighty percent of the taxable valuation of the 
person's homestead up to a maximum reduction of tJ::H:eefour 
thousand s*five hundred dollars of taxable valuation. 

(3) If the person's income is in excess of twenty-six thousand 
dollars and not in excess of thirty thousand dollars, a reduction 
of sixty percent of the taxable valuation of the person's 
homestead up to a maximum reduction of twethree thousand 
seveRthree hundred seventy-five dollars of taxable valuation . 

(4) If the person's income is in excess of thirty thousand dollars and 
not in excess of thirty-four thousand dollars , a reduction of forty 
percent of the taxable valuation of the person's homestead up to 
a maximum reduction of ooetwo thousand ~wo hundred fifty 
dollars of taxable valuation. 

(5) If the person's income is in excess of thirty-four thousand dollars 
and not in excess of thirty-eight thousand dollars, a reduction of 
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twenty percent of the taxable valuation of the person's 
homestead up to a maximum reduction of flffieone thousand one 
hundred twenty-five dollars of taxable valuation. 

(6) If the person's income is in excess of thirty-eight thousand 
dollars and not in excess of forty-two thousand dollars, a 
reduction of ten percent of the taxable valuation of the person's 
homestead up to a maximum reduction of fel:tt:five hundred 
fi.ftysixty-three dollars of taxable valuation. 

d. Persons residing together, as spouses or when one or more is a 
dependent of another, are entitled to only one exemption between or 
among them under this subsection. Persons residing together, who 
are not spouses or dependents, who are co-owners of the property 
are each entitled to a percentage of a full exemption under this 
subsection equal to their ownership interests in the property. 

e. This subsection does not reduce the liability of any person for special 
assessments levied upon any property. 

f. Any person claiming the exemption under this subsection shall sign a 
verified statement of facts establishing the person's eligibility. 

g. A person is ineligible for the exemption under this subsection if the 
value of the assets of the person and any dependent residing with the 
person exceeds five hundred thousand dollars, including the value of 
any assets divested within the last three years. 

h. The assessor shall attach the statement filed under subdivision f to 
the assessment sheet and shall show the reduction on the 
assessment sheet. 

i. An exemption under this subsection terminates at the end of the 
taxable year of the death of the applicant." 

Renumber accordingly 
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Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for 
Senate Appropriations Committee 

April 14, 2015 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO REENGROSSED HOUSE BILL NO. 1059 

Page 1, line 1, after "Act" insert "to create and enact section 57-02-01.1 of the North Dakota 
Century Code, relating to training and certification of assessors;" 

Page 1, line 1, after "sections" insert "11-10.1-01, 11-10.1-05, and 57-01-05, subsection 1 of 
section 57-02-08.1, and sections 57-02-33," 

Page 1, line 2, after "to" insert "training and certification of assessors, the homestead tax 
credit," 

Page 1, line 3, after the semicolon, insert "to provide for transition;" 

Page 1, after line 5, insert: 

"SECTION 1. AMENDMENT. Section 11-10.1-01 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

11-10.1-01. County director of tax equalization. 

1. The board of county commissioners of each county in this state shall 
appoint a county director of tax equalization who must be qualified and 
experienced in property appraisals, familiar 'A'ith assessment and 
equalization procedures and techniques, and who is the holder ofholds a 
current certificatecertification as a class I assessor issued by the state 
supervisor of assessments. The state supervisor of assessments shall 
conf.er ·.vith representatives of the county commissioners, city governing 
bodies, state township officers association, and personnel at North Dakota 
state university to establish or revise the minimum requirements for 
attaining the certificate. Any person who is denied such certificate may 
appeal to the state tax commissioner for a hearing under the provisions of 
chapter 28 32. 

2. The board of county commissioners may, in its discretion, appoint a 
personcounty director of tax equalization on a probationary basis who does 
not hold a current certificate as provided for in subsection 1 certification as 
a class I assessor, if the board deems such personthe individual qualified 
to act as county director of tax equalization by virtue of education, training, 
aREi experience. and willingness to obtain certification as a class I 
assessor. The appointment must be for a term of not more than tRfeetwo 
years. Any person receiving a probationary appointment who does not 
obtain a certificatecertification as a class I assessor within tRfeetwo years 
from the appointment is not eligible for reappointment. 

3. The county director of tax equalization shall serve at the pleasure of the 
board of county commissioners and may be employed on a full-time or 
part-time basis. Vacancies in the office of county director of tax 
equalization must be filled in the same manner as the original appointment. 

SECTION 2. AMENDMENT. Section 11-10.1-05 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 
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11-10.1-05. Powers and duties of county director of tax equalization -
Qualifications of assessors. 

1. The county director of tax equalization shall havehas the power, duty, and 
responsibility to call upon and confer with to11mship and city assessors in 
the county and to instructassist them in the preparation and proper use of 
land maps and property record cards, tAe preparation of assessment 
books, tAe changes in assessment laws and regulationsrules, tAe 
determination of proper standards of value, tAe use of proper 
classifications of property, determination of what property qualifies as 
exempt from property taxes, and tAe authority to require attendance at 
meetings, to the end that apromote uniform assessment of all real property 
in the county will prevail. 

2. Any city with a population of under five thousand or township may. by 
resolution of its governing body, retain an assessor who is certified or 
eligible to be certified as a class II assessor who shall retain the powers. 
duties. and responsibilities of the office. Any city with a population of five 
thousand or greater may, by resolution of its governing body, retain an 
assessor who is certified or eligible to be certified as a class I assessor 
who shall retain the powers. duties. and responsibilities of the office. A 
person may not serve as an assessor for longer than twenty-four months 
before being certified by the state supervisor of assessments as having 
met the minimum requirements. The expenses of the city or township 
assessors must be paid by the city or township exercising this option. 

~~ On January 1, 1981, theThe county director of tax equalization shall 
succeed to all the pov1ers and duties of assessors of tmvnships, cities with 
a population of under five thousand, and unorganized districtssupervise all 
individuals performing assessor services in the county and arrange for the 
assessment of property within the county, except that any city with a 
population of under fiire thousand or tm•mship may, at its option by 
resolution of its governing body, employ an assessor who shall retain the 
powers, duties, and responsibilities of the office. The resolutionwithin the 
jurisdiction of a city or township in which the governing body to employ 
aRretains a certified class I or class II assessor continues in force until 
rescinded by the governing body. Notwithstanding any other provision of 
law to the contrary, the state supervisor of assessments shall confer with 
representatives of the county commissioners, city governing bodies, state 
township officers association, and personnel at North Dakota state 
university to establish minimum requirements for all city and township 
assessors. The standards shall reflect their limited jurisdiction and need 
not be equal to those minimum requirements set for county directors of tax 
equalization. Any courses of instruction included in those minimum 
requirements for assessors of townships or cities with a population under 
five thousand must be conducted by the county director of tax equalization 
who may cooperate with other county directors of tax equalization in 
holding joint classes. The county director of tax equalization may call upon 
the state supervisor of assessments for any necessary materials and 
assistance. No person may serve as an assessor of a township or a city 
with a population under fi•Je thousand for longer than twelve months before 
being certified by the state supervisor of assessments as having met the 
minimum requirements. No person may serve as an assessor of a city with 
a population of five thousand or more for longer than three years before 
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being oertified by the state supervisor of assessments as having met the 
minimum requirements. The expenses and salaries of oity and township 
assessors must be paid by the oity or township exeroising this option. 

&-4. Any city or township wAkffithat does not employ its m•mretain a certified 
class I or class II assessor shall utilize the certified assessor of the county 
in which the city or township is located. The county commission may 
require the city or township to reimburse the county for the expenses 
incurred in assessing the property of that city or township. 

4.-5. Any assessment made by an assessor who is not currently certified as 
qualified for that assessment jurisdiotion must be reviewed and approved 
by a certified oounty direotor of tax equalization, or a oertified oity assessor 
of a oity with a population of five thousand or moreassessor, prior to the 
township or city board of equalization annual meeting. The cost of the 
assessment review must be paid by the township or city having jurisdiction 
over the assessment at the same rate as paid to a special assessor in 
section 57-14-08. 

SECTION 3. AMENDMENT. Section 57-01-05 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

57-01-05. State supervisor of assessments. 

The state tax commissioner shall appoint a state supervisor of assessments 
who must be a person trained and experienced in property appraisals and familiar with 
assessment and equalization procedures and techniques. The state supervisor of 
assessments serves at the pleasure of the state tax commissioner and office space 
must be furnished to the state supervisor of assessments by the commissioner. 

The state supervisor of assessments shall perform the following duties under 
the direction of the tax commissioner: 

1. The state supervisor of assessments shall advise and give the various 
assessors in the state the necessary instructions and directions as to their 
duties under the laws of this state, to the end that apromote uniform 
assessment of all real and personal property in this state will be attained. 

2. The state supervisor of assessments shall assist and instruct the various 
assessors in this state in the use of soil reoonnaissanoe surveys, land 
classification methods, ffi.-tRe preparation and proper use of land maps and 
record cards, ffi.-tRe proper classification of real and personal property, and 
ffi.-tRe determination of proper standards of value. 

3. The state supervisor of assessments may require the attendance of groups 
of assessors at meetings called by the state supervisor of assessments for 
the purpose of giving them further assistance and instruction as to their 
duties. 

4. The state supervisor of assessments may make sales, market, and 
productivity studies and other studies of property assessments in the 
various counties and cities of this state for the purpose ofto properly 
advisingadvise the various assessors and directors of tax equalization in 
the state and for the purpose of reoommendingto recommend to the tax 
commissioner changes to be made by the state board of equalization in 
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the performance of tReits equalization powers and duties prescribed for it 
by section 57 13 04. In any sales, market, and productivity study made 
according to section 57-01-06, the county directors of tax equalization or 
city assessors, as the case may be, are responsible for compiling shall 
compile a record of sales of property made in the county or city, and in 
conjunction with the board of county commissioners shall analyze the 
sales for the purpose of advising the state supervisor of assessments as to 
the value of using the sales in any such study. The compilations must be 
forwarded to the state supervisor of assessments with the findings of the 
county director of tax equalization, city assessors, and the board of county 
commissioners. In any county or city or any part thereof where the number 
of sales of properties is insufficient for making a sales, market, and 
productivity study, the county director of tax equalization or city assessor, 
as the case may be, in cooperation with the state supervisor of 
assessments or that person's assistants shall make appraisals of 
properties in order to determine the market value. 

5. The state supervisor of assessments shall cooperate with North Dakota 
state university in the development of a soil mapping program, a land 
classification system, valuation studies, and other matters relating to the 
assessment of property and shall provide for the use of such information 
and procedure at the earliest possible date by the assessors of this state. 

6. The state supervisor of assessments has general supervision of assessors 
and county directors of tax equalization pertaining to methods and 
procedures of assessment of all property and has authority to require all 
county directors of tax equalization to do any act necessary to obtain 
uniform methods and procedures of assessment. 

7. Whenever an investigation by the state supervisor of assessments shows 
there is probable cause to believe the holder of a certificate issued by the 
state supervisor of assessments under chapter 11 10.1 section 57-02-01 .1 
has failed to comply with any of the provisions of this titlelaw pertaining to 
assessments, or any rules prescribedadopted by the tax commissioner, the 
state supervisor of assessments may petition the tax commissioner for a 
hearing to show cause why the certificate should be suspended or 
revoked. 

a. The state supervisor of assessments must provide the certificate 
holder at least ten days' notice of the time and place of the hearing. 

b. If cause to suspend or revoke the certificate is shown, the tax 
commissioner may suspend or revoke the certificate. 

c. The tax commissioner may restore a certificate after suspension or 
revocation. 

d. An individual whose certificate has been suspended or revoked in the 
manner provided in this section may appeal that determination to the 
district court as provided in section 28-32-42. 

8. If a certificate holder's certificate is suspended or revoked under this 
section, the governing body of the county in which the certificate holder 
performs duties shall ensure the continued administration of assessments 
within that county by a person authorized under section 11-10.1-05 and be 
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responsible for any expenses associated with the fulfillment of this 
responsibility. Expenses incurred by a county to fulfill the duties of a 
township or city assessment official whose certificate has been suspended 
or revoked must be charged to the political subdivision in which the 
certificate holder is employed and must either be paid directly to the county 
by the political subdivision or deducted by the county treasurer from funds 
coming into the treasurer's control which are apportionable to the 
subdivision. 

9. The state supervisor of assessments shall perform such other duties 
relating to assessment and taxation of property as the tax commissioner 
directs. 

10. The tax commissioner may presoribeadopt rules under chapter 28-32 
necessary for the detailed and effioient administration of this section. 

SECTION 4. Section 57-02-01 .1 of the North Dakota Century Code is created 
and enacted as follows: 

57-02-01.1. Certification of assessors. 

The state supervisor of assessments shall certify assessors as provided in this 
section. 

1.:. To be certified as a class I assessor. an individual must: 

a. Have a high school diploma or its equivalent. 

b. Successfully complete one hundred eighty hours of assessment and 
appraisal instruction approved by the state supervisor of 
assessments. The number of hours of instruction determined 
necessary by the state supervisor of assessments for each of the 
following topics is required: 

ill Tax administration. 

@ Principles and theory of value. 

Ql Residential property appraisal. 

ffi Commercial property appraisal. 

.(fil Agricultural property valuation. 

2. To be certified as a class II assessor. an individual must: 

a. Have a high school diploma or its equivalent. 

b. Successfully complete one hundred hours of assessment and 
appraisal instruction approved by the state supervisor of 
assessments. The number of hours of instruction determined 
necessary by the state supervisor of assessments for each of the 
following topics is required: 

ill Tax administration. 

@ Principles and theory of value. 
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Ql Residential property appraisal. 

ffi Commercial property appraisal. 

.(fil Agricultural property valuation. 

3. The state supervisor of assessments may allow credit against required 
instruction in any topic under subdivision b of subsection 1 and subdivision 
b of subsection 2 upon receipt of documented training in this state or 
another state in the topic. 

4. An individual appointed as an assessor must hold the required assessor 
certificate at the time of appointment or obtain that certificate within two 
years after initial appointment or by July 31. 2017. whichever is later. An 
assessor who does not obtain the required certificate within two years after 
initial appointment or by July 31. 2017. whichever is later. or who does not 
maintain that certificate in good standing is not eligible for reappointment. 

5. An assessor certificate is valid for a term of two years from the first day of 
the calendar year for which it becomes effective. 

6. A class I assessor certificate may be renewed if the holder has completed 
twenty hours of approved classroom instruction or seminars during the 
term of the certificate. For purposes of this subsection. an assessor 
certificate holder is entitled to one and one-half hours of credit for each 
hour spent as an instructor of approved classroom instruction or seminars 
during the term of the certificate. 

L A class II assessor certificate may be renewed if the holder has completed 
ten hours of approved classroom instruction or seminars during the term of 
the certificate. 

8. The state supervisor of assessments shall notify the holder of an assessor 
certificate of the time for application for renewal of the individual's 
certificate. The state supervisor of assessments shall notify the governing 
body of the taxing district employing an assessor whose certificate is not 
renewed or whose certificate is suspended or revoked. 

9. Any person who is denied a certificate under this section may appeal to the 
tax commissioner for a hearing under chapter 28-32. 

10. The tax commissioner may adopt rules under chapter 28-32 for the 
administration of this section. 

SECTION 5. AMENDMENT. Subsection 1 of section 57-02-08.1 of the North 
Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

1. a. Any person sixty-five years of age or older or permanently and totally 
disabled, in the year in which the tax was levied, with an income that 
does not exceed the limitations of subdivision c is entitled to receive a 
reduction in the assessment on the taxable valuation on the person's 
homestead. An exemption under this subsection applies regardless of 
whether the person is the head of a family. 

b. The exemption under this subsection continues to apply if the person 
does not reside in the homestead and the person's absence is due to 
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confinement in a nursing home, hospital, or other care facility, for as 
long as the portion of the homestead previously occupied by the 
person is not rented to another person. 

c. The exemption must be determined according to the following 
schedule: 

(1) If the person's income is not in excess of twenty-two thousand 
dollars, a reduction of one hundred percent of the taxable 
valuation of the person's homestead up to a maximum reduction 
of feliffive thousand fi.vesix hundred twenty-five dollars of 
taxable valuation. 

(2) If the person's income is in excess of twenty-two thousand 
dollars and not in excess of twenty-six thousand dollars, a 
reduction of eighty percent of the taxable valuation of the 
person's homestead up to a maximum reduction of tRfee.four 
thousand ~ve hundred dollars of taxable valuation. 

(3) If the person's income is in excess of twenty-six thousand 
dollars and not in excess of thirty thousand dollars, a reduction 
of sixty percent of the taxable valuation of the person's 
homestead up to a maximum reduction of two thousand 
seveRthree hundred seventy-five dollars of taxable valuation. 

(4) If the person's income is in excess of thirty thousand dollars and 
not in excess of thirty-four thousand dollars, a reduction of forty 
percent of the taxable valuation of the person's homestead up to 
a maximum reduction of eRetwo thousand ~o hundred fifty 
dollars of taxable valuation. 

(5) If the person's income is in excess of thirty-four thousand dollars 
and not in excess of thirty-eight thousand dollars, a reduction of 
twenty percent of the taxable valuation of the person's 
homestead up to a maximum reduction of flffieone thousand one 
hundred twenty-five dollars of taxable valuation. 

(6) If the person's income is in excess of thirty-eight thousand 
dollars and not in excess of forty-two thousand dollars, a 
reduction of ten percent of the taxable valuation of the person's 
homestead up to a maximum reduction of feliffive hundred 
fiftysixty-three dollars of taxable valuation. 

d. Persons residing together, as spouses or when one or more is a 
dependent of another, are entitled to only one exemption between or 
among them under this subsection. Persons residing together, who 
are not spouses or dependents, who are coowners of the property are 
each entitled to a percentage of a full exemption under this subsection 
equal to their ownership interests in the property. 

e. This subsection does not reduce the liability of any person for special 
assessments levied upon any property. 

f. Any person claiming the exemption under this subsection shall sign a 
verified statement of facts establishing the person's eligibility. 
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g. A person is ineligible for the exemption under this subsection if the 
value of the assets of the person and any dependent residing with the 
person exceeds five hundred thousand dollars, including the value of 
any assets divested within the last three years. 

h. The assessor shall attach the statement filed under subdivision f to 
the assessment sheet and shall show the reduction on the 
assessment sheet. 

i. An exemption under this subsection terminates at the end of the 
taxable year of the death of the applicant. 

SECTION 6. AMENDMENT. Section 57-02-33 of the North Dakota Century Code 
is amended and reenacted as follows: 

57-02-33. Assessor distristsservices for unorganized territory. 

All counties or parts of counties in this state not organized into oivil 
tmvnshipsAny area not within an organized township or city must be divided into 
assessor districts, whioh must be designated by the board of oounty 
oommissionersassessed by a certified assessor under the supervision and direction of 
the county director of tax equalization. The board of oounty commissioners shall 
appoint the district assessors to a four year term of offioe, the first term oommenoing on 
January 1, 1974. In oase of vaoanoy in the offioe of district assessor in any of suoh 
districts, suoh vaoanoies must be filled by the board of oounty commissioners for the 
balance of the term. In making the appointment of a district assessor, theThe county 
director of tax equalization for suoh oounty is eligible for appointment to a district 
assessor positionmay serve as an assessor of property under this section. Every 
individual performing assessor of territory not organized into oivil townships shall 
receive asservices under this section is entitled to compensation for services a sumand 
mileage and travel expenses determined by the board of county commissioners for the 
time actually and necessarily employed in making and completing the assessment of 
the districtproperty. The compensation and expenses must be paid from the treasury of 
the county in which suoh distriotthe assessed property is located only upon submission 
of an itemized statement setting forth the actual time spent in the work of the assessor 
and mileage traveled, approved by the board of county commissioners. In addition, the 
district assessor must be paid suoh mileage as is required to perform the duties of the 
offioe. The board of oounty commissioners has the authority to appoint a deputy 
assessor if needed, to be compensated in the same manner as the district assessor." 

Page 5, after line 27, insert: 

"SECTION 10. TRANSITION. The state supervisor of assessments shall 
recertify assessors at the end of the term of any certification that expires after July 31, 
2017, upon application and submission by the certificate holder of evidence of 
completion of required educational sessions under North Dakota Administrative Code 
chapter 81-02.1-02 or under section 57-02-01.1 or rules adopted to administer that 
section, subject to the following additional requirements: 

1. The holder of a township assessor or class II city assessor certification 
may be recertified as a certified class II assessor upon completion of the 
instruction required for class II assessor certification, with credit allowed by 
the state supervisor of assessments for any instruction previously received 
by the applicant for certification as a township assessor. 
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2. The holder of a class I city assessor or county director of tax equalization 
certification may be recertified as a certified class I assessor upon 
submission of evidence of completion of required education sessions 
during the term of the class I city assessor or county director of tax 
equalization certification." 

Renumber accordingly 
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Insert LC: 15.0149.03004 Title: 04000 

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE 
HB 1059, as reengrossed: Appropriations Committee (Sen. Holmberg, Chairman) 

recommends AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends 
DO PASS (13 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). 
Reengrossed HB 1059 was placed on the Sixth order on the calendar. 

Page 1, line 1, after "Act" insert "to create and enact section 57-02-01 .1 of the North Dakota 
Century Code, relating to training and certification of assessors;" 

Page 1, line 1, after "sections" insert "11-10.1-01, 11-10.1-05, and 57-01-05, subsection 1 of 
section 57-02-08.1 , and sections 57-02-33," 

Page 1, line 2, after "to" insert "training and certification of assessors, the homestead tax 
credit," 

Page 1, line 3, after the semicolon, insert "to provide for transition ;" 

Page 1, after line 5, insert: 

"SECTION 1. AMENDMENT. Section 11-10.1-01 of the North Dakota 
Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

11-10.1-01 . County director of tax equalization. 

1. The board of county commissioners of each county in this state shall 
appoint a county director of tax equalization who must be qualified and 
experienced in property appraisals, familiar with assessment and 
equalization procedures and techniques, and who is the holder ofholds a 
current certificatecertification as a class I assessor issued by the state 
supervisor of assessments. The state supervisor of assessments shall 
confer with representatives of the county commissioners, city governing 
bodies, state township officers association, and personnel at North 
Dakota state university to establish or re 11ise the minimum requirements 
for attaining the certificate. Any person who is denied such certificate 
may appeal to the state tax commissioner for a hearing under the 
provisions of chapter 28 32. 

2. The board of county commissioners may, in its discretion, appoint a 
personcounty director of tax equalization on a probationary basis who 
does not hold a current certificate as provided for in 
subsection 1certification as a class I assessor, if the board deems Stf6R 
~the individual qualified to act as county director of tax equalization 
by virtue of education , training , a00 experience. and willingness to obtain 
certification as a class I assessor. The appointment must be for a term of 
not more than tfifeetwo years. Any person receiving a probationary 
appointment who does not obtain a certificatecertification as a class I 
assessor within tfifeetwo years from the appointment is not eligible for 
reappointment. 

3. The county director of tax equalization shall serve at the pleasure of the 
board of county commissioners and may be employed on a full-time or 
part-time basis. Vacancies in the office of county director of tax 
equalization must be filled in the same manner as the original 
appointment. 

SECTION 2. AMENDMENT. Section 11-10.1-05 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 
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11-10.1-05. Powers and duties of county director of tax equalization -
Qualifications of assessors. 

1. The county director of tax equalization shall havehas the power, duty, 
and responsibility to call upon and confer with township and oity 
assessors in the county and to instruotassist them in the preparation and 
proper use of land maps and property record cards, tfle preparation of 
assessment books, tfle changes in assessment laws and 
regulationsrules, tfle determination of proper standards of value, tfle use 
of proper classifications of property, determination of what property 
qualifies as exempt from property taxes, and tfle authority to require 
attendance at meetings, to the end that apromote uniform assessment of 
all real property in the county will prevail. 

2. Any city with a population of under five thousand or township may, by 
resolution of its governing body, retain an assessor who is certified or 
eligible to be certified as a class II assessor who shall retain the powers, 
duties. and responsibilities of the office. Any city with a population of five 
thousand or greater may. by resolution of its governing body, retain an 
assessor who is certified or eligible to be certified as a class I assessor 
who shall retain the powers, duties, and responsibilities of the office. A 
person may not serve as an assessor for longer than twenty-four months 
before being certified by the state supervisor of assessments as having 
met the minimum requirements. The expenses of the city or township 
assessors must be paid by the city or township exercising this option. 

2-:-.1_ On January 1, 1981, theThe county director of tax equalization shall 
suooeed to all the powers and duties of assessors of townships, oities 
with a population of under fi'w'e thousand, and unorganized 
distriotssupervise all individuals performing assessor services in the 
county and arrange for the assessment of property within the county, 
except that any oity with a population of under fii1e thousand or township 
may, at its option by resolution of its governing body, employ an assessor 
who shall retain the powers, duties, and responsibilities of the offioe. The 
resolutionwithin the jurisdiction of a city or township in which the 
governing body to employ anretains a certified class I or class II assessor 
oontinues in foroe until resoinded by the governing body. Notwithstanding 
any other provision of law to the oontrary, the state supervisor of 
assessments shall oonfer with representatives of the oounty 
oommissioners, oity governing bodies, state township offioers 
assooiation, and personnel at North Dakota state university to establish 
minimum requirements for all oity and township assessors. The 
standards shall refleot their limited jurisdiotion and need not be equal to 
those minimum requirements set for oounty direotors of tax equalization. 
Any oourses of instruotion inoluded in those minimum requirements for 
assessors of townships or oities with a population under five thousand 
must be oonduoted by the oounty direotor of tax equalization who may 
oooperate with other oounty direotors of tax equalization in holding joint 
Glasses. The oounty direotor of tax equalization may oall upon the state 
supervisor of assessments for any neoessary materials and assistanoe. 
No person may serve as an assessor of a township or a oity with a 
population under five thousand for longer than twelve months before 
being oertifled by the state supervisor of assessments as having met the 
minimum requirements. No person may seF\'e as an assessor of a oity 
with a population of five thousand or more for longer than three years 
before being oertified by the state supervisor of assessments as having 
met the minimum requirements. The expenses and salaries of oity and 
township assessors must be paid by the oity or township exeroising this 
~-
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64. Any city or township wh+GRthat does not employ its ownretain a certified 
class I or class II assessor shall utilize the certified assessor of the 
county in which the city or township is located. The county commission 
may require the city or township to reimburse the county for the 
expenses incurred in assessing the property of that city or township. 

4:-~ Any assessment made by an assessor who is not currently certified as 
qualified for that assessment jurisdiction must be reviewed and approved 
by a certified county director of ta>< equalization, or a certified city 
assessor of a city with a population of five thousand or moreassessor, 
prior to the township or city board of equalization annual meeting . The 
cost of the assessment review must be paid by the township or city 
having jurisdiction over the assessment at the same rate as paid to a 
special assessor in section 57-14-08. 

SECTION 3. AMENDMENT. Section 57-01-05 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

57-01-05. State supervisor of assessments. 

The state tax commissioner shall appoint a state supervisor of assessments 
who must be a person trained and experienced in property appraisals and familiar 
with assessment and equalization procedures and techniques. The state supervisor 
of assessments serves at the pleasure of the state tax commissioner and office 
space must be furnished to the state supervisor of assessments by the 
commissioner. 

The state supervisor of assessments shall perform the following duties under 
the direction of the tax commissioner: 

1. The state supervisor of assessments shall advise and give the various 
assessors in the state the necessary instructions and directions as to 
their duties under the laws of this state, to the end that apromote uniform 
assessment of all real and personal property in this state will be attained . 

2. The state supervisor of assessments shall assist and instruct the various 
assessors in this state in the use of soil reconnaissance surveys, land 
classification methods, ffi-#\e preparation and proper use of land maps 
and record cards, ffi-#\e proper classification of real and personal 
property, and ffi-#\e determination of proper standards of value. 

3. The state supervisor of assessments may require the attendance of 
groups of assessors at meetings called by the state supervisor of 
assessments for the purpose of giving them further assistance and 
instruction as to their duties. 

4. The state supervisor of assessments may make sales, market, and 
productivity studies and other studies of property assessments in the 
various counties and cities of this state for the purpose ofto properly 
advisingadvise the various assessors and directors of tax equalization in 
the state and for the purpose of recommendingto recommend to the tax 
commissioner changes to be made by the state board of equalization in 
the performance of tAeits equalization powers and duties prescribed for it 
by section 57 1 a 04 . In any sales, market, and productivity study made 
according to section 57-01-06, the county directors of tax equalization or 
city assessors, as the case may be, are responsible for compiling shall 
compile a record of sales of property made in the county or city, and in 
conjunction with the board of county commissioners shall analyze the 
sales for the purpose of advising the state supervisor of assessments as 
to the value of using the sales in any such study. The compilations must 
be forwarded to the state supervisor of assessments with the findings of 
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the county director of tax equalization , city assessors, and the board of 
county commissioners. In any county or city or any part thereof where the 
number of sales of properties is insufficient for making a sales, market, 
and productivity study, the county director of tax equalization or city 
assessor, as the case may be, in cooperation with the state supervisor of 
assessments or that person's assistants shall make appraisals of 
properties in order to determine the market value. 

5. The state supervisor of assessments shall cooperate with North Dakota 
state university in the development of a soil mapping program, a land 
classification system, valuation studies, and other matters relating to the 
assessment of property and shall provide for the use of such information 
and procedure at the earliest possible date by the assessors of this state. 

6. The state supervisor of assessments has general supervision of 
assessors and county directors of tax equalization pertaining to methods 
and procedures of assessment of all property and has authority to require 
all county directors of tax equalization to do any act necessary to obtain 
uniform methods and procedures of assessment. 

7. Whenever an investigation by the state supervisor of assessments shows 
there is probable cause to believe the holder of a certificate issued by the 
state supervisor of assessments under ohapter 11 10.1 section 
57-02-01 .1 has failed to comply with any of the provisions of this titlelaw 
pertaining to assessments, or any rules presoribedadopted by the tax 
commissioner, the state supervisor of assessments may petition the tax 
commissioner for a hearing to show cause why the certificate should be 
suspended or revoked . 

a. The state supervisor of assessments must provide the certificate 
holder at least ten days' notice of the time and place of the hearing . 

b. If cause to suspend or revoke the certificate is shown , the tax 
commissioner may suspend or revoke the certificate. 

c. The tax commissioner may restore a certificate after suspension or 
revocation . 

d. An individual whose certificate has been suspended or revoked in 
the manner provided in this section may appeal that determination to 
the district court as provided in section 28-32-42 . 

8. If a certificate holder's certificate is suspended or revoked under this 
section, the governing body of the county in which the certificate holder 
performs duties shall ensure the continued administration of 
assessments within that county by a person authorized under section 
11-10. 1-05 and be responsible for any expenses associated with the 
fulfillment of this responsibility. Expenses incurred by a county to fulfill the 
duties of a township or city assessment official whose certificate has 
been suspended or revoked must be charged to the political subdivision 
in which the certificate holder is employed and must either be paid 
directly to the county by the political subdivision or deducted by the 
county treasurer from funds coming into the treasurer's control which are 
apportionable to the subdivision. 

9. The state supervisor of assessments shall perform such other duties 
relating to assessment and taxation of property as the tax commissioner 
directs. 

10. The tax commissioner may presoribeadopt rules under chapter 28-32 
necessary for the detailed and effioient administration of this section. 
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SECTION 4. Section 57-02-01 .1 of the North Dakota Century Code is 
created and enacted as follows: 

57-02-01.1. Certification of assessors. 

The state supervisor of assessments shall certify assessors as provided in this 
section . 

.L To be certified as a class I assessor. an individual must: 

fL Have a high school diploma or its equivalent. 

~ Successfully complete one hundred eighty hours of assessment and 
appraisal instruction approved by the state supervisor of 
assessments. The number of hours of instruction determined 
necessary by the state supervisor of assessments for each of the 
following topics is required : 

ill Tax administration. 

ill Principles and theory of value. 

Ql Residential property appraisal. 

(11 Commercial property appraisal. 

.{fil Agricultural property valuation . 

2. To be certified as a class II assessor. an individual must: 

fL Have a high school diploma or its equivalent. 

~ Successfully complete one hundred hours of assessment and 
appraisal instruction approved by the state supervisor of 
assessments. The number of hours of instruction determined 
necessary by the state supervisor of assessments for each of the 
following topics is required : 

ill Tax administration. 

ill Principles and theory of value. 

Ql Residential property appraisal. 

(11 Commercial property appraisal. 

.{fil Agricultural property valuation. 

~ The state supervisor of assessments may allow credit against required 
instruction in any topic under subdivision b of subsection 1 and 
subdivision b of subsection 2 upon receipt of documented training in this 
state or another state in the topic. 

~ An individual appointed as an assessor must hold the required assessor 
certificate at the time of appointment or obtain that certificate within two 
years after initial appointment or by July 31. 2017. whichever is later. An 
assessor who does not obtain the required certificate within two years 
after initial appointment or by July 31. 2017. whichever is later. or who 
does not maintain that certificate in good standing is not eligible for 
reappointment. 
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~ An assessor certificate is valid for a term of two years from the first day of 
the calendar year for which it becomes effective. 

~ A class I assessor certificate may be renewed if the holder has 
completed twenty hours of approved classroom instruction or seminars 
during the term of the certificate. For purposes of this subsection. an 
assessor certificate holder is entitled to one and one-half hours of credit 
for each hour spent as an instructor of approved classroom instruction or 
seminars during the term of the certificate. 

L A class II assessor certificate may be renewed if the holder has 
completed ten hours of approved classroom instruction or seminars 
during the term of the certificate. 

§.,_ The state supervisor of assessments shall notify the holder of an 
assessor certificate of the time for application for renewal of the 
individual's certificate. The state supervisor of assessments shall notify 
the governing body of the taxing district employing an assessor whose 
certificate is not renewed or whose certificate is suspended or revoked. 

~ Any person who is denied a certificate under this section may appeal to 
the tax commissioner for a hearing under chapter 28-32. 

~ The tax commissioner may adopt rules under chapter 28-32 for the 
administration of this section . 

SECTION 5. AMENDMENT. Subsection 1 of section 57-02-08.1 of the North 
Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

1. a. Any person sixty-five years of age or older or permanently and totally 
disabled, in the year in which the tax was levied, with an income that 
does not exceed the limitations of subdivision c is entitled to receive 
a reduction in the assessment on the taxable valuation on the 
person's homestead. An exemption under this subsection applies 
regardless of whether the person is the head of a family. 

b. The exemption under this subsection continues to apply if the person 
does not reside in the homestead and the person's absence is due 
to confinement in a nursing home, hospital, or other care facility, for 
as long as the portion of the homestead previously occupied by the 
person is not rented to another person. 

c. The exemption must be determined according to the following 
schedule: 

(1) DESK (3) COMMITTEE 

(1) If the person's income is not in excess of twenty-two thousand 
dollars, a reduction of one hundred percent of the taxable 
valuation of the person's homestead up to a maximum 
reduction of fooffive thousand fivesix hundred twenty-five 
dollars of taxable valuation . 

(2) If the person's income is in excess of twenty-two thousand 
dollars and not in excess of twenty-six thousand dollars, a 
reduction of eighty percent of the taxable valuation of the 
person's homestead up to a maximum reduction of tRfeefour 
thousand ~five hundred dollars of taxable valuation . 

(3) If the person's income is in excess of twenty-six thousand 
dollars and not in excess of thirty thousand dollars, a reduction 
of sixty percent of the taxable valuation of the person's 
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homestead up to a maximum reduction of two thousand 
seveRthree hundred seventy-five dollars of taxable valuation . 

(4) If the person's income is in excess of thirty thousand dollars 
and not in excess of thirty-four thousand dollars, a reduction of 
forty percent of the taxable valuation of the person's 
homestead up to a maximum reduction of ooetwo thousand 
~o hundred fifty dollars of taxable valuation . 

(5) If the person's income is in excess of thirty-four thousand 
dollars and not in excess of thirty-eight thousand dollars, a 
reduction of twenty percent of the taxable valuation of the 
person's homestead up to a maximum reduction of Affieone 
thousand one hundred twenty-five dollars of taxable valuation. 

(6) If the person's income is in excess of thirty-eight thousand 
dollars and not in excess of forty-two thousand dollars, a 
reduction of ten percent of the taxable valuation of the person's 
homestead up to a maximum reduction of fetH:five hundred 
fi#ysixty-three dollars of taxable valuation . 

d. Persons residing together, as spouses or when one or more is a 
dependent of another, are entitled to only one exemption between or 
among them under this subsection. Persons residing together, who 
are not spouses or dependents, who are coowners of the property 
are each entitled to a percentage of a full exemption under this 
subsection equal to their ownership interests in the property. 

e. This subsection does not reduce the liability of any person for special 
assessments levied upon any property. 

f. Any person claiming the exemption under this subsection shall sign 
a verified statement of facts establishing the person's eligibility. 

g. A person is ineligible for the exemption under this subsection if the 
value of the assets of the person and any dependent residing with 
the person exceeds five hundred thousand dollars, including the 
value of any assets divested within the last three years. 

h. The assessor shall attach the statement filed under subdivision f to 
the assessment sheet and shall show the reduction on the 
assessment sheet. 

i. An exemption under this subsection terminates at the end of the 
taxable year of the death of the applicant. 

SECTION 6. AMENDMENT. Section 57-02-33 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

57 -02-33. Assessor distristsservices for unorganized territory. 

,'\II oounties or parts of oounties in this state not organized into oivil 
townshipsAny area not within an organized township or city must be divided into 
assessor distriots, whioh must be designated by the board of oounty 
oommissionersassessed by a certified assessor under the supervision and direction 
of the county director of tax equalization. The board of oounty oommissioners shall 
appoint the distriot assessors to a four year term of offioe, the first term oommenoing 
on January 1, 1974. In ease of vaoanoy in the offioe of distriot assessor in any of 
suoh distriots, suoh vaoanoies must be filled by the board of oounty oommissioners 
for the balanoe of the term. In making the appointment of a distriot assessor, theThe 
county director of tax equalization for suoh oounty is eligible for appointment to a 
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distriot assessor positionmay serve as an assessor of property under this section. 
Every individual performing assessor of territory not organized into oivil townships 
shall reoeive asservices under this section is entitled to compensation for servioes a 
wmand mileage and travel expenses determined by the board of county 
commissioners for the time actually and necessarily employed in making and 
oompleting the assessment of the distriotproperty. The compensation and expenses 
must be paid from the treasury of the county in which suoh distriotthe assessed 
property is located only upon submission of an itemized statement setting forth the 
actual time spent in the work of the assessor and mileage traveled, approved by the 
board of county commissioners. In addition, the distriot assessor must be paid suoh 
mileage as is required to perform the duties of the offioe. The board of oounty 
oommissioners has the authority to appoint a deputy assessor if needed, to be 
oompensated in the same manner as the distriot assessor." 

Page 5, after line 27, insert: 

"SECTION 10. TRANSITION. The state supervisor of assessments shall 
recertify assessors at the end of the term of any certification that expires after July 
31, 2017, upon application and submission by the certificate holder of evidence of 
completion of required educational sessions under North Dakota Administrative 
Code chapter 81-02.1-02 or under section 57-02-01 .1 or rules adopted to administer 
that section , subject to the following additional requirements: 

1. The holder of a township assessor or class II city assessor certification 
may be recertified as a certified class II assessor upon completion of the 
instruction required for class II assessor certification , with credit allowed 
by the state supervisor of assessments for any instruction previously 
received by the applicant for certification as a township assessor. 

2. The holder of a class I city assessor or county director of tax equalization 
certification may be recertified as a certified class I assessor upon 
submission of evidence of completion of required education sessions 
during the term of the class I city assessor or county director of tax 
equalization certification ." 

Renumber accordingly 
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uction of bi l l/resolution : 

roperty tax rel ief credit. 

Chairman Headland :  Opened the conference committee. Do we al l  understand the 
changes the Senate made on the 1 2% property tax pol icy bi l l? 

Senator Cook: The only d ifference in  the homestead tax cred it is that we increased the 
evaluation to $ 1 25 ,000 versus $ 1 50,000 in the bi l l  that you ki l led . We also took out all of 
the increases in the brackets. It red uced the fiscal note down to $2.4 mi l l ion .  

Representative Haak: For the assessors, d id that go back up  to the 1 80 hour requ i rement 
from the 24 hours? 

Senator Cook: Look at Section . . .  

Chairman Headland :  Page seven,  Subsection two . 

Senator Cook: We created a Class 2 assessor for smal l  cities and townsh ips with 1 00 
hours of tra in ing .  That addressed the major concern of the floor argument. 

Chairman Headland:  This is the area of the bil l  we need to talk about. I 've had many 
conversations with some house members who have g rave concerns about the educational 
requ i rement, even at 1 00 hours .  I can understand and maybe even agree that more 
tra in ing is needed , but I wonder if there is a compromise we cou ld come to on the amount 
of tra in ing that you have in th is b i l l ,  or do you feel l ike your  compromise is a l ready in the bi l l  
at 1 00 hours? 

Senator Cook: When we had the debate on the floor the other day, I d id some research to 
find out how often Vanguard ,  an Iowa company, is called to North Dakota to reassess 
property. General ly ,  there are 5 to 7 ju risd ictions in North Dakota that are h iring Vanguard 
to come in  and total ly reassess their entire pol itical subd ivision . This last year  the entire 
cou nty of Golden Va l ley had to reassess. They paid $ 1 52 , 000.  The town of Stan ley has 
been reassessed by Vanguard ,  and they did the entire commercial d istrict of Dickinson.  
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LaMoure County and Dunn County are coming up .  Ol iver County, Apple Creek Township,  
and Reed Township i n  Cass County have done it .  There is on ly one reason why pol itica l 
subd ivisions have to pay that type of money, a mi l l ion dol lars a year, to a private company 
to assess property. It is because someone has made an argument that it is not being 
equal ized ; a Constitutional argument that their taxes are not being done right. I don't know 
what the solution is to that problem , but I don't know how any of us can sit here and say 
that we don't have a problem with assessments. We HAVE a problem that we need to fix. 
Th is is an attempt. Why aren't assessments being done right? Is it tra in ing ;  is it i ntentional ;  
or just plain incompetence? I would l ike to think that i t  is tra in ing ,  and with improvement of 
the train ing we cou ld make some progress in  addressing this problem . Assessment is 
where property taxes start. If the assessment isn't right, there is not a chance of having a 
happy tax payer anywhere in the process. 

Chairman Headland:  I totally agree with you .  I represent a rura l  d istrict, and I know in the 
counties that I represent there are a lot of township assessors . If LaMoure County is one 
that has had to pay a company to come in and reassess, that is a problem . It d i rectly fa l ls 
on the backs of the property tax payer as wel l .  I don't know what the solution is either. 
When you came up with the 1 00 hour requirement, what was the rationale beh ind that, or 
was it s imply a compromise down from the 1 80 hour req uirement? 

Senator Cook: It wasn't a random number. We had a lot of conversations with assessors 
that are in  the field , and they contributed to the decis ion . Linda Ledbetter a lso helped , and 
I trust what she says about what type of train ing an assessor has to have to do the proper 
job. She th inks that 1 00 hours is correct. 

Representative Haak: What would the cost be of 1 00 hours of assessment tra in ing? 

Senator Cook: A lot less than a mi l l ion dol lars.  It depends on how they get the tra in ing 
too. 

Chairman Headland : Was 1 80 hours about $5500? 

Linda Leadbetter, State S upervisor of Assessments :  $2 1 00 .  

Representative Haak: I agree with everyth ing you're saying , Senator Cook. I th ink that 
this is a property tax issue. I do also share the same concerns as the chairman in  getting 
this through the House. 

Chairman Headland:  Linda ,  we have a body that is rea l ly going to question making any 
move at a l l .  I thought that I had offered a fa irly insign ificant solution i n  the House Bi l l ,  and 
that got shot down , and that d idn't have any additional education requirement in it. It d id 
g ive the county the abi l ity to say yes or no to the assessment. Is  there a way to provide the 
education that you feel is necessary (in tax admin istration ,  princip les of theory of va lue, 
residential property appraisal ,  and commercial ag . )  and accomplish that in  someth ing less 
than 1 00 hours of tra in ing? 

Linda Leadbetter, State Supervisor of Assessments :  I wi l l  address that with how we 
came to the 1 80 hours start ing with those in itial courses that g ive you the basics of how to 
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do al l  assessment, which takes 50 hours .  Those are the basic tools of u nderstanding how 
to measure,  how a l l  of those things have an impact, how they fol low through to the taxes 
and mi l l  levies, and how a l l  of those things work together. It g ives an understand ing of 
applying value to j ust the simplest basic measurement of a home. The next ones would be 
provided at a level that would not be as strict and not as many hours involved as a Class 1 ,  
but it would g ive them enough tra in ing to sti l l  do those things in  those jurisd ictions that are 
going to occur. You are going to have someone in the country having an  elevator business 
on their farm that needed assessment, then they would sti l l  have the basics .  Then the tax 
d i rector, who wou ld be someone who could provide gu idance to them, wou ld have the next 
level of tra in ing to help them with the real extreme details of it. I do think that the 1 00 hours 
that we identified are the ones that wi l l  g ive us a sound assessment at the local level .  

Senator Cook: A person who is going to assess a farm on the city l imits of a town wi l l  
have to know how to assess commercia l ,  residentia l ,  and ag .  land , if  they are going to get i t  
r ight .  If they don't have the correct train ing they should not be able to s ign off on it. 

Senator Triplett: Is  the tra in ing beyond the 50 hours in modules that they would learn 
residentia l ,  then agriculture ,  and commercial separately? 

Linda Leadbetter: Yes , and for the most part it wi l l  be ava i lable onl ine,  and they wi l l  be 
able to test onl ine.  The agricultural class will be d irected sti l l  by the Office of State Tax 
Commissioner because it is specific to North Dakota . So, we would be able to provide that 
on a more regular basis and hopefu l ly at a regional level .  

Senator Triplett: Maybe the solution wou ld be a combination of these two ideas of 
tra in ing ,  or having the county tax equal ization d i rector sign off so. Then in some of the rura l  
townships i f  the assessor only wanted to be responsible for ag .  land , they could do the 50 
hours plus the 1 5  hour  module for agriculture .  Then they wou ld not have the authority to do 
the smal l  towns that are in there, and it wou ld be left to the county. Could that be a 
possibi l ity to have smal l  town loca l assessors that are qual ified for some aspects but not 
others? 

Linda Leadbetter: That could be achieved , but it wou ld requ i re a lot of detai l  to consider 
how we are handl ing the processes right now. Because we do identify that if any 
assessment has been provided on a property, and it has been completed by someone who 
is not certified , someone who has either a Class 1 City Assessor or Tax Director 
Certification is requ i red to approve those assessments p rior to their local meetings. We 
are handl ing that situation right now, and we have several townships that didn't have an 
assessor, and they aren't hold ing meetings. We have one township in  which the township 
supervisors wi l l  not come together and have a quorum because they cannot get along to do 
it. We are helping them with the dates and meeting the dead l ines. I do bel ieve that those 
th ings cou ld be add ressed and changed , but there is a lot of it to try to be accompl ished . I 
would be afraid to say with in the next ten days. 

Representative Owens: You stated that it was 50 hours for the basics? Was that the Tax 
Admin istration and the Principles i n  Theories of Value? 
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Linda Leadbetter: That is a five course IAAO ( I nternational Assessing Association 
Officers) which has five courses. They are each ten hours,  and they address each of the 
basics .  The other courses that we are proposing would g ive more detai l  and understanding 
on a commercia l ,  residentia l ,  or agricultural property. 

Chairman Headland:  You are a former county aud itor, correct? 

Linda Leadbetter: A former county aud itor and deputy tax d i rector. 

Chairman Headland:  Did you ever do assessing for a township? 

Linda Leadbetter: I was a township assessor before I was a county aud itor. 

Senator Cook: How many hours of tra in ing did you have? 

Linda Leadbetter: 24 hours 

Chairman Headland:  What does it cost a township in  a county where they choose to sub 
out the assessing to the county? 

Linda Leadbetter: It rea l ly varies. 

Representative Haak: How many township assessors with 24 hours of tra in ing does North 
Dakota have? 

Linda Leadbetter: We have a l isting of assessors that are certified in the state of North 
Dakota of just over 1 ,  1 00 .  I don't know how many of those have taken additional hours 
beyond the 24 hours.  We have some that do chose to because they are in more developed 
areas l ike Burleigh County or Cass County where they want more residential tra in ing .  

Chairman Headland:  Any suggestions? Is there anything to contemplate i n  the area of 
compromise here? 

Senator Cook: This is one area that when it comes up for debate, the focus isn't real ly on 
the problem . We have to focus on the problem . There are folks that don't l ike this. There 
are groups that wil l  go  through the House and Senate and try to lobby for a no vote 
because of d ifferent reasons. Sometime, we need to sit down with some of the people that 
rea l ly find the problems with th is and have some private conversations with them about 
what we mig ht be able to do to fix this problem.  I would be happy to get more deta i led 
information from Vanguard about the exact magnitude of the problem and how long it has 
been going on. It is certain ly evidence that there is a problem . I would l ike to keep th is b i l l  
around a day or two and do what is  possible. To anyone who real ly doesn't l ike th is b i l l ,  I 
am reach ing out and asking to sit down and try to solve the problem . We need a solution .  

Chairman Headland :  The meeting was adjourned . 
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Chairman Headland:  Opened conference committee. 

Representative Owens: Discussed a proposed amendment but doesn't have a copy of it 
yet from Leg islative Counci l .  This amendment takes the assessor tra in ing of Class I I  from 
1 00 down to the absolute min imum in order to standard ize it. The standard ization is the 
in it ial tra in ing along with residential to 80 hours and al lowing the Supervisor of Assessment 
to adjust that. It wou ld a lso make it avai lable on l ine. The biggest problem I 've heard in a 
n umber of cases is not gett ing access to tra in ing .  I 've been told that ha lf of the people who 
are taking a book then taking this test are fai l ing .  This wou ld standard ize it across the state 
and get a good basis for it. Eighty hours was the smal lest we cou ld get to cover the areas. 
The amendment wou ld change that to 80 hours and leaving everyth ing else. Add itional ly, 
the amendment will have the excess levy requ irements for fire d istricts . We approved it in 
conference committee three or four  times on various amendments and somehow the final 
amendment d id n't include it in  there. It dealt with bond ing so when an excess levy is 
approved it has a time l im it for reauthorization.  If it's specific to a bond ing requ i rement then 
it's unti l  the bond ing authorization is over with before it has to be reauthorized again .  

Senator Bekkedahl :  When you talk about the tra in ing onl ine d id you talk about the train ing 
being ava i lable through the Ivan Network or some interactive format? 

Representative Owens: Onl ine and/or a classroom was d iscussed . Once we have an 
on l ine modu le even though you say 50 hours the point was made that if  this modu le is 
rated at 1 2  hours and it takes you three to do it you' l l  sti l l  get the 1 2  hour cred its. It's rated 
at a certain level for an average person doing certain  things and such . The deal was 
accessibi l ity standard ization and focus on giving the people an opportunity to get tra ined 
rather than just read a book. 

Senator Triplett: Have you d iscussed this amendment with Ms. Leadbetter and was she 
comfortable with it? 
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Representative Owens: That's who I was ta lk ing too. She's the one who is putting it 
together onl ine, mentioned it also by class and explained about the 1 2  hours but doing it in  
three. I 'm rea l ly just quoting her. 

Senator Cook: I had a conversation with the mayor of Marion regard ing their loca l 
assessor. I asked the mayor why they even have a city assessor and why they just don't 
let the county do it but I rea l ly d idn't get an answer. LaMoure County's commercial property 
has to be assessed by Vanguard to get it right. It's not on ly assessors but city officials and 
county officia ls that need to understand the importance of the job of assessment. Mr. 
Meidinger, the county assessor for LaMoure County, said he thought one of the biggest 
chal lenges was assessors today were looking at 1 00 hours of tra in ing but they are not able 
to find when and how soon they can get the tra in ing .  I th ink we real ly need to make i t  clear 
when a l l  this tra in ing is avai lable to a l l  the assessors . Distributed a 1 978 report titled 
Blueprint for Property Tax Reform in North Dakota ;  see attachment #1 . This issue has 
been here for a long time. I th ink this is a step in the right d i rection .  I 'd be happy with 80 
hours i f  that's what i t  takes to get i t  out of here. 

Senator Triplett: I 'm okay with 80 hours too. I th ink  we should add a goal statement that 
before 20 1 8  we solve this problem so we can say that it wasn't around for more than 1 00 
years. 

Chairman Headland:  There's one other issue that appears in  this b i l l  that the house has 
taken a stand on and that's homestead tax cred it. Could we agree to remove that from the 
bi l l? The house has voted decisively on the issue. 

Senator Cook: I understand you voted decisively on the issue. Senator Oehlke offered 
th is amendment in the appropriations committee so I would l ike to visit with h im about this. 
There's a change in  this from what you voted on and that has reduced the fiscal rate from 
$8 mi l l ion to $2 .5  mi l l ion .  Does that lessen your d is l ike that you had for it the fi rst time you 
saw it? 

Chairman Headland:  I 'm not sure that it does. In the debate on the house floor it was 
bel ieved that for severa l bienniums in a row we've addressed this and we've i ncreased it. 
We real ly haven't used all the money that's been appropriated for the program.  The fact is 
that maybe we should just take a rest for a couple years and see if participation can catch 
up to the money that has a l ready been appropriated . 

Senator Bekkedahl :  I n  2006 the city of Wi l l iston had an average home valuation of 
$65,000. In 201 2  the average home valuation was $260 ,000.  This is truly an  issue that is 
pricing people out of their homes. It's no longer just the people l iv ing i n  mobi le homes that 
are being d isplaced by mobi le homes being purchased by out of state interests and jacking 
the rents from $300 to $ 1 ,200 a month . They are leaving or being forced out .  It's no longer 
just the rents in  the apartments where the rates went from $350 a month to $2 ,500 a 
month . They've been priced out. People are exit ing their homes because they have been 
forced out. It is now an issue that those valuations and the people that had their homes 
that are paid for are l iving on fixed incomes . They never thought they would be touched by 
this issue, but are now being touched by this issue because they have tax rates under this 
program with homes under $ 1 00,000 that and are now paying taxes on $ 1 60, 000 valuation 
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or more and wi l l  be p riced out of their  homes with taxes. I 've heard in  the property tax 
debate that people a re now losing their houses to taxes. This is an issue where it is going 
to start happening .  It may be in  my d istrict now but I think it wil l  go everywhere else at 
some point. It amazes me that we can pass $ 1 08 mi l l ion i n  i ncome tax relief to people, 
some of which rea lly  don't need it, and not look at this $2 mi l l ion fiscal note and help the 
people that real ly do need it. 

Chairman Headland:  You brought up something that I don 't bel ieve the house is going to 
look at favorably. I don't want to lose this bi l l  because of an issue that wasn't part of the b i l l  
and maybe shouldn't have been put in  the bi l l .  That's what we'l l  d iscuss moving forward .  

Senator Cook: We're not going to lose this b i l l .  We're going to get i t  to the governor. We 
j ust h ave to figu re out the way to accompl ish that. 

Chairman Headland:  We wil l  adjourn until we can get the amendments. 
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Chairman Headland:  Opened committee hearing.  

Representative Owens: Distributed proposed amendment 1 5 . 0 1 49 .03007 and a 
Christmas tree version of the b i l l  1 5 .0 1 49 . 03007 and explained ; see attachments #1 and 2 .  
The only thing I changed was on page seven where i t  says, "to be successfu l ly complete 80 
hours" rather than 1 00 hours.  I n  the Christmas tree version on page four  l ine 14 that is 
correcting what we left out of H B  1 056 on the bond ing .  On page five l ines 1 9-21 and 24-25 
it ta lks about bond ing and the th ings that were left out of the last amendment that had been 
in every other amendment we had before . On page n ine l ine 1 6  is where it says to 
complete 80 hours .  Everything else should read as amended by the senate. 

Chairman Headland : We're sti l l  in negotiations on homestead tax credits . 

Senator Cook: I move we adjourn .  

Chairman Headland : Adjourned . 
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C hairman Headland: We are still waiting for amendments. Meeting adjourned. 
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Chairman Headland :  We have amendments .  

Representative Owens: Distributed proposed amendments and Christmas tree version of 
the b i l l  1 5 . 0 1 49 . 030 1 O; see attachments #1 and 2 .  There is a sl ight d ifference.  The senate 
recedes and adds back on senate amendments with some minor changes. It takes us to 
80 hours for the class I I  assessor instead of 1 00 hours.  On page four  of the Christmas tree 
version the fi re protection pol icy is back in there with a s l ight change on page 5 from l ines 
1 9  to 2 1  and 24-25 then on page n ine we change 1 00 hours to 80 hours.  Everything else 
remains the same unt i l  we get to page 1 8  where the effective is changed so that section six 
is effective beg inn ing after December 3 1 , 20 1 5 . Section six is the change to the value of 
property that is exempt. We are not increasing the brackets or the asset levels associated 
with the Homestead Act but we are changing the amount of the exemption from each 
category from $1 00,000 to $ 1 25 ,000.  

Chairman Headland:  Essential ly it's the same language as put in  the bi l l  from the senate . 

Representative Owens: That is correct. It d id not change from the senate version . 

Representative Haak: How does this affect the fiscal note? 

Senator Cook: There wil l  be no fiscal note. The tax department believes they can absorb 
this in their current budget for the Homestead Tax Credit. 

Senator Cook: Made a motion for the Senate to recede from Senate amendments 
and amends. 

Representative Haak: Second. 

Roll  call vote : 6 yes 0 no 0 absent 

Motion carried . 
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PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO REENGROSSED HOUSE BILL NO. 1059 

That the Senate recede from its amendments as printed on pages 1735-17 42 of the House 
Journal and pages 1487-1494 of the Senate Journal and that Reengrossed House Bill No. 
1059 be amended as follows: 

Page 1, line 1, after "Act" insert "to create and enact section 57-02-01.1 of the North Dakota 
Century Code, relating to training and certification of assessors;" 

Page 1, line 1, after "sections" insert "11-10.1-01 , 11-10.1-05, 18-10-07, and 57-01-05, 
subsection 1 of section 57-02-08.1, and sections 57-02-33," 

Page 1, line 2, after "to" insert "training and certification of assessors, the homestead tax credit, 
rural fire protection district increased levy approval ," 

Page 1, line 3, after the semicolon, insert "to provide for transition;" 

Page 1, after line 5, insert: 

"SECTION 1. AMENDMENT. Section 11-10.1-01 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

11-10.1-01. County director of tax equalization. 

1. The board of county commissioners of each county in this state shall 
appoint a county director of tax equalization who must be qualified and 
experienced in property appraisals, familiar with assessment and 
equalization procedures and techniques, and who is the holder ofholds a 
current certificatecertification as a class I assessor issued by the state 
supervisor of assessments. The state supervisor of assessments shall 
confer with representatives of the county commissioners, city governing 
bodies, state township officers association, and personnel at North Dakota 
state university to establish or revise the minimum requirements for 
attaining the certificate. Any person who is denied such certificate may 
appeal to the state tax commissioner for a hearing under the provisions of 
chapter 28 32. 

2. The board of county commissioners may, in its discretion, appoint a 
personcounty director of tax equalization on a probationary basis who does 
not hold a current certifiaate as provided for in subseation 1 certification as 
a class I assessor, if the board deems such personthe individual qualified 
to act as county director of tax equalization by virtue of education, training, 
aR<i experience. and willingness to obtain certification as a class I 
assessor. The appointment must be for a term of not more than tAreetwo 
years. Any person receiving a probationary appointment who does not 
obtain a aertifiaatecertification as a class I assessor within tAreetwo years 
from the appointment is not eligible for reappointment. 

3. The county director of tax equalization shall serve at the pleasure of the 
board of county commissioners and may be employed on a full-time or 
part-time basis. Vacancies in the office of county director of tax 
equalization must be filled in the same manner as the original appointment. 

Page No. 1 15.0149.03010 



SECTION 2. AMENDMENT. Section 11-10.1-05 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

11-10.1-05. Powers and duties of county director of tax equalization -
Qualifications of assessors. 

1. The county director of tax equalization shall havehas the power, duty, and 
responsibility to call upon and confer with township and city assessors in 
the county and to instructassist them in the preparation and prbper use of 
land maps and property record cards, tAe preparation of assessment 
books, tAe changes in assessment laws and regulationsrules, tAe 
determination of proper standards of value, tAe use of proper 
classifications of property, determination of what property qualifies as 
exempt from property taxes. and tAe authority to require attendance at 
meetings, to the end that apromote uniform assessment of all real property 
in the county will prevail. 

2. Any city with a population of under five thousand or township may, by 
resolution of its governing body, retain an assessor who is certified or 
eligible to be certified as a class II assessor who shall retain the powers. 
duties, and responsibilities of the office. Any city with a population of five 
thousand or greater may, by resolution of its governing body, retain an 
assessor who is certified or eligible to be certified as a class I assessor 
who shall retain the powers. duties. and responsibilities of the office. A 
person may not serve as an assessor for longer than twenty-four months 
before being certified by the state supervisor of assessments as having 
met the minimum requirements. The expenses of the city or township 
assessors must be paid by the city or township exercising this option. 

~3. On January 1, 1981, theThe county director of tax equalization shall 
succeed to all the powers and duties of assessors of townships, cities 'Nith 
a population of under five thousand, and unorganized districtssupervise all 
individuals performing assessor services in the county and arrange for the 
assessment of property within the county, except that any city with a 
population of under five thousand or township may, at its option by 
resolution of its governing body, employ an assessor who shall retain the 
powers, duties, and responsibilities of the office. The resolutionwithin the 
jurisdiction of a city or township in which the governing body to employ 
ooretains a certified class I or class II assessor continues in force until 
rescinded by the governing body. Notwithstanding any other provision of 
law to the contrary, the state supervisor of assessments shall confer with 
representatives of the county commissioners, city governing bodies, state 
township officers association, and personnel at North Dakota state 
university to establish minimum requirements for all city and township 
assessors. The standards shall reflect their limited jurisdiction and need 
not be equal to those minimum requirements set for county directors of tax 
equalization. Any courses of instruction included in those minimum 
requirements for assessors of to't'mships or cities with a population under 
five thousand must be conducted by the county director of tax equalization 
who may cooperate with other county directors of tax equalization in 
holding joint classes. The county director of tax equalization may call upon 
the state supervisor of assessments for any necessary materials and 
assistance. No person may serve as an assessor of a township or a city 
with a population under five thousand for longer than twelve months before 
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being certified by the state supervisor of assessments as having met the 
minimum requirements. No person may serve as an assessor of a city with 
a population of five thousand or more for longer than three years before 
being certified by the state supervisor of assessments as having met the 
minimum requirements. The expenses and salaries of city and township 
assessors must be paid by the city or township exercising this option. 

M. Any city or township wl=Heflthat does not employ its ownretain a certified 
class I or class II assessor shall utilize the certified assessor of the county 
in which the city or township is located. The county commission may 
require the city or township to reimburse the county for the expenses 
incurred in assessing the property of that city or township. 

4.-5. Any assessment made by an assessor who is not currently certified as 
qualified for that assessment jurisdiction must be reviewed and approved 
by a certified county director of tax equalization, or a certified city assessor 
of a city with a population of five thousand or moreassessor, prior to the 
township or city board of equalization annual meeting. The cost of the 
assessment review must be paid by the township or city having jurisdiction 
over the assessment at the same rate as paid to a special assessor in 
section 57-14-08. 

SECTION 3. AMENDMENT. Section 18-10-07 of the North Dakota Century Code 
as amended in section 1 of House Bill No. 1056, as approved by the sixty-fourth 
legislative assembly, is amended and reenacted as follows: 

18-10-07. Fire protection policy to be determined - Tax levy. 

The board of directors shall determine a general fire protection policy for the 
district and shall annually estimate the probable expense for carrying out the 
contemplated program. The annual estimate of probable expense may include an 
amount determined by the board of directors to be necessary to be carried over to a 
future year for purchase of firefighting equipment, ambulances, or other emergency 
vehicles. The estimate must be certified by the president and secretary to the proper 
county auditor or county auditors, on or before June thirtieth of each year, who shall 
levy a tax upon the taxable property within the district for the maintenance of the fire 
protection district for the fiscal year as provided by law. The tax may not exceed a tax 
rate of five mills per dollar of the taxable valuation of property in the district except 
upon resolution adopted by the board of directors and approval by a majority of the 
qualified electors voting on the question at an annual or special meeting of electors 
called by the board of directors, the levy may be made in an amount not exceeding 
thirteen mills. If an election to approve or reauthorize an excess levy will be held at an 
annual or special meeting of electors of the district called by the board of directors, 
notice of the meeting and the proposed excess levy election must be provided by at 
least one publication in the official newspaper of each county in which the district is 
located at least seven days, but not more than fourteen days, before the date of the 
public meeting. The published notice must include the amount of the proposed tax_rate 
increase in mills and the duration for which elector approval of the increase is sought 
and must include the location where, and hours during which, ballots may be cast. 

Votes to approve or disapprove the levy increase must be cast on the date of 
the meeting. The polling place must remain open for at least six hours on the date of 
the meeting. The secretary-treasurer of the district shall prepare and distribute to 
qualified electors at the polling place paper ballots to conduct the election on the 

Page No. 3 15.0149.03010 

5fo 



question of increased levy authority. Three election judges to receive and count the 
ballots, who are qualified electors of the district but not members of the board, must be 
selected at least seven days before the meeting by approval of a majority of the 
members of the board. A marked ballot must be delivered to one of the judges, folded 
to conceal its contents, the judge shall deposit it in the ballot box, and another judge 
shall enter the name of the elector who cast the ballot in the poll book. When the 
election is closed, the judges shall count the ballots and announce the result. Results 
of the election must be certified by the secretary-treasurer of the district and each of 
the election judges to the tax commissioner and to the county auditor of each county in 
which the district is located within ten days after the election. The certificate must 
include a statement of the question as it appeared on the ballot, together with the total 
number of votes cast in favor, and the number of votes cast against, authorizing the 
excess levy. 

After July 31, 2015, approval or reauthorization by electors of increased levy 
authority under this section may not be effective for more than ten taxable years ·or the 
period of time necessary for repayment of indebtedness incurred which was intended 
to be repaid from the increased levy, whichever expires later. Additional levy authority 
authorized by the board of directors after petition of electors before August 1, 2015, 
remains in effect under the provisions of law at the time the levy was authorized for the 
time period authorized by the electors but not exceeding fiveten taxable years or the 
period of time necessary for repayment of indebtedness incurred which was intended 
to be repaid from the increased levy, whichever expires later. The tax must be: 

1. Collected as other taxes are collected in the county. 

2. Turned over to the secretary-treasurer of the rural fire protection district, 
who shall have a surety bond in the amount of at least five thousand 
dollars. 

3. Placed to the credit of the rural fire protection district so authorizing the 
same by its secretary-treasurer in a state or national bank, except amounts 
to be carried over to a future year for purchase of firefighting equipment, 
ambulances, or other emergency vehicles may be invested to earn the 
maximum return available. 

4. Paid out upon warrants drawn upon the fund by authority of the board of 
directors of the district, bearing the signature of the secretary-treasurer and 
the countersignature of the president of the rural fire protection district. 

The amount of tax levy may not exceed the amount of funds required to defray the 
expenses of the district for a period of one year as embraced in the annual estimate of 
expense, including the amount of principal and interest upon the indebtedness of the 
district for the ensuing year and including any amount determined by the board of 
directors to be necessary to be carried over to a future year for purchase of firefighting 
equipment, ambulances, or other emergency vehicles. 

SECTION 4. AMENDMENT. Section 57-01-05 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

57-01-05. State supervisor of assessments. 

The state tax commissioner shall appoint a state supervisor of assessments 
who must be a person trained and experienced in property appraisals and familiar with 
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assessment and equalization procedures and techniques. The state supervisor of 
assessments serves at the pleasure of the state tax commissioner and office space 
must be furnished to the state supervisor of assessments by the commissioner. 

The state supervisor of assessments shall perform the following duties under 
the direction of the tax commissioner: 

1. The state supervisor of assessments shall advise and give the various 
assessors in the state the necessary instructions and directions as to their 
duties under the laws of this state, to the end that apromote uniform 
assessment of all real and personal property in this state 't't'ill be attained. 

2. The state supervisor of assessments shall assist and instruct the various 
assessors in this state in the use of soil reconnaissance surveys, land 
classification methods, ffi.-tRe preparation and proper use of land maps and 
record cards, ffi.-tRe proper classification of real and personal property, and 
ffi.-tRe determination of proper standards of value. 

3. The state supervisor of assessments may require the attendance of groups 
of assessors at meetings called by the state supervisor of assessments for 
the purpose of giving them further assistance and instruction as to their 
duties. 

4. The state supervisor of assessments may make sales, market, and 
productivity studies and other studies of property assessments in the 
various counties and cities of this state for the purpose ofto properly 
advisingadvise the various assessors and directors of tax equalization in 
the state and for the purpose of recommendingto recommend to the tax 
commissioner changes to be made by the state board of equalization in 
the performance of theits equalization powers and duties prescribed for it 
by section 57 13 04. In any sales, market, and productivity study made 
according to section 57-01-06, the county directors of tax equalization or 
city assessors, as the case may be, are responsible for compiling shall 
compile a record of sales of property made in the county or city, and in 
conjunction with the board of county commissioners shall analyze the 
sales for the purpose of advising the state supervisor of assessments as to 
the value of using the sales in any such study. The compilations must be 
forwarded to the state supervisor of assessments with the findings of the 
county director of tax equalization, city assessors, and the board of county 
commissioners. In any county or city or any part thereof where the number 
of sales of properties is insufficient for making a sales, market, and 
productivity study, the county director of tax equalization or city assessor, 
as the case may be, in cooperation with the state supervisor of 
assessments or that person's assistants shall make appraisals of 
properties in order to determine the market value. 

5. The state supervisor of assessments shall cooperate with North Dakota 
state university in the development of a soil mapping program, a land 
classification system, valuation studies, and other matters relating to the 
assessment of property and shall provide for the use of such information 
and procedure at the earliest possible date by the assessors of this state. 

6. The state supervisor of assessments has general supervision of assessors 
and county directors of tax equalization pertaining to methods and 
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procedures of assessment of all property and has authority to require all 
county directors of tax equalization to do any act necessary to obtain 
uniform methods and procedures of assessment. 

7. Whenever an investigation by the state supervisor of assessments shows 
there is probable cause to believe the holder of a certificate issued by the 
state supervisor of assessments under chapter 11 10.1 section 57-02-01.1 
has failed to comply with any of the provisions of this titlelaw pertaining to 
assessments, or any rules prescribedadopted by the tax commissioner, the 
state supervisor of assessments may petition the tax commissioner for a 
hearing to show cause why the certificate should be suspended or 
revoked. 

a. The state supervisor of assessments must provide the certificate 
holder at least ten days' notice of the time and place of the hearing. 

b. If cause to suspend or revoke the certificate is shown, the tax 
commissioner may suspend or revoke the certificate. 

c. The tax commissioner may restore a certificate after suspension or 
revocation. 

d. An individual whose certificate has been suspended or revoked in the 
manner provided in this section may appeal that determination to the 
district court as provided in section 28-32-42. 

8. If a certificate holder's certificate is suspended or revoked under this 
section, the governing body of the county in which the certificate holder 
performs duties shall ensure the continued administration of assessments 
within that county by a person authorized under section 11-10.1-05 and be 
responsible for any expenses associated with the fulfillment of this 
responsibility. Expenses incurred by a county to fulfill the duties of a 
township or city assessment official whose certificate has been suspended 
or revoked must be charged to the political subdivision in which the 
certificate holder is employed and must either be paid directly to the county 
by the political subdivision or deducted by the county treasurer from funds 
coming into the treasurer's control which are apportionable to the 
subdivision. 

9. The state supervisor of assessments shall perform such other duties 
relating to assessment and taxation of property as the tax commissioner 
directs. 

10. The tax commissioner may prescribeadopt rules under chapter 28-32 
necessary for the detailed and efficient administration of this section. 

SECTION 5. Section 57-02-01.1 of the North Dakota Century Code is created 
and enacted as follows: 

57-02-01.1. Certification of assessors. 

The state supervisor of assessments shall certify assessors as provided in this 
section . 

.1. To be certified as a class I assessor, an individual must: 
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~ Have a high school diploma or its equivalent. 

.!:L Successfully complete one hundred eighty hours of assessment and 
appraisal instruction approved by the state supervisor of 
assessments. The number of hours of instruction determined 
necessary by the state supervisor of assessments for each of the 
following topics is required: 

ill Tax administration. 

0 Principles and theory of value . 

.Ql Residential property appraisal. 

ffi Commercial property appraisal. 

.(fil Agricultural property valuation. 

2. To be certified as a class II assessor. an individual must: 

~ Have a high school diploma or its equivalent. 

b. Successfully complete eighty hours of assessment and appraisal 
instruction approved by the state supervisor of assessments. The 
number of hours of instruction determined necessary by the state 
supervisor of assessments for each of the following topics is required: 

ill Tax administration. 

0 Principles and theory of value . 

.Ql Residential property appraisal. 

ffi Commercial property appraisal. 

.(fil Agricultural property valuation. 

~ The state supervisor of assessments may allow credit against required 
instruction in any topic under subdivision b of subsection 1 and subdivision 
b of subsection 2 upon receipt of documented training in this state or 
another state in the topic. 

4. An individual appointed as an assessor must hold the required assessor 
certificate at the time of appointment or obtain that certificate within two 
years after initial appointment or by July 31. 2017. whichever is later. An 
assessor who does not obtain the required certificate within two years after 
initial appointment or by July 31. 2017. whichever is later. or who does not 
maintain that certificate in good standing is not eligible for reappointment. 

§.:. An assessor certificate is valid for a term of two years from the first day of 
the calendar year for which it becomes effective. 

6. A class I assessor certificate may be renewed if the holder has completed 
twenty hours of approved classroom instruction or seminars during the 
term of the certificate. For purposes of this subsection. an assessor 
certificate holder is entitled to one and one-half hours of credit for each 
hour spent as an instructor of approved classroom instruction or seminars 
during the term of the certificate. 
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7. A class II assessor certificate may be renewed if the holder has completed 
ten hours of approved classroom instruction or seminars during the term of 
the certificate. 

8. The state supervisor of assessments shall notify the holder of an assessor 
certificate of the time for application for renewal of the individual's 
certificate. The state supervisor of assessments shall notify the governing 
body of the taxing district employing an assessor whose certificate is not 
renewed or whose certificate is suspended or revoked. 

9. Any person who is denied a certificate under this section may appeal to the 
tax commissioner for a hearing under chapter 28-32. 

10. The tax commissioner may adopt rules under chapter 28-32 for the 
administration of this section. 

SECTION 6. AMENDMENT. Subsection 1 of section 57-02-08.1 of the North 
Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

1. a. Any person sixty-five years of age or older or permanently and totally 
disabled, in the year in which the tax was levied, with an income that 
does not exceed the limitations of subdivision c is entitled to receive a 
reduction in the assessment on the taxable valuation on the person's 
homestead. An exemption under this subsection applies regardless of 
whether the person is the head of a family. 

b. The exemption under this subsection continues to apply if the person 
does not reside in the homestead and the person's absence is due to 
confinement in a nursing home, hospital, or other care facility, for as 
long as the portion of the homestead previously occupied by the 
person is not rented to another person. 

c. The exemption must be determined according to the following 
schedule: 

(1) If the person's income is not in excess of twenty-two thousand 
dollars, a reduction of one hundred percent of the taxable 
valuation of the person's homestead up to a maximum reduction 
of fetH=five thousand fi.vesix hundred twenty-five dollars of 
taxable valuation. 

(2) If the person's income is in excess of twenty-two thousand 
dollars and not in excess of twenty-six thousand dollars, a 
reduction of eighty percent of the taxable valuation of the 
person's homestead up to a maximum reduction of tRreefour 
thousand ~five hundred dollars of taxable valuation. 

(3) If the person's income is in excess of twenty-six thousand 
dollars and not in excess of thirty thousand dollars, a reduction 
of sixty percent of the taxable valuation of the person's 
homestead up to a maximum reduction of twethree thousand 
seveRthree hundred seventy-five dollars of taxable valuation. 

(4) If the person's income is in excess of thirty thousand dollars and 
not in excess of thirty-four thousand dollars, a reduction of forty 
percent of the taxable valuation of the person's homestead up to 
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a maximum reduction of ooetwo thousand ei§Rttwo hundred fifty 
dollars of taxable valuation. 

(5) If the person's income is in excess of thirty-four thousand dollars 
and not in excess of thirty-eight thousand dollars, a reduction of 
twenty percent of the taxable valuation of the person's 
homestead up to a maximum reduction of Rffieone thousand one 
hundred twenty-five dollars of taxable valuation. 

(6) If the person's income is in excess of thirty-eight thousand 
dollars and not in excess of forty-two thousand dollars, a 
reduction of ten percent of the taxable valuation of the person's 
homestead up to a maximum reduction of fetHflve hundred 
fiftysixty-three dollars of taxable valuation. 

d. Persons residing together, as spouses or when one or more is a 
dependent of another, are entitled to only one exemption between or 
among them under this subsection. Persons residing together, who 
are not spouses or dependents, who are coowners of the property are 
each entitled to a percentage of a full exemption under this subsection 
equal to their ownership interests in the property. 

e. This subsection does not reduce the liability of any person for special 
assessments levied upon any property. 

f. Any person claiming the exemption under this subsection shall sign a 
verified statement of facts establishing the person's eligibility. 

g. A person is ineligible for the exemption under this subsection if the 
value of the assets of the person and any dependent residing with the 
person exceeds five hundred thousand dollars, including the value of 
any assets divested within the last three years. 

h. The assessor shall attach the statement filed under subdivision f to 
the assessment sheet and shall show the reduction on the 
assessment sheet. 

i. An exemption under this subsection terminates at the end of the 
taxable year of the death of the applicant. 

SECTION 7. AMENDMENT. Section 57-02-33 of the North Dakota Century Code 
is amended and reenacted as follows: 

57-02-33. Assessor distriotsservices for unorganized territory. 

All counties or parts of counties in this state not organized into civil 
townshipsAny area not within an organized township or city must be divided into 
assessor districts, which must be designated by the board of county 
commissionersassessed by a certified assessor under the supervision and direction of 
the county director of tax equalization. The board of county commissioners shall 
appoint the district assessors to a four year term of office, the first term commencing on 
January 1, 1974. In case of vacancy in the office of district assessor in any of such 
districts, such vacancies must be filled by the board of county commissioners for the 
balance of the term. In making the appointment of a district assessor, theThe county 
director of tax equalization for such county is eligible for appointment to a district 
assessor positionmay serve as an assessor of property under this section. Every 
individual performing assessor of territory not organized into civil townships shall 
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receive asservices under this section is entitled to compensation for serviees a sumand 
mileage and travel expenses determined by the board of county commissioners for the 
time actually and necessarily employed in making and completing the assessment of 
the districtproperty. The compensation and expenses must be paid from the treasury of 
the county in which such districtthe assessed property is located only upon submission 
of an itemized statement setting forth the actual time spent in the work of the assessor 
and mileage traveled, approved by the board of county commissioners. In addition, the 
district assessor must be paid such mileage as is required to perform the duties of the 
office. The board of county commissioners has the authority to appoint a deputy 
assessor if needed, to be compensated in the same manner as the district assessor." 

Page 5, after line 27, insert: 

"SECTION 11. TRANSITION. The state supervisor of assessments shall 
recertify assessors at the end of the term of any certification that expires after July 31, 
2017, upon application and submission by the certificate holder of evidence of 
completion of required educational sessions under North Dakota Administrative Code 
chapter 81-02.1-02 or under section 57-02-01.1 or rules adopted to administer that 
section, subject to the following additional requirements: 

1. The holder of a township assessor or class II city assessor certification 
may be recertified as a certified class II assessor upon completion of the 
instruction required for class II assessor certification, with credit allowed by 
the state supervisor of assessments for any instruction previously received 
by the applicant for certification as a township assessor. 

2. The holder of a class I city assessor or county director of tax equalization 
certification may be recertified as a certified class I assessor upon 
submission of evidence of completion of required education sessions 
during the term of the class I city assessor or county director of tax 
equalization certification." 

Page 5, line 29, after "2014" insert", except section 6, which is effective for taxable years 
beginning after December 31, 2015." 

Renumber accordingly 
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REPORT OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE 
HB 1059, as reengrossed: Your conference committee (Sens. Cook, Bekkedahl, Triplett 

and Reps. Headland, Owens, Haak) recommends that the SENATE RECEDE from 
the Senate amendments as printed on HJ pages 1735-1742, adopt amendments as 
follows, and place HB 1059 on the Seventh order: 

That the Senate recede from its amendments as printed on pages 1735-17 42 of the House 
Journal and pages 1487-1494 of the Senate Journal and that Reengrossed House Bill No. 
1059 be amended as follows: 

Page 1, line 1, after "Act" insert "to create and enact section 57-02-01 .1 of the North Dakota 
Century Code, relating to training and certification of assessors;" 

Page 1, line 1, after "sections" insert "11-10.1-01, 11-10.1-05, 18-10-07, and 57-01-05, 
subsection 1 of section 57-02-08.1, and sections 57-02-33," 

Page 1, line 2, after "to" insert "training and certification of assessors, the homestead tax 
credit, rural fire protection district increased levy approval," 

Page 1, line 3, after the semicolon, insert "to provide for transition;" 

Page 1, after line 5, insert: 

"SECTION 1.AMENDMENT. Section 11-10.1-01 of the North Dakota 
Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

11-10.1-01. County director of tax equalization. 

1. The board of county commissioners of each county in this state shall 
appoint a county director of tax equalization who must be qualified and 
experienced in property appraisals, familiar with assessment and 
equalization procedures and techniques, and who is the holder ofholds a 
current oertifioatecertification as a class I assessor issued by the state 
supervisor of assessments. The state supervisor of assessments shall 
oonfer with representatives of the oounty oommissioners , oity governing 
bodies, state township offioers assooiation, and personnel at North 
Dakota state university to establish or revise the minimum requirements 
for attaining the oertifioate. Any person who is denied suoh oertifioate 
may appeal to the state tax oommissioner for a hearing under the 
provisions of ohapter 28 a2. 

2. The board of county commissioners may, in its disoretion, appoint a 
personcounty director of tax equalization on a probationary basis who 
does not hold a current oertifioate as provided for in 
subseotion 1 certification as a class I assessor, if the board deems ~ 
pefSOOthe individual qualified to act as county director of tax equalization 
by virtue of education, training, aR6 experience. and willingness to obtain 
certification as a class I assessor. The appointment must be for a term of 
not more than tlweetwo years. Any person receiving a probationary 
appointment who does not obtain a oertifioatecertification as a class I 
assessor within tlweetwo years from the appointment is not eligible for 
reappointment. 

3. The county director of tax equalization shall serve at the pleasure of the 
board of county commissioners and may be employed on a full-time or 
part-time basis. Vacancies in the office of county director of tax 
equalization must be filled in the same manner as the original 
appointment. 

SECTION 2. AMENDMENT. Section 11-10.1-05 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 
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11-10.1-05. Powers and duties of county director of tax equalization -
Qualifications of assessors. 

1. The county director of tax equalization shall havehas the power, duty, 
and responsibility to call upon and confer with township and city 
assessors in the county and to instructassist them in the preparation and 
proper use of land maps and property record cards, tRe preparation of 
assessment books, tRe changes in assessment laws and 
regulationsrules, tRe determination of proper standards of value, tRe use · 
of proper classifications of property, determination of what property 
qualifies as exempt from property taxes. and tRe authority to require 
attendance at meetings, to the end that apromote uniform assessment of 
all real property in the county will prevail. 

£. Any city with a population of under five thousand or township may. by 
resolution of its governing body, retain an assessor who is certified or 
eligible to be certified as a class II assessor who shall retain the powers, 
duties, and responsibilities of the office. Any city with a population of five 
thousand or greater may. by resolution of its governing body, retain an 
assessor who is certified or eligible to be certified as a class I assessor 
who shall retain the powers, duties, and responsibilities of the office. A 
person may not serve as an assessor for longer than twenty-four months 
before being certified by the state supervisor of assessments as having 
met the minimum requirements. The expenses of the city or township 
assessors must be paid by the city or township exercising this option. 

6-~ On January 1, 1981, theThe county director of tax equalization shall 
succeed to all the powers and duties of assessors of townships, cities 
with a population of under five thousand, and unorganized 
districtssupervise all individuals performing assessor services in the 
county and arrange for the assessment of property within the county, 
except that any city with a population of under five thousand or township 
may, at its option by resolution of its governing body, employ an assessor 
who shall retain the powers, duties, and responsibilities of the office. The 
resolutionwithin the jurisdiction of a city or township in which the 
governing body to employ anretains a certified class I or class II assessor 
continues in force until rescinded by the governing body. ~Jotwithstanding 
any other provision of law to the contrary, the state supervisor of 
assessments shall confer with representatives of the county 
commissioners, city governing bodies, state township officers 
association, and personnel at North Dakota state university to establ ish 
minimum requirements for all city and township assessors. The 
standards shall reflect their limited jurisdiction and need not be equal to 
those minimum requirements set for county directors of tax equalization. 
Any courses of instruction included in those minimum requirements for 
assessors of townships or cities with a population under five thousand 
must be conducted by the county director of tax equalization who may 
cooperate with other county directors of tax equalization in holding joint 
classes. The county director of tax equalization may call upon the state 
supervisor of assessments for any necessary materials and assistance. 
No person may serve as an assessor of a township or a city with a 
population under five thousand for longer than P..velve months before 
being certified by the state supervisor of assessments as having met the 
minimum requirements. No person may serve as an assessor of a city 
with a population of five thousand or more for longer than three years 
before being certified by the state supervisor of assessments as having 
met the minimum requirements. The expenses and salaries of city and 
township assessors must be paid by the city or township exercising this 
eptioo. 
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M . Any city or township wRisfithat does not employ its ownretain a certified 
class I or class II assessor shall utilize the certified assessor of the 
county in which the city or township is located. The county commission 
may require the city or township to reimburse the county for the 
expenses incurred in assessing the property of that city or township. 

4.-5. Any assessment made by an assessor who is not currently certified as 
qualified for that assessment jurisdiction must be reviewed and approved 
by a certified county director of tax equalization, or a certified city 
assessor of a city with a population of five thousand or moreassessor, 
prior to the township or city board of equalization annual meeting. The 
cost of the assessment review must be paid by the township or city 
having jurisdiction over the assessment at the same rate as paid to a 
special assessor in section 57-14-08. 

SECTION 3. AMENDMENT. Section 18-10-07 of the North Dakota Century 
Code as amended in section 1 of House Bill No. 1056, as approved by the sixty­
fourth legislative assembly, is amended and reenacted as follows: 

18-10-07. Fire protection policy to be determined - Tax levy. 

The board of directors shall determine a general fire protection policy for the 
district and shall annually estimate the probable expense for carrying out the 
contemplated program. The annual estimate of probable expense may include an 
amount determined by the board of directors to be necessary to be carried over to a 
future year for purchase of firefighting equipment, ambulances, or other emergency 
vehicles. The estimate must be certified by the president and secretary to the proper 
county auditor or county auditors, on or before June thirtieth of each year, who shall 
levy a tax upon the taxable property within the district for the maintenance of the fire 
protection district for the fiscal year as provided by law. The tax may not exceed a tax 
rate of five mills per dollar of the taxable valuation of property in the district except 
upon resolution adopted by the board of directors and approval by a majority of the 
qualified electors voting on the question at an annual or special meeting of electors 
called by the board of directors, the levy may be made in an amount not exceeding 
thirteen mills. If an election to approve or reauthorize an excess levy will be held at 
an annual or special meeting of electors of the district called by the board of 
directors, notice of the meeting and the proposed excess levy election must be 
provided by at least one publication in the official newspaper of each county in which 
the district is located at least seven days, but not more than fourteen days, before 
the date of the public meeting. The published notice must include the amount of the 
proposed tax_rate increase in mills and the duration for which elector approval of the 
increase is sought and must include the location where, and hours during which, 
ballots may be cast. 

Votes to approve or disapprove the levy increase must be cast on the date of 
the meeting . The polling place must remain open for at least six hours on the date of 
the meeting . The secretary-treasurer of the district shall prepare and distribute to 
qualified electors at the polling place paper ballots to conduct the election on the 
question of increased levy authority. Three election judges to receive and count the 
ballots, who are qualified electors of the district but not members of the board, must 
be selected at least seven days before the meeting by approval of a majority of the 
members of the board. A marked ballot must be delivered to one of the judges, 
folded to conceal its contents, the judge shall deposit it in the ballot box, and another 
judge shall enter the name of the elector who cast the ballot in the poll book. When 
the election is closed, the judges shall count the ballots and announce the result. 
Results of the election must be certified by the secretary-treasurer of the district and 
each of the election judges to the tax commissioner and to the county auditor of each 
county in which the district is located within ten days after the election. The certificate 
must include a statement of the question as it appeared on the ballot, together with 
the total number of votes cast in favor, and the number of votes cast against, 
authorizing the excess levy. 
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After July 31 , 2015, approval or reauthorization by electors of increased levy 
authority under this section may not be effective for more than ten taxable years or 
the period of time necessary for repayment of indebtedness incurred which was 
intended to be repaid from the increased levy. whichever expires later. Additional levy 
authority authorized by the board of directors after petition of electors before 
August 1, 2015, remains in effect under the provisions of law at the time the levy was 
authorized for the time period authorized by the electors but not exceeding fiveten 
taxable years or the period of time necessary for repayment of indebtedness 
incurred which was intended to be repaid from the increased levy, whichever expires 
later. The tax must be: 

1. Collected as other taxes are collected in the county. 

2. Turned over to the secretary-treasurer of the rural fire protection district, 
who shall have a surety bond in the amount of at least five thousand 
dollars. 

3. Placed to the credit of the rural fire protection district so authorizing the 
same by its secretary-treasurer in a state or national bank, except 
amounts to be carried over to a future year for purchase of firefighting 
equipment, ambulances, or other emergency vehicles may be invested to 
earn the maximum return available. 

4. Paid out upon warrants drawn upon the fund by authority of the board of 
directors of the district, bearing the signature of the secretary-treasurer 
and the countersignature of the president of the rural fire protection 
district. 

The amount of tax levy may not exceed the amount of funds required to defray the 
expenses of the district for a period of one year as embraced in the annual estimate 
of expense, including the amount of principal and interest upon the indebtedness of 
the district for the ensuing year and including any amount determined by the board of 
directors to be necessary to be carried over to a future year for purchase of 
firefighting equipment, ambulances, or other emergency vehicles. 

SECTION 4. AMENDMENT. Section 57-01-05 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

57-01-05. State supervisor of assessments. 

The state tax commissioner shall appoint a state supervisor of assessments 
who must be a person trained and experienced in property appraisals and familiar 
with assessment and equalization procedures and techniques. The state supervisor 
of assessments serves at the pleasure of the state tax commissioner and office 
space must be furnished to the state supervisor of assessments by the 
commissioner. 

The state supervisor of assessments shall perform the following duties under 
the direction of the tax commissioner: 

1. The state supervisor of assessments shall advise and give the various 
assessors in the state the necessary instructions and directions as to 
their duties under the laws of this state, to the end that a promote uniform 
assessment of all real and personal property in this state will be attained. 

2. The state supervisor of assessments shall assist and instruct the various 
as'sessors in this state in the use of soil reoonnaissanoe surveys, land 
classification methods, ffi-tAe preparation and proper use of land maps 
and record cards, ffi-tAe proper classification of real and personal 
property, and ffi-tAe determination of proper standards of value. 
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3. The state supervisor of assessments may require the attendance of 
groups of assessors at meetings called by the state supervisor of 
assessments for the purpose of giving them further assistance and 
instruction as to their duties. 

4. The state supervisor of assessments may make sales, market, and 
productivity studies and other studies of property assessments in the 
various counties and cities of this state for the purpose ofto properly 
advisingadvise the various assessors and directors of tax equalization in 
the state and for the purpose of recommendingto recommend to the tax 
commissioner changes to be made by the state board of equalization in 
the performance of tAeits equalization powers and duties prescribed for it 
by section 57 13 04. In any sales, market, and productivity study made 
according to section 57-01-06, the county directors of tax equalization or 
city assessors, as the case may be, are responsible for compiling shall 
compile a record of sales of property made in the county or city, and in 
conjunction with the board of county commissioners shall analyze the 
sales for the purpose of advising the state supervisor of assessments as 
to the value of using the sales in any such study. The compilations must 
be forwarded to the state supervisor of assessments with the findings of 
the county director of tax equalization, city assessors, and the board of 
county commissioners. In any county or city or any part thereof where the 
number of sales of properties is insufficient for making a sales, market, 
and productivity study, the county director of tax equalization or city 
assessor, as the case may be, in cooperation with the state supervisor of 
assessments or that person's assistants shall make appraisals of 
properties in order to determine the market value. 

5. The state supervisor of assessments shall cooperate with North Dakota 
state university in the development of a soil mapping program, a land 
classification system, valuation studies, and other matters relating to the 
assessment of property and shall provide for the use of such information 
and procedure at the earliest possible date by the assessors of this state. 

6. The state supervisor of assessments has general supervision of 
assessors and county directors of tax equalization pertaining to methods 
and procedures of assessment of all property and has authority to require 
all county directors of tax equalization to do any act necessary to obtain 
uniform methods and procedures of assessment. 

7. Whenever an investigation by the state supervisor of assessments shows 
there is probable cause to believe the holder of a certificate issued by the 
state supervisor of assessments under ohapter 11 10.1section 
57-02-01 .1 has failed to comply with any of the provisions of this titlelaw 
pertaining to assessments, or any rules prescribedadopted by the tax 
commissioner, the state supervisor of assessments may petition the tax 
commissioner for a hearing to show cause why the certificate should be 
suspended or revoked. 

a. The state supervisor of assessments must provide the certificate 
holder at least ten days' notice of the time and place of the hearing . 

b. If cause to suspend or revoke the certificate is shown, the tax 
commissioner may suspend or revoke the certificate. 

c. The tax commissioner may restore a certificate after suspension or 
revocation. 

d. An individual whose certificate has been suspended or revoked in 
the manner provided in this section may appeal that determination to 
the district court as provided in section 28-32-42 . 
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8. If a certificate holder's certificate is suspended or revoked under this 
section, the governing body of the county in which the certificate holder 
performs duties shall ensure the continued administration of 
assessments within that county by a person authorized under section 
11-10.1-05 and be responsible for any expenses associated with the 
fulfillment of this responsibility. Expenses incurred by a county to fulfill the 
duties of a township or city assessment official whose certificate has 
been suspended or revoked must be charged to the political subdivision 
in which the certificate holder is employed and must either be paid 
directly to the county by the political subdivision or deducted by the 
county treasurer from funds coming into the treasurer's control which are 
apportionable to the subdivision. 

9. The state supervisor of assessments shall perform such other duties 
relating to assessment and taxation of property as the tax commissioner 
directs. 

10. The tax commissioner may prescribeadopt rules under chapter 28-32 
necessary for the detailed and efficient administration of this section. 

SECTION 5. Section 57-02-01 .1 of the North Dakota Century Code is 
created and enacted as follows: 

57 -02-01.1. Certification of assessors. 

The state supervisor of assessments shall certify assessors as provided in this 
section . 

.1. To be certified as a class I assessor, an individual must: 

§,_ Have a high school diploma or its equivalent. 

Q,_ Successfully complete one hundred eighty hours of assessment and 
appraisal instruction approved by the state supervisor of 
assessments. The number of hours of instruction determined 
necessary by the state supervisor of assessments for each of the 
following topics is required: 

ill Tax administration . 

.(2l Principles and theory of value. 

Ql Residential property appraisal. 

ill Commercial property appraisal. 

.(fil Agricultural property valuation . 

.£. To be certified as a class II assessor. an individual must: 

a. Have a high school diploma or its equivalent. 

Q,_ Successfully complete eighty hours of assessment and appraisal 
instruction approved by the state supervisor of assessments. The 
number of hours of instruction determined necessary by the state 
supervisor of assessments for each of the following topics is 
required : 

ill Tax administration . 

.(2l Principles and theory of value. 
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.Ql Residential property appraisal. 

.(1). Commercial property appraisal. 

.{fil Agricultural property valuation . 

~ The state supervisor of assessments may allow credit against required 
instruction in any topic under subdivision b of subsection 1 and 
subdivision b of subsection 2 upon receipt of documented training in this 
state or another state in the topic. 

4. An individual appointed as an assessor must hold the required assessor 
certificate at the time of appointment or obtain that certificate within two 
years after initial appointment or by July 31. 2017. whichever is later. An 
assessor who does not obtain the required certificate within two years 
after initial appointment or by July 31. 2017. whichever is later. or who 
does not maintain that certificate in good standing is not eligible for 
reappointment. 

§.,_ An assessor certificate is valid for a term of two years from the first day of 
the calendar year for which it becomes effective. 

6. A class I assessor certificate may be renewed if the holder has 
completed twenty hours of approved classroom instruction or seminars 
during the term of the certificate. For purposes of this subsection. an 
assessor certificate holder is entitled to one and one-half hours of credit 
for each hour spent as an instructor of approved classroom instruction or 
seminars during the term of the certificate. 

7. A class II assessor certificate may be renewed if the holder has 
completed ten hours of approved classroom instruction or seminars 
during the term of the certificate. 

§_,_ The state supervisor of assessments shall notify the holder of an 
assessor certificate of the time for application for renewal of the 
individual's certificate. The state supervisor of assessments shall notify 
the governing body of the taxing district employing an assessor whose 
certificate is not renewed or whose certificate is suspended or revoked. 

~ Any person who is denied a certificate under this section may appeal to 
the tax commissioner for a hearing under chapter 28-32 . 

.1Q,_ The tax commissioner may adopt rules under chapter 28-32 for the 
administration of this section. 

SECTION 6. AMENDMENT. Subsection 1 of section 57-02-08.1 of the North 
Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

1. a. Any person sixty-five years of age or older or permanently and totally 
disabled, in the year in which the tax was levied, with an income that 
does not exceed the limitations of subdivision c is entitled to receive 
a reduction in the assessment on the taxable valuation on the 
person's homestead. An exemption under this subsection applies 
regardless of whether the person is the head of a family. 

b. The exemption under this subsection continues to apply if the person 
does not reside in the homestead and the person's absence is due 
to confinement in a nursing home, hospital, or other care facility, for 
as long as the portion of the homestead previously occupied by the 
person is not rented to another person. 
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c. The exemption must be determined according to the following 
schedule: 

( 1) If the person's income is not in excess of twenty-two thousand 
dollars, a reduction of one hundred percent of the taxable 
valuation of the person's homestead up to a maximum 
reduction of feuffive thousand fivesix hundred twenty-five 
dollars of taxable valuation. 

(2) If the person's income is in excess of twenty-two thousand 
dollars and not in excess of twenty-six thousand dollars, a 
reduction of eighty percent of the taxable valuation of the 
person's homestead up to a maximum reduction of tfH:eefour 
thousand ~five hundred dollars of taxable valuation. 

(3) If the person's income is in excess of twenty-six thousand 
dollars and not in excess of thirty thousand dollars, a reduction 
of sixty percent of the taxable valuation of the person's 
homestead up to a maximum reduction of twethree thousand 
seveRthree hundred seventy-five dollars of taxable valuation. 

(4) If the person's income is in excess of thirty thousand dollars 
and not in excess of thirty-four thousand dollars, a reduction of 
forty percent of the taxable valuation of the person's 
homestead up to a maximum reduction of ooetwo thousand 
~o hundred fifty dollars of taxable valuation. 

(5) If the person's income is in excess of thirty-four thousand 
dollars and not in excess of thirty-eight thousand dollars, a 
reduction of twenty percent of the taxable valuation of the 
person's homestead up to a maximum reduction of Rffieone 
thousand one hundred twenty-five dollars of taxable valuation. 

(6) If the person's income is in excess of thirty-eight thousand 
dollars and not in excess of forty-two thousand dollars, a 
reduction of ten percent of the taxable valuation of the person's 
homestead up to a maximum reduction of feuffive hundred 
filtysixty-three dollars of taxable valuation. 

d. Persons residing together, as spouses or when one or more is a 
dependent of another, are entitled to only one exemption between or 
among them under this subsection. Persons residing together, who 
are not spouses or dependents, who are coowners of the property 
are each entitled to a percentage of a full exemption under this 
subsection equal to their ownership interests in the property. 

e. This subsection does not reduce the liability of any person for special 
assessments levied upon any property. 

f. Any person claiming the exemption under this subsection shall sign 
a verified statement of facts establishing the person's eligibility. 

g. A person is ineligible for the exemption under this subsection if the 
value of the assets of the person and any dependent residing with 
the person exceeds five hundred thousand dollars, including the 
value of any assets divested within the last three years. 

h. The assessor shall attach the statement filed under subdivision f to 
the assessment sheet and shall show the reduction on the 
assessment sheet. 
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i. An exemption under this subsection terminates at the end of the 
taxable year of the death of the applicant. 

SECTION 7. AMENDMENT. Section 57-02-33 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

57-02-33. Assessor distristsservices for unorganized territory. 

All counties or parts of counties in this state not organized into civil 
townshipsAny area not within an organized township or city must be divided into 
assessor districts, which must be designated by the board of county 
commissionersassessed by a certified assessor under the supervision and direction 
of the county director of tax equalization. The board of county commissioners shall 
appoint the district assessors to a four year term of office, the first term commencing 
on January 1, 1974. In case of vacancy in the office of district assessor in any of 
such districts, such vacancies must be filled by the board of county commissioners 
for the balance of the term. In making the appointment of a district assessor, theThe 
county director of tax equalization for such county is eligible for appointment to a 
district assessor positionmay serve as an assessor of property under this section. 
Every individual performing assessor of territory not organized into civil townships 
shall receive asservices under this section is entitled to compensation for services a 
stimand mileage and travel expenses determined by the board of county 
commissioners for the time actually and necessarily employed in making and 
completing the assessment of the districtproperty. The compensation and expenses 
must be paid from the treasury of the county in which such districtthe assessed 
property is located only upon submission of an itemized statement setting forth the 
actual time spent in the work of the assessor and mileage traveled, approved by the 
board of county commissioners. In addition, the district assessor must be paid such 
mileage as is required to perform the duties of the office. The board of county 
commissioners has the authority to appoint a deputy assessor if needed , to be 
compensated in the same manner as the district assessor." 

Page 5, after line 27, insert: 

"SECTION 11. TRANSITION. The state supervisor of assessments shall 
recertify assessors at the end of the term of any certification that expires after July 
31, 2017, upon application and submission by the certificate holder of evidence of 
completion of required educational sessions under North Dakota Administrative 
Code chapter 81-02.1-02 or under section 57-02-01.1 or rules adopted to administer 
that section, subject to the following additional requirements: 

1. The holder of a township assessor or class II city assessor certification 
may be recertified as a certified class II assessor upon completion of the 
instruction required for class II assessor certification , with credit allowed 
by the state supervisor of assessments for any instruction previously 
received by the applicant for certification as a township assessor. 

2. The holder of a class I city assessor or county director of tax equalization 
certification may be recertified as a certified class I assessor upon 
submission of evidence of completion of required education sessions 
during the term of the class I city assessor or county director of tax 
equalization certification." 

Page 5, line 29, after "2014" insert", except section 6, which is effective for taxable years 
beginning after December 31, 2015." 

Renumber accordingly 

Reengrossed HB 1059 was placed on the Seventh order of business on the calendar. 
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North Dakota Association of Rural E lectric Cooperatives 
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Phone: 7 0 1 .663 .650 1 or 800.234.0 5 1 8  

Fax: 70 1 .663. 3 745 www.ndarec.com 

Testimony of Zachary Smith on HB 1 059 
Before House Finance and Tax Committee 

January 1 2 , 201 5 

Mr. Chairman and members of the Committee, my name is Zac Smith with the 

North Dakota Association of Rural Electric Cooperatives (NDAREC) .  Together, our 

member cooperatives pay mi llions of dollars in property - related taxes, main ly from in  

lieu property taxes on distribution, transmission , and generation faci l ities. Because 

electric cooperatives and investor-owned uti lities ( IOUs) operate in  a competitive 

environment, we are concerned that when providing property tax relief to assessed 

property taxpayers such as the IOUs, the legislature be mindfu l of keeping electric 

cooperative in lieu property taxes at a comparable level .  Which is why the N DAREC 

supports the passage of HB 1 059 but seeks a critically important amendment to 

include the distribution and transmission line mile taxes paid by our members in  

House Bill  1 059 .  

We believe a disparity continues to exist, with electric cooperatives paying 

different and higher in l ieu property taxes than the IOUs pay in  assessed property 

taxes on an equivalent basis.  That is because the IOUs have received the full benefit 

of state funded tax relief afforded assessed property taxpayers.  While electric 

cooperatives have also received some tax adjustments, specifically in 2009 and 201 3 ,  

we have received n o  state funded tax relief, so any relief we have received has been 

done at the expense of the political subdivisions. 

Your Touchstone Energy� Cooperative �� 
-



The amendment we seek would apply the same level of state paid tax relief to 

the REC formula taxes for both the MWH tax that is paid to cover electric distribution 

plant (see North Dakota Century Code §57- 3 3 . 2 -03 ) ,  and for the line mile taxes on 

higher voltage transmission lines operating below 200 ki lovolts. I n  addition,  the 

amendment we seek would cap high voltage transmission l ine mile taxes operating 

above 200 ki lovolts or more for both RECs and IOUs at $300 per mile (See North 

Dakota Century Code §57- 3 3 . 2 -02 compared to §57-06- 1 7 . 3 ) .  While the most recent 

numbers are not yet available, we predict the fiscal note on this  amendment would 

be in  the neighborhood of a 1 % increase in  the fiscal note on the bi l l .  

We appreciate your support of this amendment, and stand ready to work with 

the committee and the tax department to have an amendment included that properly 

addresses our concerns. We would also ask each of you as legislators to recognize 

that electric cooperatives are major property taxpayers in our state which deserve 

the same tax relief afforded other taxpayers, including the IOUs. 

I thank the Committee for their time and consideration and would urge an 

adoption of the proposed amendments to House Bill  1 059 and a Do Pass vote on a final 

bi l l .  I would be happy to answer any questions you may have . 
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PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO HOUSE BILL NO. 1059 

Page 1, line 1, replace "section" with "sections" 

Page 1, line 1, after "57-20-07 .2" insert "and 57-33.2-02" 

Page 1, line 2, after "credit" insert "and the transmission line mile tax rate" 

Page 1, after line 18, insert: 

+18 1059 
l-14-15 
=t4tp.I 

"3. The owner, operator, or lessee of transmission lines assessed by the state board of 
equal ization under section 57-33.2-02 for transmission lines operating at a nominal 
operating voltage of less than two hundred kilovolts, is entitled to a credit against 
taxes per mile in the amount provided in subsection 1. The tax commissioner sha ll 
determine the total amount of credits under this subsection and certify the amount 
to the state treasurer for transfer from the general fund to the electric generation, 
transmission, and distribution tax fund . The credit for each transmission company 
must be allocated and distributed to counties in the same manner as the tax 
collected from that company is allocated . 

4 . The owner, operator, or lessee of distribution lines assessed by the state board of 
equalization under section 57-33.2-03 is entitled to a credit against the distribution 
tax in the amount provided in subsection 1. The tax commissioner sha ll determine 
the total amount of credits under this subsection and certify the amount to the state 
treasurer for transfer from the general fund to the electric generation, transmission , 
and distribution tax fund. The credit for each distribution company must be 
allocated and distributed to counties in the same manner as the tax co llected from 
that company is allocated." 

Page 1, line 19, overstrike "3. " and insert immediately thereafter "5." 

Page 2, line 4, overstrike "4." and insert immediately thereafter "~" 

Page 2, line 10, overstrike "5." and insert immediately thereafter "L " 

Page 2, line 19, overstrike "6." and insert immediately thereafter "8. " 

Page 2, line 23, overstrike "7." and insert immediately thereafter "9." 

Page 3, line 3, overstrike "8. " and insert immediately thereafter "1Q_" 

1 



Page 3, after l ine 6 ,  insert :  

"SECTION 2. AM E N D M E NT. Section 57-33.2-02 of the North Dakota Century Code is 
amended and reenacted as follows: 

57-33.2-02. Transm ission l ine m i le tax - Exemption. Transmission l ines are subject to 
annual taxes per mi le  [ 1 . 6 1  k i lometers] or fraction of a mi le  based on their nominal operat ing 
voltages on January first of each year, as fo l lows: 

1 .  For transm ission l ines that operate at a nominal operating voltage of less than fifty 
ki lovolts, a tax of fifty dollars. 

2 .  For transmission l ines that operate a t  a nominal operating voltage of fifty k i lovolts o r  
more, a tax of one hundred dollars.  

3 .  For transm ission l ines that operate at  a nom inal operating voltage of one hundred 
ki lovolts or more, but less than two hundred ki lovolts, a tax of two hundred dollars. 

4. For transmission l ines that operate at a nom inal operating voltage of two hundred 
ki lovolts or more ,  but less than three hundred kilovolts, a tax of fettf-three hundred 
dol lars.  

5 .  For transmission lines that operate at a nominal operating voltage of three hundred 
kilovolts or more, a tax of six hundred dollars. 

&.- A transmission l ine in itia l ly placed in  service after January 1 ,  2009, is exempt from 
transm ission l ine taxes under this section for the first taxable year after the l ine is 
in it ia l ly p laced i n  service, and transmission l ine taxes under this section must be 
reduced by: 

a .  Seventy-five percent for the second taxable year of operation of the 
transm ission l ine .  

b .  Fifty percent for the  th i rd taxable year of operation of the transmission l ine .  

c .  Twenty-five percent for the fourth taxable year of operation of the 
transm ission l ine.  

After the fourth taxable year of operation, WB-1=1 the transm ission l ines are subject to the 
standard transm ission l ine taxes under this section . "  

Renumber accord ingly 
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Prepared by the 
Office of State Tax Commissioner 

February 5, 2015 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO HOUSE BILL NO. 1059 

Page 1, line 1, replace "section" with "sections 57-06-17 .3," 

Page 1, line 1, after "57-20-07.2" insert ", and 57-33.2-02" 

Page 1, line 2, after "a" insert "new transmission line property tax exemption, a" 

Page 1, line 2, after "credit" insert ", and the transmission line mile tax rate" 

Page 1, after line 4, insert: 

"SECTION 1. AMENDMENT. Section 57-06-17.3 of the North Dakota Century Code is 
amended and reenacted as follows : 

57-06-17.3. New transmission line property tax exemption. A transmission line of two 
hundred thirty kilovolts or larger, and its associated transmission substations, which is not 
taxable under chapter 57-33.2 and is initially placed in service on or after October 1, 2002, is 
subject to a tax at the rate of three hundred dollars per mile [1.61 kilometers] or fraction of a 
mile. A transmission line subject to taxation under this section is exempt from property taxes for 
the first taxable year after the line is initially placed in service , and the taxable valuation as 
otheP..vise determined by law on the transmission line and its associated transmission 
substations taxes under this section must be reduced by: 

1. Seventy-five percent for the second taxable year of operation of the transmission line. 
2. Fifty percent for the third taxable year of operation of the transmission line. 
3. Twenty-five percent for the fourth taxable year of operation of the transmission line. 
After the fourth taxable year of operation of the transmission line, the transmission line and 

its associated transmission substations are exempt from property taxes and are subject to a tax 
at the rate of three hundred dollars per mile [1 .61 kilometers] or fraction thereof of the line 
located in this state. The per mile tax imposed by this section applies to the transmission line 
and its associated transmission substations and is subject to allocation among counties in the 
proportion that the miles of that transmission line in the county bears to the miles of that 
transmission line in the state. 

For purposes of this section , "initially placed in service" includes both new construction and 
substantial expansion of the carrying capacity of a preexisting line, and "substantial expansion" 
means an increase in carrying capacity of fifty percent or more. " 

Page 1, after line 18, insert: 

"3. The owner, operator, or lessee of transmission lines assessed by the state board of 
equalization under section 57-06-17 .3 is entitled to a credit against taxes per mile in 
the amount provided in subsection 1. The tax commissioner shall determine the 
total amount of credits under this subsection and certify the amount to the state 
treasurer for transfer from the general fund to the electric generation , transmission , 
and distribution tax fund . The credit for each transmission company must be 
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allocated and distributed to counties in the same manner as the tax collected from 
that company is allocated . 

The owner. operator. or lessee of electric transmission or distribution property 
assessed by the state board of equalization under section 57-33.2-02 or 57-33.2-03 
is entitled to a cred it against the transmission or distribution tax in the amount 
provided in subsection 1. The tax commissioner shall determine the total amount of 
credits under this subsection and certify the amount to the state treasurer for 
transfer from the general fund to the electric generation, transmission , and 
distribution tax fund . The credit for each transmission or distribution company must 
be allocated and distributed to counties in the same manner as the tax collected 
from that company is allocated ." 

Page 1, line 19, overstrike "3." and insert immediately thereafter "~" 

Page 2, line 4, overstrike "4." and insert immediately thereafter ".§..:" 

Page 2, line 10, overstrike "5." and insert immediately thereafter "7." 

Page 2, line 19, overstrike "6." and insert immediately thereafter "~" 

Page 2, line 23, overstrike "7. " and insert immediately thereafter "9." 

Page 3, line 3, overstrike "8." and insert immediately thereafter "1.Q/ 

Page 3, after line 6, insert: 

"SECTION 3. AMENDMENT. Section 57-33 .2-02 of the North Dakota Century Code is 
amended and reenacted as follows: 

57-33.2-02. Transmission line mile tax - Exemption. Transmission lines are subject to 
annual taxes per mile [1 .61 kilometers] or fraction of a mile based on their nominal operating 
voltages on January first of each year, as follows: 

1. For transmission lines that operate at a nominal operating voltage of less than fifty 
kilovolts , a tax of fifty dollars . 

2. For transmission lines that operate at a nominal operating voltage of fifty kilovolts or 
more, but less than one hundred kilovolts , a tax of one hundred dollars. 

3. For transmission lines that operate at a nominal operating voltage of one hundred 
kilovolts or more, but less than two hundred kilovolts , a tax of two hundred dollars. 

4. For transmission lines that operate at a nominal operating voltage of two hundred 
kilovolts or more, but less than three hundred kilovolts , a tax of four hundred dollars. 

5. For transmission lines that operate at a nominal operating voltage of three hundred 
kilovolts or more, a tax of six hundred dollars. 

6. A transmission line initially placed in service after January 1, 2009, and before 
December 31, 2013, is exempt from transmission line taxes under this section for the 
first taxable year after the line is initially placed in service, and transmission line taxes 
under this section must be reduced by: 
a. Seventy-five percent for the second taxable year of operation of the transmission 

line . 
b. Fifty percent for the third taxable year of operation of the transmission line. 
c. Twenty-five percent for the fourth taxable year of operation of the transmission line. 

2 
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After the fourth taxable year of operation , such transmission lines are subject to the 
standard transmission line taxes under this section . 
7. A transmission line of two hundred thirty kilovolts or larger initially placed in service 

after January 1, 2009, is subject to a tax at the rate of three hundred dollars per mile 
(1 .61 kilometers] or fraction of a mile. A transmission line subject to tax under this 
subsection is exempt for the first taxable year after the line is initially placed in service, 
and transmission line taxes under this section must be reduced by: 
a. Seventy-five percent for the second taxable year of operation of the transmission 

line. 
b. Fifty percent for the third taxable year of operation of the transmission line. 
c. Twenty-five percent for the fourth taxable year of operation of the transmission line. 
After the fourth taxable year of operation , such transmission lines are subject to the 
standard transmission line taxes under this subsection . 

For purposes of this section, "initially placed in service" includes both new construction 
and substantial expansion of the carrying capacity of a preexisting line, and "substantial 
expansion" means an increase in carrying capacity of fifty percent or more. 

Renumber accordingly 
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House BILL 1059 PROPOSED AMENDMENTS FISCAL EFFECT 

House FINANCE AND TAXATION COMMITTEE 

FEBRUARY 3, 2015 
PREPARED BY SARA MEIER, PROPERTY TAX SPECIALIST 

Purpose of Memo 

d- L/ - 15 
itd,_p , I 

Prepared at the request of Representative Headland, this memo lists the estimated cost of extending the 
State-paid property tax relief credit to electric transmission and electric distribution taxes that currently 
make payments in lieu of real property tax. 

Estimated fiscal effect of the proposed amendment: 

Following is the calculation of the fiscal note for applying the State-paid property tax relief credit at a rate 
of 12% to the transmission and distribution taxes under N.D.C.C. 57-33.2 and the transmission tax under 
N.D.C.C. 57-06-17.3. 

2014 Transmission Tax: 
2014 Distribution Tax: 
2014 Transmission Tax under 57-06-17.3 
Total Tax: 
Effect of changing Tax rate to $300.00 per mile for 230 kV or larger, 

placed in service after January 1, 2009 under 57-33.2: 
Effect of changing Tax rate to $300.00 per mile for 230 kV or larger, 

placed in service after October 1, 2002 under 57-06-17.3: 

Total tax credit at 12% 

Estimated growth 
2015 Estimated Transmission Tax 2% for the next biennium: 
2015 Estimated Tax 20% for the next biennium: 
2015 Estimated Transmission Tax under 57-06-17.3 20% for the next biennium: 
Total Tax: 
Effect of changing Tax rate to $300.00 per mile for 230 kV or larger, 

placed in service after January 1, 2009 under 57-33.2: 
Effect of changing Tax rate to $300.00 per mile for 230 kV or larger, 

placed in service after October 1, 2002 under 57-06-17.3: 

Total tax credit at 12% 
Estimated expenditure for biennium 

$1,415,797.75 
$7 ,051,446.68 

44,451.30 
$8,511,695.73 

($10,282.65) 

($1,544.53) 
$8,499,868.55 

$1,019,984.23 

$1,444,000.00 
$8,461,800.00 

53,400.00 
$9,959,200.00 

($11,000.00) 

($1,550.00) 
$9,946,650.00 

$1, 193,598.00 
$2,400,000.00 

600 E. BOULEVARD AVE., DEPT 127 
BISMARCK, ND 58505-0599 
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ELECTRIC DISTRIBUTION AND TRANSMISSION TAX 
HOUSE FINANCE AND TAXATION COMMITTEE 

HOUSE BILL 1059 
January 15, 2015 

Prepared by Sara Meier, Property Tax Specialist 

Purpose of Memo 

To provide tax information from 2013 and 2014 taxes on electric distribution and transmission property owned and operated 

by investor owned utility companies that are subject to ad valorem tax. The taxes paid by companies subject to the electric 

distribution and transmission line ta x, such as rural electric cooperat ives, has also been included for comparitive purposes. 

The 2014 value, for a company subject to ad valorem tax, is developed by using 2013 financial information from the 

company. Li kewise, the 2014 tax for electric transmission or distribution companies is based on the lines in service, and 

megawatt hours of sales from 2013. For comparison purposes, the 2014 tax payable is divided by the 2013 megawatt hour 

sales. 

Corrections to memo prepared for Interim Committee 

A memo provided to the 2013-2014 Interim Fincance and Ta xation Committee listed the 2013 tax and the 2013 sa les, which 

are not relative to each other. The corrected calculations are shown in the following charts. 

Investor Owned Utility Tax 

Montana Dakota Utility 
@ 2013 Taxes payable in 2014 2014 Taxes payable in 2015 

Tax payabJe after 12% state paid credit "' .,. $ 1,697 ,453 .27 * $2,0 10,521.86 * 
Megawatt sales 1,805,28 1 1,949,522 
Property tax/megawatt after 12% credit $0.94 $ 1.03 

* Does not include tax levied against property that is used for both electric operations and natural gas distribution operations. 

Ottertail Power Company 
2013 Taxes payable in 2014 2014 Taxes payable in 2015 

Tax payable after 12% state paid credit $1,291,341.01 $1,491 ,271.33 
Megawatt sales 1,735,482 1,869,08 1 
Property tax/megawatt after 12% credit $0.74 $0.80 

Xce l Energy 

2013 Taxes payable in 2014 2014 Taxes payable in 2015 
Tax payable after 12% state paid credit $ 1,735,121.80 $1,922,983.07 ** 
Megawatt sales % 2,207,400 2,301 ,545 
Property tax/megawatt after 12% credit $0.79 $0.84 

** Estimated proration of tax for electric property only is based on percentage of the 2013 tax on electric property to ND 
system tax. 

600 E. BOULEVARD AYE., D EPT 127 
HISMARCK. ND 58505-0599 
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Electric Distribution and Transmission Tax 
The following st ati stics were obtained from the reports filed by companies subject to the Electric Generation, Distribution 

and Transmission Line Tax in accordance with North Dakota Century Code 57-33.2. 

,;QO n <ra,xes payable in 2014 ~ 2014 Taxes ayable inl.!015 
Transmi~sion Line taxP $1 ,415,425 .00 $1 ,413 ,002 .88 
:Oistribution tax $5,958,263.73 $7,05 1,446 .68 

7,448,664.88 8,8 14,308 .35 
63,380.0406 63,846.4932 

Miles of transmission line 6,204.877 6,285.8548 
Transmission and distribution tax/me&.a\.ya,;t~ sales $0.99 $0.96 

Transmission line voltage over 200kV 
The following page lists the companies with transmission lines with operating voltage over 200kV. 

(iOO E. BOULEVARD AVE.. DFPT 127 
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Taxable Tax per Percent of Proposed tax Tax 

Company Name Miles Voltage Mile Exemption Total Tax per mile Total tax Reduction 

ALLETE, Inc. {d/b/a Minnesota Power) 234.03 250 kV $400.00 0% $93,612.96 $300.00 $70,209.72 $23,403 .24 

Basin Electric Power Coop 214.22 230 kV $400.00 0% $85,688. 00 $300.00 $64,266 .00 $21,422.00 

Basin Electric Power Coop 520.62 345 kV $600.00 0% $312,372 .00 $300.00 $156,186.00 $156, 186.00 

Central Power Electric Coop 4.42 230 kV $400.00 0% $1,766.40 $300.00 $1,324.80 $441.60 

Great River Energy 288.25 230 kV $400.00 0% $115,300 .80 $300.00 $86,475 .65 $28,825.15 

Great River Energy 259 .20 400 kV $600.00 0% $155,520.82 $300.00 $77,760.39 $77,760.43 

Minnkota Power Coop 175.58 230 kV $400.00 0% $70,232 .80 $300.00 $52,674.60 $17,558.20 

M innkota Power Coop 214.26 345 kV $600.00 0% $128,557 .80 $300.00 $64,278.90 $64,278.90 

Square Butte Electric Cooperative 3.32 230 kV $400.00 0% $1,327.20 $300.00 $995.40 $331 .80 
Reduced taxable rate applied to transmission lines placed in service after 
2009. ajf % FxN 

Fourth year-
ALLETE, Inc. {d/b/a Minnesota Power) 22.15 230 kV $400.00 25% $6,645 .60 $300.00 $4,984.20 $1,661.40 

Third year-
Basin Electric Power Coop 60.81 230 kV $400.00 50% $12,162.00 $300.00 $9,121.50 $3,040.50 

Fourth year-
Basin Electric Power Coop 74.25 230 kV $400.00 25% $22,275 .00 $300.00 $16,706.25 $5,568.75 

First year -
Minnkota Power Coop 0.38 230 kV $400.00 Exempt $0.00 $300.00 $0.00 $0.00 

Second year 
Upper Missouri G& T Electric Coop 0.48 230 kV $400.00 - 75% $48 .00 $300.00 $36.00 $12.00 

Total $400,489.96 



NIYIRECs • North Dakota Association of Rural Electric Cooperatives 
3 2 0 1  Nygren Drive N W • P.O.  Box 727 • M andan, N D  585 54-0727 

Date : M a rch 17, 2015 

Phone: 701 .66 3 .6501 or 800. 2 34.05 18  
Fax: 701 .66 3 . 3745 • www.ndarcc.com 

To : 

R E :  

Senate F i n a nce a n d  Taxation Com m ittee -Se n ator Dwight Cook, c h a i rm a n  

H B  1059 
F ro m :  Zac Sm ith, com m u n ications a n d  government relations di rector, N DA R E C  

M r. C h a i r m a n  a n d  m e m bers o f  t h e  Co m m ittee, my n a m e  is Zac Sm ith w i t h  t h e  

N o rth Da kota Association o f  R u ra l  E l ectric Coope ratives ( N DA R EC) .  Together, o u r  

m e m ber cooperatives p a y  m i l l ions o f  d o l l a rs i n  property -related taxes, m a i n ly fro m i n  

l i e u  property taxes on d istri bution, tra nsmission, a n d  generation fa c i l it ies.  Because 

electric cooperat ives and i nvestor-owned uti l ities ( IO U s) operate i n  a com petitive 

e nviron ment, we a re concerned that when provid i n g  property tax re l ief to assessed 

property taxpayers such as the I O U s, the legis lature be m i n dfu l of keeping e lectric 

cooperative in l ieu property taxes at a c o m pa ra b l e  leve l .  Which is  why the N DA R E C  

s u p ports the passage o f  H B  a s  a me n ded t o  i n c l u d e  the d istri but ion a nd tra nsm ission l i n e 

m i l e  taxes pa id by o u r  m e m bers i n  House B i l l  1059. 

We bel ieve a d ispa rity conti n ues to exist, with e lectric coope ratives pay i n g  

d ifferent a n d  h igher i n  l ie u  p roperty taxes t h a n  the I O U s  p a y  i n  assessed property taxes 

o n  an equiva lent  basis. That is  because the I O U s  have received the fu l l  benefit of state 

• fu nded tax rel ief afforded a ssessed property taxpaye rs .  

Your Touchstone Energy Cooperative �� -



• 
, Whi le  e lectric cooperatives have a lso received some tax adj u stments, specifica l ly i n  

2009 a n d  2013, w e  have received no state fu nded tax rel ief, s o  a ny rel ief we have 

received has been done at the expense of the pol itica l su bdivisions. 

The amendment we seek wou ld a pply the same level of state paid tax rel i ef to 

the REC form ula taxes for both the MWH tax that is paid to cover electric d istrib ution 

p l a nt (see North Dakota Centu ry Code §57-33.2-03), and for the l ine mile taxes on 

tra nsmission l i n es. In addition, the amendment we seek wou ld ca p h igh voltage 

tra nsm ission l i ne mi le  taxes on new tra nsmission operating a bove 200 kilovolts or more 

for both RECs a nd IOUs at $300 per mi le .  

We a ppreciate your  support of H B  1059 as amended .  We wou ld a lso ask each of 

• you as legislators to recognize that electric cooperatives are major property taxpayers i n  

o u r  state which deserve the same tax rel ief afforded other  taxpayers, inc luding the 

IOUs.  

I thank the Com mittee for their t ime a nd consideration and wou ld urge a n  

adoption of the proposed amend ments to House Bi l l  1059. I would  b e  happy to a n swer 

a ny q uestions you may have . 

• 



North Dakota House Bil l  1 059 
Jean Schafer - Basin Electric Power Cooperative 

Senate Finance and Taxation Committee 
March 1 7, 201 5 

Mr. Chairman and members of the committee, my name is Jean Schafer, representing Basin 

Electric Power Cooperative. I am here today in support of Engrossed House Bi l l  1 059 which wi l l  

adjust property taxes for electric cooperatives. 

The current l ine-mi le-by-voltage transmission l ine tax was implemented in  2009 when the 

cooperative property tax system was changed from gross receipts to the current voltage per 

mi le method. 

When this change occurred, Basin Electric was paying a s ignificant amount of gross receipt 

taxes because we were purchasing large amounts of power through contracts to meet our 

member's power requirements. Therefore, the increase in transmission l ine taxes that occurred 

with this change for us was fa irly equivalent to the applicable gross receipts taxes that we were 

paying out at that point in t ime. 

However, s ince the change in 2009 several addit ional reductions have taken place for taxes 

paid by cooperatives and investor-owned util ities, but the high voltage transmission l ine taxes 

paid by generation and transmission cooperatives such as Minnkota Power, Great River 

Energy, and Basin E lectric, have not participated in those reductions. 

Engrossed House bi l l  1 059 caps the top rate of high voltage transmission l ine taxes at $300 per 

mi le for transmission l ines larger than 200 ki lovolts in it ial ly placed in service after January 1 ,  

2009. This positions these tax rates at the same level as those paid by the investor-owned 

uti l ities in North Dakota . The taxes on high voltage transmission l ines larger than 200 ki lovolts 

in it ia l ly placed in service prior to January 1 ,  2009 remains at the same rates in existence today. 

I thank the committee for their time and consideration and would ask for a Do Pass 

recommendation for engrossed House Bill 1 059 and a Do Pass vote on the final bi l l .  I would be 

happy to answer any q uestions from the committee. 

1 
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PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO REENGROSSED HOUSE BILL NO. 1059 

Page 1, line 1, after "reenact" insert "subsection 1 of section 57-02-08.1 and" 

Page 1, line 2, after "to" insert "the homestead tax credit," 

Page 1, after line 5, insert: 

"SECTION 1. AMENDMENT. Subsection 1 of section 57-02-08.1 of the North 
Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

1. a. Any person sixty-five years of age or older or permanently and totally 
disabled, in the year in which the tax was levied , with an income that 
does not exceed the limitations of subdivision c is entitled to receive a 
reduction in the assessment on the taxable valuation on the person's 
homestead. An exemption under this subsection applies regardless of 
whether the person is the head of a family. 

b. The exemption under this subsection continues to apply if the person 
does not reside in the homestead and the person's absence is due to 
confinement in a nursing home, hospital , or other care facility, for as 
long as the portion of the homestead previously occupied by the 
person is not rented to another person. 

c. The exemption must be determined according to the following 
schedule : 

(1) If the person's income is not in excess of twenty-two thousand 
dollars , a reduction of one hundred percent of the taxable 
valuation of the person's homestead up to a maximum reduction 
of few:five thousand fi.v.esix hundred twenty-five dollars of 
taxable valuation . 

(2) If the person 's income is in excess of twenty-two thousand 
dollars and not in excess of twenty-six thousand dollars, a 
reduction of eighty percent of the taxable valuation of the 
person's homestead up to a maximum reduction of #lfeefour 
thousand s*five hundred dollars of taxable valuation . 

(3) If the person's income is in excess of twenty-six thousand 
dollars and not in excess of thirty thousand dollars, a reduction 
of sixty percent of the taxable valuation of the person's 
homestead up to a maximum reduction of twethree thousand 
seveRthree hundred seventy-five dollars of taxable valuation . 

(4) If the person's income is in excess of thirty thousand dollars and 
not in excess of thirty-four thousand dollars, a reduction of forty 
percent of the taxable valuation of the person's homestead up to 
a maximum reduction of Emetwo thousand eifrA-ttwo hundred fifty 
dollars of taxable valuation . 

(5) If the person's income is in excess of thirty-four thousand dollars 
and not in excess of thirty-eight thousand dollars, a reduction of 
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twenty percent of the taxable valuation of the person's 
homestead up to a maximum reduction of Rffieone thousand one 
hundred twenty-five dollars of taxable valuation . 

(6) If the person's income is in excess of thirty-eight thousand • 
dollars and not in excess of forty-two thousand dollars, a 
reduction of ten percent of the taxable valuation of the person's 
homestead up to a maximum reduction of fetH:five hundred 
f#tysixty-three dollars of taxable valuation. 

d. Persons residing together, as spouses or when one or more is a 
dependent of another, are entitled to only one exemption between or 
among them under this subsection . Persons residing together, who 
are not spouses or dependents , who are co-owners of the property 
are each entitled to a percentage of a full exemption under this 
subsection equal to their ownership interests in the property. 

e. This subsection does not reduce the liability of any person for special 
assessments levied upon any property. 

f. Any person claiming the exemption under this subsection shall sign a 
verified statement of facts establishing the person's eligibility. 

g. A person is ineligible for the exemption under this subsection if the 
value of the assets of the person and any dependent residing with the 
person exceeds five hundred thousand dollars, including the value of 
any assets divested within the last three years. 

h. The assessor shall attach the statement filed under subdivision f to 
the assessment sheet and shall show the reduction on the 
assessment sheet. 

i. An exemption under this subsection terminates at the end of the 
taxable year of the death of the applicant." 

Renumber accordingly 
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• North Dakota Association of Rural Electric Cooperatives 
HO! ygren Drive N W • P.O.  Box 727 • Mandan,  N D  585 54-0727 

Phone: 701 .66 3 .6501 or 800. 2 34.0 5 1 8  
Fax: 701 .66 3 . 3745 • www. ndarec.com 

Apr i l  1 ,  2015 

To Se n ate Ap p ro p riat ions Comm ittee-Senator Ray H o l m b e rg, c h a i r m a n  

R E :  Test imony on H B  1059 

F ro m :  Zac h a ry S m ith,  Com m u n ications  & Govern ment Relat ions D i rector 

N o rth Da kota Association of R u ra l  E lectric Cooperative 

M r. Chairman and members of the Co m m ittee, my name is Zac Smith with the Nort h  Da kota 

Association of Rura l  E lect ric Cooperatives ( N DAREC).  Toget her, o u r  member coope ratives pay mi l l ions of 

d o l l a rs in property- re lated taxes, m a i n ly from in l ie u  property taxes on d ist ribution, tra nsmission, a n d  

generation fa c i l it ies. Beca use e lectric coo peratives a nd investor-owned uti l ities ( IOUs)  operate in a 

com petit ive environment, we a re co ncerned that when provid ing property tax re l ief to assessed 

property taxpayers such as the IOUs, the legis lature be m i ndfu l of keeping e l ectric cooperat ive i n  l ieu of 

property taxes at a compara ble leve l .  Which is why the N DA R EC su pports the passage of HB 1059 as 

a mended to include the d istri bution a n d  tra nsmission l ine mi le  taxes paid by our members. 

We bel ieve a d ispa rity conti nues to exist, with e lectric cooperat ives paying d iffe re nt and higher 

i n  l ieu of property taxes than the I O Us pay i n  a ssessed property taxes o n  an equivalent basis .  That is 

beca use the IO Us have received the fu l l  benefit of state funded tax re l ief affo rded assessed property 

taxpayers. Whi le  e lectric coope ratives have a lso received some tax adj ustme nts, specifica l ly i n  2009 a n d  

2013,  w e  have received no state funded t a x  re l ief, s o  any re l ief w e  h ave received has  b e e n  d o n e  at the 

expense of the po l it ical  subdivisions. As the 2015 legislative session conve ned for the o rga nizatio n a l  

session, the m i n utes o f  the fi na l  i nterim com m ittee recogn ized t h a t  "tax re l ief resu lting from the 12 

percent state-paid property tax credit is not being rea l i zed by rura l  e lectric coo pe ratives. "  

'rbur 1buchstone Energy Cooperative �T� -
J , I 



• 
As a result, we worked with the North Da kota Tax Com m issioner's office in o rder to d raft legislation that 

would a p ply the relief to rural e lectric cooperative property in an equita ble way. The resulting language 

has been unanimously a pproved by the policy committees of both cham bers and House a pp ro p riations 

The engrossed amendments a pply the same level of state paid tax relief to the R EC form ula 

taxes for both the MWH tax that is paid to cover e lectric d istribution p la nt (see North Dakota Century 

Code §57-33.2-03), and for the line mile taxes on transmission lines. In  addition, the amendments cap 

high voltage transmission l ine m ile taxes on new transmission o pe rating a bove 200 kilovolts o r  more for 

both RECs and IOUs at $300 per mile. 

We a ppreciate you r  support of H B  1059 as amended. We would a lso ask each of you as 

legislators to recognize that e lectric cooperatives a re major property taxpayers in our  state which 

deserve the same tax relief afforded other taxpayers, including the IOUs. 

I thank the Committee for their time and consideration and would u rge a n  adoption of House 

• Bil l  1059. I would be ha ppy to a nswer a ny q uestions you may have . 

• 
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fl f3 Jo.?? PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO REENGROSSED HOUSE BILL NO. 1059 

Page 1, line 1, after "Act" insert "to create and enact section 57-02-01 .1 of the North Dakota 
Century Code, relating to training and certification of assessors;" 

Page 1, line 1, after "sections" insert "11 -10.1-01 , 11 -10.1-05, 57-02-33," 

Page 1, line 2, after "to" insert "training and certification of assessors ," 

Page 1, after line 5, insert: 

"SECTION 1. AMENDMENT. Section 11 -10.1-01 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

11-10.1-01 . County director of tax equalization. 

1. The board of county commissioners of each county in this state shall 
appoint a county director of tax equalization who must be qualified and 
experienced in property appraisals, familiar with assessment and 
equalization procedures and techniques, and who is the holder ofholds a 
current certificatecertification as a class I assessor issued by the state 
supervisor of assessments. The state supervisor of assessments shall 
confer •.vith representatives of the county commissioners, city governing 
bodies, state township officers association , and personnel at North Dakota 
state university to establish or revise the minimum requirements for 
attaining the certificate. Any person who is denied such certificate may 
appeal to the state tax commissioner for a hearing under the provisions of 
chapter 28 32. 

2. The board of county commissioners may, in its discretion, appoint a 
personcounty director of tax equalization on a probationary basis who does 
not hold a current certificate as provided for in subsection 1 certification as 
a class I assessor, if the board deems such personthe individual qualified 
to act as county director of tax equalization by virtue of education, train ing , 
aR6 experience, and willingness to obtain certification as a class I 
assessor. The appointment must be for a term of not more than tfireetwo 
years. Any person receiving a probationary appointment who does not 
obtain a certificatecertification as a class I assessor within tfireetwo years 
from the appointment is not eligible for reappointment. 

3. The county director of tax equalization shall serve at the pleasure of the 
board of county commissioners and may be employed on a full-time or 
part-time basis . Vacancies in the office of county director of tax 
equalization must be filled in the same manner as the original appointment. 

SECTION 2. AMENDMENT. Section 11 -10.1-05 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

1-11/ 15 
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11-10.1-05. Powers and duties of county director of tax equalization -
Qualifications of assessors. 

1. The county director of tax equalization shall havehas the power, duty, and • 
responsibility to call upon and confer with tovmship and city assessors in 
the county and to instructassist them in the preparation and proper use of 
land maps and property record cards, tRe preparation of assessment 
books, tRe changes in assessment laws and regulationsrules, tRe 
determination of proper standards of value, tRe use of proper 
classifications of property, determination of what property qualifies as 
exempt from property taxes. and tRe authority to require attendance at 
meetings, to the end that apromote uniform assessment of all real property 
in the county will prevail. 

.fu Any city with a population of under five thousand or township may, by 
resolution of its governing body, retain an assessor who is certified or 
eligible to be certified as a class II assessor who shall retain the powers, 
duties, and responsibilities of the office. Any city with a population of five 
thousand or greater may, by resolution of its governing body, retain an 
assessor who is certified or eligible to be certified as a class I assessor 
who shall retain the powers, duties. and responsibilities of the office. A 
person may not serve as an assessor for longer than twenty-four months 
before being certified by the state supervisor of assessments as having 
met the minimum requirements. The expenses of the city or township 
assessors must be paid by the city or township exercising this option. 

2-:-~ On January 1, 1981 , theThe county director of tax equalization shall 
succeed to all the powers and duties of assessors of townships, cities with 
a population of under five thousand , and unorganized districtssupervise all 
individuals performing assessor services in the county and arrange for the 
assessment of property within the county, except that any city with a 
population of under five thousand or township may, at its option by 
resolution of its governing body, employ an assessor who shall retain the 
powers, duties, and responsibil ities of the office. The resolutionwithin the 
jurisdiction of a city or township in which the governing body to employ 
aRretains a certified class I or class II assessor continues in force until 
rescinded by the governing body. Notwithstanding any other provision of 
law to the contrary, the state supervisor of assessments shall confer with 
representatives of the county commissioners, city governing bodies, state 
township officers association , and personnel at North Dakota state 
university to establish minimum requirements for all city and tovmship 
assessors. The standards shall reflect their limited jurisdiction and need 
not be equal to those minimum requirements set for county directors of tax 
equalization. Any courses of instruction included in those minimum 
requirements for assessors of townships or cities with a population under 
five thousand must be conducted by the county director of tax equalization 
who may cooperate with other county directors of tax equalization in 
holding joint classes. The county director of tax equalization may call upon 
the state supervisor of assessments for any necessary materials and 
assistance. No person may serve as an assessor of a township or a city 
with a population under five thousand for longer than twelve months before 
being certified by the state supervisor of assessments as having met the 
minimum requirements. No person may serve as an assessor of a city with 
a population of five thousand or more for longer than three years before 
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being certified by the state supervisor of assessments as having met the 
minimum requirements. The expenses and salaries of city and township 
assessors must be paid by the city or township exercising this option . 

3-:4. Any city or township wR«mthat does not employ its ownretain a certified 
class I or class II assessor shall utilize the certified assessor of the county 
in which the city or township is located. The county commission may 
require the city or township to reimburse the county for the expenses 
incurred in assessing the property of that city or township. 

4:-§.,, Any assessment made by an assessor who is not currently certified as 
qualified for that assessment jurisdiction must be reviewed and approved 
by a certified county director of tax equalization, or a certified city assessor 
of a city with a population of five thousand or moreassessor, prior to the 
township or city board of equalization annual meeting. The cost of the 
assessment review must be paid by the township or city having jurisdiction 
over the assessment at the same rate as paid to a special assessor in 
section 57-14-08. 

SECTION 3. AMENDMENT. Section 57-01-05 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

57-01-05. State supervisor of assessments. 

The state tax commissioner shall appoint a state supervisor of assessments 
who must be a person trained and experienced in property appraisals and familiar with 
assessment and equalization procedures and techniques. The state supervisor of 
assessments serves at the pleasure of the state tax commissioner and office space 
must be furnished to the state supervisor of assessments by the commissioner. 

The state supervisor of assessments shall perform the following duties under 
the direction of the tax commissioner: 

1. The state supervisor of assessments shall advise and give the various 
assessors in the state the necessary instructions and directions as to their 
duties under the laws of this state, to the end that apromote uniform 
assessment of all real and personal property in this state •Nill be attained . 

2. The state supervisor of assessments shall assist and instruct the various 
assessors in this state in the use of soil reconnaissance surveys, land 
classification methods, i-A-#le preparation and proper use of land maps and 
record cards, i-A-#le proper classification of real and personal property, and 
i-A-#le determination of proper standards of value. 

3. The state supervisor of assessments may require the attendance of groups 
of assessors at meetings called by the state supervisor of assessments for 
the purpose of giving them further assistance and instruction as to their 
duties. 

4. The state supervisor of assessments may make sales, market, and 
productivity studies and other studies of property assessments in the 
various counties and cities of this state for the purpose ofto properly 
advisingadvise the various assessors and directors of tax equalization in 
the state and for the purpose of recommendingto recommend to the tax 
commissioner changes to be made by the state board of equalization in 
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the performance of tAeits equalization powers and duties prescribed for it 
by section 57 13 04. In any sales, market, and productivity study made 
according to section 57-01-06, the county directors of tax equalization or 
city assessors, as the case may be, are responsible for compiling shall 
compile a record of sales of property made in the county or city, and in 
conjunction with the board of county commissioners shall analyze the 
sales for the purpose of advising the state supervisor of assessments as to 
the value of using the sales in any such study. The compilations must be 
forwarded to the state supervisor of assessments with the findings of the 
county director of tax equalization , city assessors, and the board of county 
commissioners. In any county or city or any part thereof where the number 
of sales of properties is insufficient for making a sales, market, and 
productivity study, the county director of tax equalization or city assessor, 
as the case may be, in cooperation with the state supervisor of 
assessments or that person's assistants shall make appraisals of 
properties in order to determine the market value. 

5. The state supervisor of assessments shall cooperate with North Dakota 
state university in the development of a soil mapping program, a land 
classification system, valuation studies, and other matters relating to the 
assessment of property and shall provide for the use of such information 
and procedure at the earliest possible date by the assessors of this state. 

6. The state supervisor of assessments has general supervision of assessors 
and county directors of tax equalization pertaining to methods and 
procedures of assessment of all property and has authority to require all 
county directors of tax equalization to do any act necessary to obtain 
uniform methods and procedures of assessment. 

7. Whenever an investigation by the state supervisor of assessments shows 
there is probable cause to believe the holder of a certificate issued by the 
state supervisor of assessments under chapter 11 10.1 section 57-02-01 .1 
has failed to comply with any of the provisions of this title law pertaining to 
assessments, or any rules prescribedadopted by the tax commissioner, the 
state supervisor of assessments may petition the tax commissioner for a 
hearing to show cause why the certificate should be suspended or 
revoked. 

a. The state supervisor of assessments must provide the certificate 
holder at least ten days' notice of the time and place of the hearing. 

b. If cause to suspend or revoke the certificate is shown , the tax 
commissioner may suspend or revoke the certificate. 

c. The tax commissioner may restore a certificate after suspension or 
revocation. 

d. An individual whose certificate has been suspended or revoked in the 
manner provided in this section may appeal that determination to the 
district court as provided in section 28-32-42. 

8. If a certificate holder's certificate is suspended or revoked under this 
section , the governing body of the county in which the certificate holder 

• 

• 

performs duties shall ensure the continued administration of assessments • 
within that county by a person authorized under section 11 -10.1-05 and be 
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9. 

10. 

responsible for any expenses associated with the fulfillment of this 
responsibility. Expenses incurred by a county to fulfill the duties of a 
township or city assessment official whose certificate has been suspended 
or revoked must be charged to the political subdivision in which the 
certificate holder is employed and must either be paid directly to the county 
by the political subdivision or deducted by the county treasurer from funds 
coming into the treasurer's control which are apportionable to the 
subdivision . 

The state supervisor of assessments shall perform such other duties 
relating to assessment and taxation of property as the tax commissioner 
directs. 

The tax commissioner may prescribeadopt rules under chapter 28-32 
necessary for the detailed and efficient administration of this section . 

SECTION 4. Section 57-02-01 .1 of the North Dakota Century Code is created 
and enacted as follows: 

57-02-01.1. Certification of assessors. 

The state supervisor of assessments shall certify assessors as provided in this 
section . 

1.,. To be certified as a class I assessor, an individual must: 

a. Have a high school diploma or its equivalent. 

Q,_ Successfully complete one hundred eighty hours of assessment and 
appraisal instruction approved by the state supervisor of 
assessments. The number of hours of instruction determined 
necessary by the state supervisor of assessments for each of the 
following topics is required: 

ill Tax administration . 

.(2)_ Principles and theory of value. 

Ql Residential property appraisal. 

ill Commercial property appraisal. 

@ Agricultural property valuation. 

2. To be certified as a class II assessor. an individual must: 

£:. Have a high school diploma or its equivalent. 

Q,_ Successfully complete one hundred hours of assessment and 
appraisal instruction approved by the state supervisor of 
assessments. The number of hours of instruction determined 
necessary by the state supervisor of assessments for each of the 
following topics is required: 

ill Tax administration. 

121 Principles and theory of value. 
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Ql Residential property appraisal. 

ill Commercial property appraisal. 

.(fil Agricultural property valuation . 

~ The state supervisor of assessments may allow credit against required 
instruction in any topic under subdivision b of subsection 1 and subdivision 
b of subsection 2 upon receipt of documented training in this state or 
another state in the topic. 

4 . An individual appointed as an assessor must hold the required assessor 
certificate at the time of appointment or obtain that certificate within two 
years after initial appointment or by July 31. 2017. whichever is later. An 
assessor who does not obtain the required certificate within two years after 
initial appointment or by July 31. 2017. whichever is later. or who does not 
maintain that certificate in good standing is not eligible for reappointment. 

~ An assessor certificate is valid for a term of two years from the first day of 
the calendar year for which it becomes effective. 

6. A class I assessor certificate may be renewed if the holder has completed 
twenty hours of approved classroom instruction or seminars during the 
term of the certificate. For purposes of this subsection . an assessor 
certificate holder is entitled to one and one-half hours of credit for each 
hour spent as an instructor of approved classroom instruction or seminars 
during the term of the certificate. 

• 

L. A class II assessor certificate may be renewed if the holder has completed 
ten hours of approved classroom instruction or seminars during the term of • 
the certificate. 

8. The state supervisor of assessments shall notify the holder of an assessor 
certificate of the time for application for renewal of the individual's 
certificate. The state supervisor of assessments shall notify the governing 
body of the taxing district employing an assessor whose certificate is not 
renewed or whose certificate is suspended or revoked. 

~ Any person who is denied a certificate under this section may appeal to the 
tax commissioner for a hearing under chapter 28-32. 

fil The tax commissioner may adopt rules under chapter 28-32 for the 
administration of this section . 

SECTION 5. AMENDMENT. Section 57-02-33 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

57-02-33. Assessor districtsservices for unorganized territory. 

All counties or parts of counties in this state not organized into civil 
townshipsAny area not within an organized township or city must be divided into 
assessor districts, which must be designated by the board of county 
commissionersassessed by a certified assessor under the supervision and direction of 
the county director of tax equalization. The board of county commissioners shall 
appoint the district assessors to a four year term of office , the first term commencing on • 
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January 1, 1974 . In case of vacancy in the office of district assessor in any of such 
districts, such vacancies must be filled by the board of county commissioners for the 
balance of the term . In making the appointment of a district assessor, theThe county 
director of tax equalization for such county is eligible for appointment to a district 
assessor positionmay serve as an assessor of property under this section . Every 
individual performing assessor of territory not organized into civil tovmships shall 
receive asservices under this section is entitled to compensation for services a sumand 
mileage and travel expenses determined by the board of county commissioners for the 
time actually and necessarily employed in making and completing the assessment of 
the districtproperty. The compensation and expenses must be paid from the treasury of 
the county in which such districtthe assessed property is located only upon submission 
of an itemized statement setting forth the actual time spent in the work of the assessor 
and mileage traveled , approved by the board of county commissioners. In addition, the 
district assessor must be paid such mileage as is required to perform the duties of the 
office . The board of county commissioners has the authority to appoint a deputy 
assessor if needed, to be compensated in the same manner as the district assessor." 

Page 5, after line 29, insert: 

"SECTION 10. TRANSITION. The state supervisor of assessments shall 
recertify assessors at the end of the term of any certification that expires after July 31 , 
2017, upon application and submission by the certificate holder of evidence of 
completion of required educational sessions under North Dakota Administrative Code 
chapter 81-02.1-02 or under section 57-02-01.1 or rules adopted to administer that 
section , subject to the following additional requirements : 

1. The holder of a township assessor or class II city assessor certification 
may be recertified as a certified class II assessor upon completion of the 
instruction required for class II assessor certification , with credit allowed by 
the state supervisor of assessments for any instruction previously received 
by the applicant for certification as a township assessor. 

2. The holder of a class I city assessor or county director of tax equalization 
certification may be recertified as a certified class I assessor upon 
submission of evidence of completion of required education sessions 
during the term of the class I city assessor or county director of tax 
equalization certification ." 

Renumber accordingly 
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PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO REENGROSSED HOUSE BILL NO. 1059 

Page 1, line 1, after "reenact" insert "subsection 1 of section 57-02-08 .1 and" 

Page 1, line 2, after "to" insert "the homestead tax credit," 

Page 1, after line 5, insert: 

"SECTION 1. AMENDMENT. Subsection 1 of section 57-02-08.1 of the North 
Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

1. a. Any person sixty-five years of age or older or permanently and totally 
disabled , in the year in which the tax was levied, with an income that 
does not exceed the limitations of subdivision c is entitled to receive a 
reduction in the assessment on the taxable valuation on the person's 
homestead. An exemption under this subsection applies regardless of 
whether the person is the head of a family. 

b. The exemption under this subsection continues to apply if the person 
does not reside in the homestead and the person's absence is due to 
confinement in a nursing home, hospital, or other care facility, for as 
long as the portion of the homestead previously occupied by the 
person is not rented to another person . 

c. The exemption must be determined according to the following 
schedule: 

(1) If the person's income is not in excess of twenty-two thousand 
dollars, a reduction of one hundred percent of the taxable 
valuation of the person's homestead up to a maximum reduction 
of fet:H:five thousand fivesix hundred twenty-five dollars of 
taxable valuation . 

(2) If the person's income is in excess of twenty-two thousand 
dollars and not in excess of twenty-six thousand dollars, a 
reduction of eighty percent of the taxable valuation of the 
person's homestead up to a maximum reduction of tflfeefour 
thousand s*five hundred dollars of taxable valuation . 

(3) If the person's income is in excess of twenty-six thousand 
dollars and not in excess of thirty thousand dollars, a reduction 
of sixty percent of the taxable valuation of the person's 
homestead up to a maximum reduction of twethree thousand 
seveAthree hundred seventy-five dollars of taxable valuation . 

(4) If the person's income is in excess of thirty thousand dollars and 
not in excess of thirty-four thousand dollars, a reduction of forty 
percent of the taxable valuation of the person's homestead up to 
a maximum reduction of eRetwo thousand ei§-flttwo hundred fifty 
dollars of taxable valuation . 

(5) If the person's income is in excess of thirty-four thousand dollars 
and not in excess of thirty-eight thousand dollars, a reduction of 
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twenty percent of the taxable valuation of the person's 
homestead up to a maximum reduction of ffifleone thousand one 
hundred twenty-five dollars of taxable valuation . 

(6) If the person's income is in excess of thirty-eight thousand 
dollars and not in excess of forty-two thousand dollars, a 
reduction of ten percent of the taxable valuation of the person's 
homestead up to a maximum reduction of fettt:five hundred 
fi#ysixty-three dollars of taxable valuation . 

d. Persons residing together, as spouses or when one or more is a 
dependent of another, are entitled to only one exemption between or 
among them under this subsection. Persons residing together, who 
are not spouses or dependents, who are co-owners of the property 
are each entitled to a percentage of a full exemption under this 
subsection equal to their ownership interests in the property. 

e. This subsection does not reduce the liability of any person for special 
assessments levied upon any property. 

f. Any person claiming the exemption under this subsection shall sign a 
verified statement of facts establishing the person's eligibility. 

g. A person is ineligible for the exemption under this subsection if the 
value of the assets of the person and any dependent residing with the 
person exceeds five hundred thousand dollars, including the value of 
any assets divested within the last three years . 

h. The assessor shall attach the statement filed under subdivision f to 
the assessment sheet and shall show the reduction on the 
assessment sheet. 

i. An exemption under this subsection terminates at the end of the 
taxable year of the death of the applicant." 

Renumber accordingly 
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PROVIDING FOR A COUNTY ASSESSOR SYSTEM 

WEAKNESSES OF THE PRESENT ASSESSOR SYSTEM. 
The reason that the property tax is so difficult to administer is because the "tax base" itself is 

not easily identified . In contrast to the sales and inco.me taxes, for example (where the "tax base" is 
a dollar of income or a dollar of sale), the tax base for the property tax is subject to the judgment 
of tax assessors and is, therefore, more difficult . 

The vital role of the assessor in property tax administration and the need to strengthen that 
role has long been recognized.  The fourth biennial report of the Tax Commissioner in 1 9 1 8  recom­
mended the abolishment of township and district assessors in favor of a county assessor system. The 
same or similar recommendations have been made throughout the years by governors, tax officials, 
study groups, and others, yet no North Dakota Legislature has been able to enact legislation that 
would accomplish this objective . So we continue in North Dakota to try to administer a tax, the 
major element of which relies on judgment, with a part-time assessor force of nearly 1 ,800 assessors. 
Most of the assessors have not been properly trained in value estimating techniques and they have 
not been given adequate measurement tools. The result is a weak assessing system and inequitable 
assessments for many of our citizens. 

Our objective in the property tax program should be to have the most equitable tax assess­
ments possible. The 1 977 Legislature passed legislation which requires that assessors meet minimum 
qualifications by 1 9 8 1 . That was a positive step, but it only partially addressed the problem. 

REDUCE THE NUMBER OF ASSESSORS AND PROVIDE FOR EFFECTIVE MANAGEMENT. 
The Legislature should reduce the number of statutory assessors from the present level of 1 ,800 

to 5 3 - one County Assessor's office for each county, with the exception that cities and townships 
within a county could continue to employ their own assessor, provided the assessor has the same 
qualifications as that of the County Assessor, and provided that the local city or township absorb 
the cost. The recommendation that the State Tax Commissioner made in 1 9 1 8  is even more com­
pelling today. Today's assessor must be well trained, compensated on a full-time basis, given value 
measurement tools and techniques, and some independence from local pressures to give fair and im­
partial treatment to all property owners. Under the recommended program, the County Assessor 
with a qualified staff would be responsible for the assessment of all property within the county . 

., .  
In order to reduce the financial burden on local government o f  maintaining a County Assessor's 

office, the. salary of the County Assessor should be funded by the state . To attract and maintain a 
quality assessor force, the position of County Assessor should be compensated under guidelines of 
the State Personnel Classification System. The County Assessor would be hired by the County Com­
missioners for a fixed term of four years and could be dismissed before the term ends by the County 
Commissioners only for cause and with the concurrence of the State Supervisor of Assessments . 

4 
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PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO REENGROSSED HOUSE BILL NO. 1059 

That the Senate recede from its amendments as printed on pages 1735-17 42 of the House 
Journal and pages 1487-1494 of the Senate Journal and that Reengrossed House Bill No. 
1059 be amended as follows: 

Page 1, line 1, after "Act" insert "to create and enact section 57-02-01.1 of the North Dakota 
Century Code, relating to training and certification of assessors;" 

Page 1, line 1, after "sections" insert "11-10.1-01, 11-10.1-05, 18-10-07, and 57-01-05, 
subsection 1 of section 57-02-08.1, and sections 57-02-33," 

Page 1, line 2, after "to" insert "training and certification of assessors, the homestead tax credit, 
rural fire protection district increased levy approval," 

Page 1, line 3, after the semicolon, insert "to provide for transition;" 

Page 1, after line 5, insert: 

"SECTION 1. AMENDMENT. Section 11-10.1-01 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

11-10.1-01. County director of tax equalization. 

1. The board of county commissioners of each county in this state shall 
appoint a county director of tax equalization who must be qualified and 
experienced in property appraisals, familiar with assessment and 
equalization procedures and techniques, and who is the holder ofholds a 
current certificatecertification as a class I assessor issued by the state 
supervisor of assessments. The state supervisor of assessments shall 
confer with representatives of the county commissioners, city governing 
bodies, state township officers association, and personnel at North Dal(ota 
state university to establish or revise the minimum requirements for 
attaining the certificate. Any person who is denied such certificate may 
appeal to the state tax commissioner for a hearing under the provisions of 
chapter 28 a2. 

2. The board of county commissioners may, in its discretion , appoint a 
personcounty director of tax equalization on a probationary basis who does 
not hold a current certificate as provided for in subsection 1 certification as 
a class I assessor, if the board deems such personthe individual qualified 
to act as county director of tax equalization by virtue of education , training, 
aA6 experience. and willingness to obtain certification as a class I 
assessor. The appointment must be for a term of not more than tflfeetwo 
years. Any person receiving a probationary appointment who does not 
obtain a certificatecertification as a class I assessor within tflfeetwo years 
from the appointment is not eligible for reappointment. 

3. The county director of tax equalization shall serve at the pleasure of the 
board of county commissioners and may be employed on a full-time or 
part-time basis. Vacancies in the office of county director of tax 
equalization must be filled in the same manner as the original appointment. 
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SECTION 2. AMENDMENT. Section 11-10.1-05 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

11-10.1-05. Powers and duties of county director of tax equalization -
Qualifications of assessors. 

1. The county director of tax equalization shall havehas the power, duty, and 
responsibility to call upon and confer with tmvnship and city assessors in 
the county and to instructassist them in the preparation and proper use of 
land maps and property record cards, tfle preparation of assessment 
books, tfle changes in assessment laws and regulationsrules, tfle 
determination of proper standards of value, tfle use of proper 
classifications of property, determination of what property qualifies as 
exempt from property taxes. and tfle authority to require attendance at 
meetings, to the end that apromote uniform assessment of all real property 
in the county will prevail. 

2. Any city with a population of under five thousand or township may. by 
resolution of its governing body. retain an assessor who is certified or 
eligible to be certified as a class II assessor who shall retain the powers. 
duties. and responsibilities of the office. Any city with a population of five 
thousand or greater may. by resolution of its governing body. retain an 
assessor who is certified or eligible to be certified as a class I assessor 
who shall retain the powers. duties. and responsibilities of the office. A 
person may not serve as an assessor for longer than twenty-four months 
before being certified by the state supervisor of assessments as having 
met the minimum requirements. The expenses of the city or township 
assessors must be paid by the city or township exercising this option. 

~3. On January 1, 1981, theThe county director of tax equalization shall 
. succeed to all the powers and duties of assessors of townships, cities with 
a population of under five thousand, and unorganized districtssupervise all 
individuals performing assessor services in the county and arrange for the 
assessment of property within the county, except that any city with a 
population of under five thousand or township may, at its option by 
resolution of its governing body, employ an assessor who shall retain the 
powers, duties, and responsibilities of the office . The resolutionwithin the 
jurisdiction of a city or township in which the governing body to employ 
aRretains a certified class I or class II assessor continues in force until 
rescinded by the governing body. Notwithstanding any other provision of 
la't'I to the contrary, the state supervisor of assessments shall confer with 
representatives of the county commissioners, city governing bodies, state 
township officers association, and personnel at ~~orth Dal<ota state 
university to establish minimum requirements for all city and township 
assessors. Tho standards shall reflect their limited jurisdiction and need 
not be equal to those minimum requirements set for county directors of tax 
equalization. Any courses of instruction included in those minimum 
requirements for assessors of townships or cities with a population under 
five thousand must be conducted by tho county director of tax equalization 
who may cooperate with other county directors of tax equalization in 
holding joint classes. The county director of tax equalization may call upon 
tho state supervisor of assessments for any necessary materials and 
assistance. No person may serve as an assessor of a township or a city 
with a population under five thousand for longer than tv.•elvc months before 

Page No. 2 15.0149.03007 

• 



-JI;. l .p .3 
being certified by the state supervisor of assessments as having met the 
minimum requirements. ~Jo person may serve as an assessor of a city with 
a population of five thousand or more for longer than three years before 
being certified by the state supervisor of assessments as having met the 
minimum requirements. The expenses and salaries of city and township 
assessors must be paid by the city or township exercising this option. 

&.4. Any city or township wA+ffithat does not employ its ownretain a certified 
class I or class II assessor shall utilize the certified assessor of the county 
in which the city or township is located. The county commission may 
require the city or township to reimburse the county for the expenses 
incurred in assessing the property of that city or township. 

4:-5. Any assessment made by an assessor who is not currently certified as 
qualified for that assessment jurisdiction must be reviewed and approved 
by a certified county director of tax equalization, or a certified city assessor 
of a city with a population of five thousand or moreassessor, prior to the 
township or city board of equalization annual meeting. The cost of the 
assessment review must be paid by the township or city having jurisdiction 
over the assessment at the same rate as paid to a special assessor in 
section 57-14-08. 

SECTION 3. AMENDMENT. Section 18-10-07 of the North Dakota Century Code 
as amended in section 1 of House Bill No. 1056, as approved by the sixty-fourth 
legislative assembly, is amended and reenacted as follows: 

18-10-07. Fire protection policy to be determined - Tax levy. 

The board of directors shall determine a general fire protection policy for the 
district and shall annually estimate the probable expense for carrying out the 
contemplated program. The annual estimate of probable expense may include an 
amount determined by the board of directors to be necessary to be carried over to a 
future year for purchase of firefighting equipment, ambulances, or other emergency 
vehicles. The estimate must be certified by the president and secretary to the proper 
county auditor or county auditors, on or before June thirtieth of each year, who shall 
levy a tax upon the taxable property within the district for the maintenance of the fire 
protection district for the fiscal year as provided by law. The tax may not exceed a tax 
rate of five mills per dollar of the taxable valuation of property in the district except 
upon resolution adopted by the board of directors and approval by a majority of the 
qualified electors voting on the question at an annual or special meeting of electors 
called by the board of directors, the levy may be made in an amount not exceeding 
thirteen mills. If an election to approve or reauthorize an excess levy will be held at an 
annual or special meeting of electors of the district called by the board of directors , 
notice of the meeting and the proposed excess levy election must be provided by at 
least one publication in the official newspaper of each county in which the district is 
located at least seven days, but not more than fourteen days, before the date of the 
public meeting. The published notice must include the amount of the proposed tax_rate 
increase in mills and the duration for which elector approval of the increase is sought 
and must include the location where, and hours during which, ballots may be cast. 

Votes to approve or disapprove the levy increase must be cast on the date of 
the meeting. The polling place must remain open for at least six hours on the date of 
the meeting. The secretary-treasurer of the district shall prepare and distribute to 
qualified electors at the polling place paper ballots to conduct the election on the 
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question of increased levy authority. Three election judges to receive and count the 
ballots, who are qualified electors of the district but not members of the board, must be 
selected at least seven days before the meeting by approval of a majority of the 
members of the board. A marked ballot must be delivered to one of the judges, folded 
to conceal its contents, the judge shall deposit it in the ballot box, and another judge 
shall enter the name of the elector who cast the ballot in the poll book. When the 
election is closed, the judges shall count the ballots and announce the result. Results 
of the election must be certified by the secretary-treasurer of the district and each of 
the election judges to the tax commissioner and to the county auditor of each county in 
which the district is located within ten days after the election. The certificate must 
include a statement of the question as it appeared on the ballot, together with the total 
number of votes cast in favor, and the number of votes cast against, authorizing the 
excess levy. 

After July 31 , 2015, approval or reauthorization by electors of increased levy 
authority under this section may not be effective for more than ten taxable years or the 
period of time necessary for repayment of indebtedness incurred which was intended 
to be repaid from the increased levy. whichever expires later. Additional levy authority 
authorized by the board of directors after petition of electors before August 1, 2015, 
remains in effect under the provisions of law at the time the levy was authorized for the 
time period authorized by the electors but not exceeding #veten taxable years or the 
period of time necessary for repayment of indebtedness incurred which was intended 
to be repaid from the increased levy, whichever expires later. The tax must be: 

1 . Collected as other taxes are collected in the county. 

2. Turned pver to the secretary-treasurer of the rural fire protection district, 
who shall have a surety bond in the amount of at least five thousand 
dollars. 

3. Placed to the credit of the rural fire protection district so authorizing the 
same by its secretary-treasurer in a state or national bank, except amounts 
to be carried over to a future year for purchase of firefighting equipment, 
ambulances, or other emergency vehicles may be invested to earn the 
maximum return available. 

4. Paid out upon warrants drawn upon the fund by authority of the board of 
directors of the district, bearing the signature of the secretary-treasurer and 
the countersignature of the president of the rural fire protection district. 

The amount of tax levy may not exceed the amount of funds required to defray the 
expenses of the district for a period of one year as embraced in the annual estimate of 
expense, including the amount of principal and interest upon the indebtedness of the 
district for the ensuing year and including any amount determined by the board of 
directors to be necessary to be carried over to a future year for purchase of firefighting 
equipment, ambulances, or other emergency vehicles. 

SECTION 4. AMENDMENT. Section 57-01-05 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

57-01-05. State supervisor of assessments. 

The state tax commissioner shall appoint a state supervisor of assessments 
who must be a person trained and experienced in property appraisals and familiar with 
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assessment and equalization procedures and techniques. The state supervisor of 
assessments serves at the pleasure of the state tax commissioner and office space 
must be furnished to the state supervisor of assessments by the commissioner. 

The state supervisor of assessments shall perform the following duties under 
the direction of the tax commissioner: 

1 . The state supervisor of assessments shall advise and give the various 
assessors in the state the necessary instructions and directions as to their 
duties under the laws of this state, to the end that apromote uniform 
assessment of all real and personal property in this state will be attained. 

2. The state supervisor of assessments shall assist and instruct the various 
assessors in this state in the use of soil reeonnaissanee surveys, land 
classification methods, ffi-.tOO preparation and proper use of land maps and 
record cards, ffi-.tOO proper classification of real and personal property, and 
ffi-.tOO determination of proper standards of value. 

3. The state supervisor of assessments may require the attendance of groups 
of assessors at meetings called by the state supervisor of assessments for 
the purpose of giving them further assistance and instruction as to their 
duties. 

4. The state supervisor of assessments may make sales, market, and 
productivity studies and other studies of property assessments in the 
various counties and cities of this state for the purpose ofto properly 
advisingadvise the various assessors and directors of tax equalization in 

·the state and for the purpose of reeommendingto recommend to the tax 
commissioner changes to be made by the state board of equalization in 
the performance of tReits equalization powers and duties prescribed for it 
by section 57 1 a 04. In any sales, market, and productivity study made 
according to section 57-01-06, the county directors of tax equalization or 
city assessors, as the ease may be, are responsible for compiling shall 
compile a record of sales of property made in the county or city, and in 
conjunction with the board of county commissioners shall analyze the 
sales for the purpose of advising the state supervisor of assessments as to 
the value of using the sales in any such study. The compilations must be 
forwarded to the state supervisor of assessments with the findings of the 
county director of tax equalization, city assessors, and the board of county 
commissioners. In any county or city or any part thereof where the number 
of sales of properties is insufficient for making a sales, market, and 
productivity study, the county director of tax equalization or city assessor, 
as the case may be, in cooperation with the state supervisor of 
assessments or that person's assistants shall make appraisals of 
properties in order to determine the market value. 

5. The state supervisor of assessments shall cooperate with North Dakota 
state university in the development of a soil mapping program, a land 
classification system, valuation studies, and other matters relating to the 
assessment of property and shall provide for the use of such information 
and procedure at the earliest possible date by the assessors of this state. 

6. The state supervisor of assessments has general supervision of assessors 
and county directors of tax equalization pertaining to methods and 
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procedures of assessment of all property and has authority to require all 
county directors of tax equalization to do any act necessary to obtain 
uniform methods and procedures of assessment. 

7. Whenever an investigation by the state supervisor of assessments shows 
there is probable cause to believe the holder of a certificate issued by the 
state supervisor of assessments under chapter 11 10.1 section 57-02-01.1 
has failed to comply with any of the provisions of this titlelaw pertaining to 
assessments, or any rules prescribedadopted by the tax commissioner, the 
state supervisor of assessments may petition the tax commissioner for a 
hearing to show cause why the certificate should be suspended or 
revoked. 

a. The state supervisor of assessments must provide the certificate 
holder at least ten days' notice of the time and place of the hearing. 

b. If cause to suspend or revoke the certificate is shown, the tax 
commissioner may suspend or revoke the certificate. 

c. The tax commissioner may restore a certificate after suspension or 
revocation. 

d. An individual whose certificate has been suspended or revoked in the 
manner provided in this section may appeal that determination to the 
district court as provided in section 28-32-42. 

8. If a certificate holder's certificate is suspended or revoked under this 
section, the governing body of the county in which the certificate holder 
performs duties shall ensure the continued administration of assessments 
within that county by a person authorized under section 11-10.1-05 and be 
responsible for any expenses associated with the fulfillment of this 
responsibility. Expenses incurred by a county to fulfill the duties of a 
township or city assessment official whose certificate has been suspended 
or revoked must be charged to the political subdivision in which the 
certificate holder is employed and must either be paid directly to the county 
by the political subdivision or deducted by the county treasurer from funds 
coming into the treasurer's control which are apportionable to the 
subdivision. 

9. The state supervisor of assessments shall perform such other duties 
relating to assessment and taxation of property as the tax commissioner 
directs. 

10. The tax commissioner may prescribeadopt rules under chapter 28-32 
necessary for the detailed and efficient administration of this section. 

SECTION 5. Section 57-02-01.1 of the North Dakota Century Code is created 
and enacted as follows: 

57-02-01.1. Certification of assessors. 

The state supervisor of assessments shall certify assessors as provided in this 
section. 

1:. To be certified as a class I assessor. an individual must: 
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a. Have a high school diploma or its equivalent. 

~ Successfully complete one hundred eighty hours of assessment and 
appraisal instruction approved by the state supervisor of 
assessments. The number of hours of instruction determined 
necessary by the state supervisor of assessments for each of the 
following topics is required: 

ill Tax administration. 

@ Principles and theory of value . 

.Ql Residential property appraisal. 

.(1} Commercial property appraisal. 

.{fil Agricultural property valuation. 

2. To be certified as a class II assessor. an individual must: 

a. Have a high school diploma or its equivalent. 

b. Successfully complete eighty hours of assessment and appraisal 
instruction approved by the state supervisor of assessments. The 
number of hours of instruction determined necessary by the state 
supervisor of assessments for each of the following topics is required: 

ill Tax administration. 

@ Principles and theory of value . 

.Ql Residential property appraisal. 

.(1} Commercial property appraisal. 

.{fil Agricultural property valuation. 

3. The state supervisor of assessments may allow credit against required 
instruction in any topic under subdivision b of subsection 1 and subdivision 
b of subsection 2 upon receipt of documented training in this state or 
another state in the topic. 

4. An individual appointed as an assessor must hold the required assessor 
certificate at the time of appointment or obtain that certificate within two 
years after initial appointment or by July 31. 2017. whichever is later. An 
assessor who does not obtain the required certificate within two years after 
initial appointment or by July 31. 2017. whichever is later. or who does not 
maintain that certificate in good standing is not eligible for reappointment. 

§.,. An assessor certificate is valid for a term of two years from the first day of 
the calendar year for which it becomes effective. 

6. A class I assessor certificate may be renewed if the holder has completed 
twenty hours of approved classroom instruction or seminars during the 
term of the certificate. For purposes of this subsection, an assessor 
certificate holder is entitled to one and one-half hours of credit for each 
hour spent as an instructor of approved classroom instruction or seminars 
during the term of the certificate. 
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7. A class II assessor certificate may be renewed if the holder has completed 
ten hours of approved classroom instruction or seminars during the term of 
the certificate. 

8. The state supervisor of assessments shall notify the holder of an assessor 
certificate of the time for application for renewal of the individual's 
certificate. The state supervisor of assessments shall notify the governing 
body of the taxing district employing an assessor whose certificate is not 
renewed or whose certificate is suspended or revoked . 

9. Any person who is denied a certificate under this section may appeal to the 
tax commissioner for a hearing under chapter 28-32 . 

.1Q,_ The tax commissioner may adopt rules under chapter 28-32 for the 
administration of this section. 

SECTION 6. AMENDMENT. Subsection 1 of section 57-02-08.1 of the North 
Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

1. a. Any person sixty-five years of age or older or permanently and totally 
disabled, in the year in which the tax was levied, with an income that 
does not exceed the limitations of subdivision c is entitled to receive a 
reduction in the assessment on the taxable valuation on the person's 
homestead. An exemption under this subsection applies regardless of 
whether the person is the head of a family. 

b. The exemption under this subsection continues to apply if the person 
does not reside in the homestead and·the person's absence is due to 
confinement in a nursing home, hospital , or other care facility, for as 
long as the portion of the homestead previously occupied by the 
person is not rented to another person. 

c. The exemption must be determined according to the following 
schedule: 

(1) If the person's income is not in excess of twenty-two thousand 
dollars, a reduction of one hundred percent of the taxable 
valuation of the person's homestead up to a maximum reduction 
of fooffive thousand #vesix hundred twenty-five dollars of 
taxable valuation. 

(2) If the person's income is in excess of twenty-two thousand 
dollars and not in excess of twenty-six thousand dollars, a 
reduction of eighty percent of the taxable valuation of the 
person's homestead up to a maximum reduction of #H=eefour 
thousand s»ffive hundred dollars of taxable valuation. 

(3) If the person's income is in excess of twenty-six thousand 
dollars and not in excess of thirty thousand dollars, a reduction 
of sixty percent of the taxable valuation of the person's 
homestead up to a maximum reduction of twethree thousand 
seveRthree hundred seventy-five dollars of taxable valuation. 

(4) If the person's income is in excess of thirty thousand dollars and 
not in excess of thirty-four thousand dollars, a reduction of forty 
percent of the taxable valuation of the person's homestead up to 
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g. 

h. 
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a maximum reduction of ooetwo thousand ~wo hundred fifty 
dollars of taxable valuation. 

(5) If the person's income is in excess of thirty-four thousand dollars 
and not in excess of thirty-eight thousand dollars, a reduction of 
twenty percent of the taxable valuation of the person's 
homestead up to a maximum reduction of flffieone thousand one 
hundred twenty-five dollars of taxable valuation. 

(6) If the person's income is in excess of thirty-eight thousand 
dollars and not in excess of forty-two thousand dollars, a 
reduction of ten percent of the taxable valuation of the person's 
homestead up to a maximum reduction of fett.Ffive hundred 
AAysixty-three dollars of taxable valuation. 

Persons residing together, as spouses or when one or more is a 
dependent of another, are entitled to only one exemption between or 
among them under this subsection. Persons residing together, who 
are not spouses or dependents, who are coowners of the property are 
each entitled to a percentage of a full exemption under this subsection 
equal to their ownership interests in the property. 

This subsection does not reduce the liability of any person for special 
assessments levied upon any property. 

Any person claiming the exemption under this subsection shall sign a 
verified statement of facts establishing the person's eligibility. 

A person is ineligible for the exemption under this subsection if the 
value of the assets of the person and any dependent residing with the 
person exceeds five hundred thousand dollars, including the value of 
any assets divested within the last three years. 

The assessor shall attach the statement filed under subdivision f to 
the assessment sheet and shall show the reduction on the 
assessment sheet. 

i. An exemption under this subsection terminates at the end of the 
taxable year of the death of the applicant. 

SECTION 7. AMENDMENT. Section 57-02-33 of the North Dakota Century Code 
is amended and reenacted as follows: 

57-02-33. Assessor distriotsservices for unorganized territory. 

All counties or parts of counties in this state not organized into ci'l'il 
to·.vnshipsAny area not within an organized township or city must be divided into 
assessor districts, which must be designated by the board of county 
commissionersassessed by a certified assessor under the supervision and direction of 
the county director of tax equalization. The board of county commissioners shall 
appoint the district assessors to a four year term of office , the first term commencing on 
January 1, 1974. In case of vacancy in the office of district assessor in any of such 
districts, such vacancies must be filled by the board of county commissioners for the 
balance of the term. In mal<ing the appointment of a district assessor, theThe county 
director of tax equalization for such county is eligible for appointment to a district 
assessor positionmay serve as an assessor of property under this section . Every 
individual performing assessor of territory not organized into civil townships shall 

Page No. 9 15.0149.03007 



receive asservices under this section is entitled to compensation for services a sumand 
mileage and travel expenses determined by the board of county commissioners for the 
time actually and necessarily employed in making and completing the assessment of 
the districtproperty. The compensation and expenses must be paid from the treasury of 
the county in which such districtthe assessed property is located only upon submission 
of an itemized statement setting forth the actual time spent in the work of the assessor 
and mileage traveled, approved by the board of county commissioners. In addition, the 
district assessor must be paid such mileage as is required to perform the duties of the 
office. The board of county commissioners has the authority to appoint a deputy 
assessor if needed, to be compensated in the same manner as the district assessor." 

Page 5, after line 27, insert: 

"SECTION 11. TRANSITION. The state supervisor of assessments shall 
recertify assessors at the end of the term of any certification that expires after July 31 , 
2017, upon application and submission by the certificate holder of evidence of 
completion of required educational sessions under North Dakota Administrative Code 
chapter 81-02.1-02 or under section 57-02-01.1 or rules adopted to administer that 
section , subject to the following additional requirements: 

1. The holder of a township assessor or class II city assessor certification 
may be recertified as a certified class 11 assessor upon completion of the 
instruction required for class II assessor certification, with credit allowed by 
the state supervisor of assessments for any instruction previously received 
by the applicant for certification as a township assessor. 

2. The holder of a class I city assessor or county director of tax equalization 
certification may be recertified as a certified class I assessor upon 
submission of evidence of completion of required education sessions 
during the term of the class I city assessor or county director of tax 
equalization certification." 

Renumber accordingly 
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REENGROSSED HOUSE BILL NO. 1059 --Jl: d_ .p . I 

(Taxation Committee and Advisory Commission on Intergovernmental Relations) 

1 A BILL for an Act to create and enact section 57-02-01 .1 of the North Dakota Century Code. 

2 relating to training and certification of assessors: to amend and reenact sections 11-10.1-01 

3 11-10.1-05. 18-10-07. and 57-01-05, subsection 1 of section 57-02-08.1. and sections 57-02-33, 

4 57-06-17 .3, 57-20-07.2, and 57-33.2-02 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to training 

5 and certification of assessors. the homestead tax credit. rural fire protection district increased 

6 levy approval, a new transmission line property tax exemption , a state-paid property tax relief 

7 credit, and the transmission line mile tax rate ; to provide for transition; and to provide an 

8 effective date. 

9 BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY OF NORTH DAKOTA: 

10 SECTION 1. AMENDMENT. Section 11-10.1-01 of the North Dakota Century Code is 

11 amended and reenacted as follows: 

12 11-10.1-01. County director of tax equalization. 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

1. The board of county commissioners of each county in this state shall appoint a county 

director of tax equalization who must be qualified and experienced in property 

appraisals, familiar ·.vith assessment and equalization procedures and techniques, and 

who is the holder ofholds a current certificatecertification as a class I assessor issued 

by the state supervisor of assessments. The state supervisor of assessments shall 

confer with representatives of the county commissioners, city governing bodies, state 

township officers association, and personnel at P.Jorth Dakota state university to 

establish or revise the minimum requirements for attaining the certificate. Any person 

who is denied such certificate may appeal to the state tax commissioner for a hearing 

under the provisions of chapter 28 32. 

23 2. The board of county commissioners may, in its discretion, appoint a personcounty 

24 director of tax equal ization on a probationary basis who does not hold a current 
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certificate as provided for in subsection 1 certification as a class I assessor, if the board 

deems such personthe individual qualified to act as county director of tax equalization 

by virtue of education, training,-aM experience. and will ingness to obtain certification 

as a class I assessor. The appointment must be for a term of not more than tfH:eetwo 

years. Any person receiving a probationary appointment who does not obtain a 

certificatecertification as a class I assessor within tfH:eetwo years from the appointment 

is not eligible for reappointment. 

8 3. The county director of tax equalization shall serve at the pleasure of the board of 

9 county commissioners and may be employed on a full-time or part-time basis. 

10 Vacancies in the office of county director of tax equalization must be filled in the same 

11 manner as the original appointment. 

12 SECTION 2. AMENDMENT. Section 11-10.1-05 of the North Dakota Century Code is 

13 amended and reenacted as follows: 

14 11-10.1-05. Powers and duties of county director of tax equalization - Qualifications 

15 of assessors. 

16 1. The county director of tax equalization shall havehas the power, duty, and 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

responsibility to call upon and confer with township and city assessors in the county 

and to instructassist them in the preparation and proper use of land maps and property 

record cards,-#le preparation of assessment books,-#le changes in assessment laws 

and regulationsrules ,-#le determination of proper standards of value,-#le use of proper 

classifications of property, determination of what property qualifies as exempt from 

property taxes, and-#le authority to require attendance at meetings, to the end that 

apromote uniform assessment of all real property in the county will prevail. 

24 2. Any city with a population of under five thousand or township may, by resolution of its 

25 

26 

27 

28 

29 

30 

31 

governing body, retain an assessor who is certified or eligible to be certified as a 

class II assessor who shall retain the powers. duties. and responsibilities of the office. 

Any city with a population of five thousand or greater may, by resolution of its 

governing body, retain an assessor who is certified or eligible to be certified as a 

class I assessor who shall retain the powers. duties, and responsibilities of the office. 

A person may not serve as an assessor for longer than twenty-four months before 

being certified by the state supervisor of assessments as having met the minimum 
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requirements . The expenses of the city or township assessors must be paid by the city 

or township exercising this option. 

3 2-:3. On January 1, 1981, the The county director of tax equalization shall succeed to all the 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

29 

pmuers and duties of assessors of townships, cities with a population of under five 

thousand, and unorganized distriotssupervise all individuals performing assessor 

services in the county and arrange for the assessment of property within the county, 

except that any city with a population of under five thousand or township may, at its 

option by resolution of its governing body, employ an assessor ·.vho shall retain the 

po·.vers, duties, and responsibilities of the office. The resolutionwithin the jurisdiction of 

a city or township in which the governing body to employ anretains a certified class I 

or class II assessor continues in force until resoinded by the governing body. 

Not\vithstanding any other provision of law to the contrary, the state supervisor of 

assessments shall confer with representatives of the county commissioners, oity 

governing bodies, state township officers association, and personnel at North Dakota 

state university to establish minimum requirements for all oity and township assessors. 

The standards shall refleot their limited jurisdiotion and need not be equal to those 

minimum requirements set for county directors of tax equalization. Any courses of 

instruction included in those minimum requirements for assessors of townships or 

cities with a population under five thousand must be conducted by the oounty director 

of tax equalization who may cooperate with other county directors of tax equalization 

in holding joint classes. The county direotor of tax equalization may call upon the state 

supervisor of assessments for any neoessary materials and assistance. ~Jo person 

may serve as an assessor of a township or a oity with a population under five 

thousand for longer than tv.ielve months before being oertified by the state supervisor 

of assessments as having met the minimum requirements. ~Jo person may serve as 

an assessor of a oity with a population of fr;e thousand or more for longer than three 

years before being certified by the state supervisor of assessments as having met the 

minimum requirements. The expenses and salaries of city and township assessors 

must be paid by the oity or tovmship exercising this option . 

30 M . Any city or township ~that does not employ its ovmretain a certified class I or 

31 class II assessor shall utilize the certified assessor of the county in which the city or 
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township is located. The county commission may require the city or township to 

reimburse the county for the expenses incurred in assessing the property of that city or 

township. 

4 4.-5. Any assessment made by an assessor who is not currently certified as qualified for 

5 that assessment jurisdiction must be reviewed and approved by a certified county 

6 director of tax equalization , or a certified city assessor of a city with a population of five 

7 thousand or moreassessor, prior to the township or city board of equalization annual 

8 meeting. The cost of the assessment review must be paid by the township or city 

9 having jurisdiction over the assessment at the same rate as paid to a special assessor 

10 in section 57-14-08. 

11 SECTION 3. AMENDMENT. Section 18-10-07 of the North Dakota Century Code as 

12 amended in section 1 of House Bill No. 1056, as approved by the sixty-fourth legislative 

13 assembly, is amended and reenacted as follows: 

14 18-10-07. Fire protection policy to be determined - Tax levy. 

15 The board of directors shall determine a general fire protection policy for the district and 

16 shall annually estimate the probable expense for carrying out the contemplated program. The 

17 annual estimate of probable expense may include an amount determined by the board of 

18 directors to be necessary to be carried over to a future year for purchase of firefighting 

19 equipment, ambulances, or other emergency vehicles. The estimate must be certified by the 

20 president and secretary to the proper county auditor or county auditors, on or before June 

21 thirtieth of each year, who shall levy a tax upon the taxable property within the district for the 

22 maintenance of the fire protection district for the fiscal year as provided by law. The tax may not 

23 exceed a tax rate of five mills per dollar of the taxable valuation of property in the district except 

24 upon resolution adopted by the board of directors and approval by a majority of the qualified 

25 electors voting on the question at an annual or special meeting of electors called by the board 

26 of directors, the levy may be made in an amount not exceeding thirteen mills. If an election to 

27 approve or reauthorize an excess levy will be held at an annual or special meeting of electors of 

28 the district called by the board of directors, notice of the meeting and the proposed excess levy 

29 election must be provided by at least one publication in the official newspaper of each county in 

30 which the district is located at least seven days, but not more than fourteen days, before the 

31 date of the public meeting. The published notice must include the amount of the proposed tax 
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rate increase in mills and the duration for which elector approval of the increase is sought and 

must include the location where, and hours during which, ballots may be cast. 

Votes to approve or disapprove the levy increase must be cast on the date of the meeting. 

The polling place must remain open for at least six hours on the date of the meeting. The 

secretary-treasurer of the district shall prepare and distribute to qualified electors at the polling 

place paper ballots to conduct the election on the question of increased levy authority. Three 

election judges to receive and count the ballots, who are qualified electors of the district but not 

members of the board, must be selected at least seven days before the meeting by approval of 

a majority of the members of the board. A marked ballot must be delivered to one of the judges, 

folded to conceal its contents, the judge shall deposit it in the ballot box, and another judge shall 

enter the name of the elector who cast the ballot in the poll book. When the election is closed, 

the judges shall count the ballots and announce the result. Results of the election must be 

certified by the secretary-treasurer of the district and each of the election judges to the tax 

commissioner and to the county auditor of each county in which the district is located within ten 

days after the election. The certificate must include a statement of the question as it appeared 

on the ballot, together with the total number of votes cast in favor, and the number of votes cast 

against, authorizing the excess levy. 

After July 31, 2015, approval or reauthorization by electors of increased levy authority under 

this section may not be effective for more than ten taxable years or the period of time necessary 

for repayment of indebtedness incurred which was intended to be repaid from the increased 

levy, whichever expires later. Additional levy authority authorized by the board of directors after 

petition of electors before August 1, 2015, remains in effect under the provisions of law at the 

time the levy was authorized for the time period authorized by the electors but not exceeding 

fiveten taxable years or the period of time necessary for repayment of indebtedness incurred 

which was intended to be repaid from the increased levy, whichever expires later. The tax must 

be: 

1. Collected as other taxes are collected in the county. 

2. Turned over to the secretary-treasurer of the rural fi re protection district, who shall 

have a surety bond in the amount of at least five thousand dollars. 

3. Placed to the credit of the rural fire protection district so authorizing the same by its 

secretary-treasurer in a state or national bank, except amounts to be carried over to a 
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future year for purchase of firefighting equipment, ambulances, or other emergency 

vehicles may be invested to earn the maximum return available . 

3 4. Paid out upon warrants drawn upon the fund by authority of the board of directors of 

4 the district, bearing the signature of the secretary-treasurer and the countersignature 

5 of the president of the rural fire protection district. 

6 The amount of tax levy may not exceed the amount of funds required to defray the expenses of 

7 the district for a period of one year as embraced in the annual estimate of expense, including 

8 the amount of principal and interest upon the indebtedness of the district for the ensuing year 

9 and including any amount determined by the board of directors to be necessary to be carried 

10 over to a future year for purchase of firefighting equipment, ambulances, or other emergency 

11 vehicles. 

12 SECTION 4. AMENDMENT. Section 57-01-05 of the North Dakota Century Code is 

13 amended and reenacted as follows: 

14 57-01-05. State supervisor of assessments. 

15 The state tax commissioner shall appoint a state supervisor of assessments who must be a 

16 person trained and experienced in property appraisals and familiar with assessment and 

17 equalization procedures and techniques. The state supervisor of assessments serves at the 

18 pleasure of the state tax commissioner and office space must be furnished to the state 

19 supervisor of assessments by the commissioner. 

20 The state supervisor of assessments shall perform the following duties under the direction 

21 of the tax commissioner: 

22 1. The state supervisor of assessments shall advise and give the various assessors-ffi 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

29 

the state the necessary instructions and directions as to their duties under the laws of 

this state, to the end that apromote uniform assessment of all real and personal 

property in this state will be attained. 

2. The state supervisor of assessments shall assist and instruct the various assessors in 

this state in the use of soil reconnaissance surveys, land classification methods,..ffi--tAe 

preparation and proper use of land maps and record cards,..ffi--tAe proper classification 

of real and personal property, and..ffi--tAe determination of proper standards of value. 
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3. The state supervisor of assessments may require the attendance of groups of 

assessors at meetings called by the state supervisor of assessments for the purpose 

of giving them further assistance and instruction as to their duties. 

4. The state supervisor of assessments may make sales, market, and productivity 

studies and other studies of property assessments in the various counties and cities of 

this state for the purpose ofto properly advisingadvise the various assessors and 

directors of tax equalization in the state and for the purpose of reeommendingto 

recommend to the tax commissioner changes to be made by the state board of 

equalization in the performance of theits equalization powers and duties preseribed for 

it by seetion 57 13 04 . In any sales, market, and productivity study made according to 

section 57-01-06, the county directors of tax equalization or city assessors, as the 

ease may be, are responsible for eompiling shall compile a record of sales of property 

made in the county or city, and in conjunction with the board of county commissioners 

shall analyze the sales for the purpose of advising the state supervisor of 

assessments as to the value of using the sales in any such study. The compilations 

must be forwarded to the state supervisor of assessments with the findings of the 

county director of tax equalization, city assessors, and the board of county 

commissioners. In any county or city or any part thereof where the number of sales of 

properties is insufficient for making a sales, market, and productivity study, the county 

director of tax equalization or city assessor, as the case may be, in cooperation with 

the state supervisor of assessments or that person's assistants shall make appraisals 

of properties in order to determine the market value. 

5. The state supervisor of assessments shall cooperate with North Dakota state 

university in the development of a soil mapping program, a land classification system, 

valuation studies, and other matters relating to the assessment of property and shall 

provide for the use of such information and procedure at the earliest possible date by 

the assessors of this state. 

6. The state supervisor of assessments has general supervision of assessors and county 

directors of tax equalization pertaining to methods and procedures of assessment of 

all property and has authority to require all county directors of tax equalization to do 

any act necessary to obtain uniform methods and procedures of assessment. 
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1 7. Whenever an investigation by the state supervisor of assessments shows there is 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

probable cause to believe the holder of a certificate issued by the state supervisor of 

assessments under chapter 11 10.1 section 57-02-01 .1 has failed to comply with any 

of the provisions of this titlelaw pertaining to assessments, or any rules 

prescribedadopted by the tax commissioner, the state supervisor of assessments may 

petition the tax commissioner for a hearing to show cause why the certificate should 

be suspended or revoked. 

a. The state supervisor of assessments must provide the certificate holder at least 

ten days' notice of the time and place of the hearing. 

b. If cause to suspend or revoke the certificate is shown, the tax commissioner may 

suspend or revoke the certificate. 

c. The tax commissioner may restore a certificate after suspension or revocation . 

d. An individual whose certificate has been suspended or revoked in the manner 

provided in this section may appeal that determination to the district court....§§. 

provided in section 28-32-42. 

16 8. If a certificate holder's certificate is suspended or revoked under this section, the 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

governing body of the county in which the certificate holder performs duties shall 

ensure the continued administration of assessments within that county by a person 

authorized under section 11-10.1-05 and be responsible for any expenses associated 

with the fulfillment of this responsibility. Expenses incurred by a county to fulfill the 

duties of a township or city assessment official whose certificate has been suspended 

or revoked must be charged to the political subdivision in which the certificate holder is 

employed and must either be paid directly to the county by the political subdivision or 

deducted by the county treasurer from funds coming into the treasurer's control which 

are apportionable to the subdivision. 

9. The state supervisor of assessments shall perform such other duties relating to 

assessment and taxation of property as the tax commissioner directs. 

10. The tax commissioner may prescribeadopt rules under chapter 28-32 necessary for 

29 the detailed and efficient administration of this section. 

30 SECTION 5. Section 57-02-01.1 of the North Dakota Century Code is created and enacted 

31 as follows: 
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1 57-02-01.1. Certification of assessors. 

2 The state supervisor of assessments shall certify assessors as provided in this section. 

3 1. To be certified as a class I assessor. an individual must: 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

29 

30 

31 

a. Have a high school diploma or its equivalent. 

b. Successfully complete one hundred eighty hours of assessment and appraisal 

instruction approved by the state supervisor of assessments. The number of 

hours of instruction determined necessary by the state supervisor of 

assessments for each of the following topics is required : 

(1) Tax administration. 

(2) Principles and theory of value. 

(3) Residential property appraisal. 

( 4) Commercial property appraisal. 

(5) Agricultural property valuation. 

2. To be certified as a class II assessor, an individual must: 

a. Have a high school diploma or its equivalent. 

b. Successfully complete eighty hours of assessment and appraisal instruction 

approved by the state supervisor of assessments. The number of hours of 

instruction determined necessary by the state supervisor of assessments for 

each of the following topics is required : 

(1) Tax administration. 

(2) Principles and theory of value. 

(3) Residential property appraisal. 

(4) Commercial property appraisal. 

(5) Agricultural property valuation. 

3. The state supervisor of assessments may allow credit against required instruction in 

any topic under subdivision b of subsection 1 and subdivision b of subsection 2 upon 

receipt of documented training in this state or another state in the topic. 

4. An individual appointed as an assessor must hold the required assessor certificate at 

the time of appointment or obtain that certificate within two years after initial 

appointment or by July 31. 2017, whichever is later. An assessor who does not obtain 

the required certificate within two years after initial appointment or by July 31 , 2017. 
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whichever is later. or who does not maintain that certificate in good standing is not 

eligible for reappointment. 

3 5. An assessor certificate is valid for a term of two years from the first day of the calendar 

4 year for which it becomes effective. 

5 6. A class I assessor certificate may be renewed if the holder has completed twenty 

6 

7 

8 

9 

hours of approved classroom instruction or seminars during the term of the certificate. 

For purposes of this subsection . an assessor certificate holder is entitled to one and 

one-half hours of credit for each hour spent as an instructor of approved classroom 

instruction or seminars during the term of the certificate. 

10 7. A class II assessor certificate may be renewed if the holder has completed ten hours 

11 of approved classroom instruction or seminars during the term of the certificate. 

12 8. The state supervisor of assessments shall notify the holder of an assessor certificate 

13 

14 

15 

16 

of the time for application for renewal of the individual's certificate. The state 

supervisor of assessments shall notify the governing body of the taxing district 

employing an assessor whose certificate is not renewed or whose certificate is 

suspended or revoked. 

17 9. Any person who is denied a certificate under this section may appeal to the tax 

18 commissioner for a hearing under chapter 28-32. 

19 10. The tax commissioner may adopt rules under chapter 28-32 for the administration of 

20 this section. 

21 SECTION 6. AMENDMENT. Subsection 1 of section 57-02-08.1 of the North Dakota 

22 Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

23 1. a. Any person sixty-five years of age or older or permanently and totally disabled, in 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

29 

30 

31 

the year in which the tax was levied, with an income that does not exceed the 

limitations of subdivision c is entitled to receive a reduction in the assessment on 

the taxable valuation on the person's homestead. An exemption under this 

subsection applies regardless of whether the person is the head of a family. 

b. The exemption under this subsection continues to apply if the person does not 

reside in the homestead and the person's absence is due to confinement in a 

nursing home, hospital, or other care facility, for as long as the portion of the 

homestead previously occupied by the person is not rented to another person. 
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c. The exemption must be determined according to the following schedule: 

(1) If the person's income is not in excess of twenty-two thousand dollars, a 

reduction of one hundred percent of the taxable valuation of the person's 

homestead up to a maximum reduction of feuffive thousand fivesix hundred 

twenty-five dollars of taxable valuation. 

(2) If the person's income is in excess of twenty-two thousand dollars and not in 

excess of twenty-six thousand dollars, a reduction of eighty percent of the 

taxable valuation of the person's homestead up to a maximum reduction of 

#weefour thousand s*five hundred dollars of taxable valuation. 

(3) If the person's income is in excess of twenty-six thousand dollars and not in 

excess of thirty thousand dollars, a reduction of sixty percent of the taxable 

valuation of the person's homestead up to a maximum reduction of twethree 

thousand seveRthree hundred seventy-five dollars of taxable valuation. 

(4) If the person's income is in excess of thirty thousand dollars and not in 

excess of thirty-four thousand dollars, a reduction of forty percent of the 

taxable valuation of the person's homestead up to a maximum reduction of 

eootwo thousand ~two hundred fifty dollars of taxable valuation. 

(5) If the person's income is in excess of thirty-four thousand dollars and not in 

excess of thirty-eight thousand dollars, a reduction of twenty percent of the 

taxable valuation of the person's homestead up to a maximum reduction of 

ffiAeone thousand one hundred twenty-five dollars of taxable valuation. 

(6) If the person's income is in excess of thirty-eight thousand dollars and not in 

excess of forty-two thousand dollars, a reduction of ten percent of the 

taxable valuation of the person's homestead up to a maximum reduction of 

feuffive hundred fiftysixty-three dollars of taxable valuation. 

d. Persons residing together, as spouses or when one or more is a dependent of 

another, are entitled to only one exemption between or among them under this 

subsection. Persons residing together, who are not spouses or dependents, who 

are coowners of the property are each entitled to a percentage of a full exemption 

under this subsection equal to their ownership interests in the property. 
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e. This subsection does not reduce the liability of any person for special 

assessments levied upon any property. 

f. Any person claiming the exemption under this subsection shall sign a verified 

statement of facts establishing the person's eligibility. 

g. A person is ineligible for the exemption under this subsection if the value of the 

assets of the person and any dependent residing with the person exceeds five 

hundred thousand dollars, including the value of any assets divested within the 

last three years. 

h. The assessor shall attach the statement filed under subdivision f to the 

assessment sheet and shall show the reduction on the assessment sheet. 

i. An exemption under this subsection terminates at the end of the taxable year of 

12 the death of the applicant. 

13 SECTION 7. AMENDMENT. Section 57-02-33 of the North Dakota Century Code is 

14 amended and reenacted as follows : 

15 57-02-33. Assessor districtsservices for unorganized territory. 

16 All counties or parts of counties in this state not organized into civil townshipsAny area not 

17 within an organized township or city must be divided into assessor districts, ·.i.1hioh must be 

18 designated by the board of county oommissionersassessed by a certified assessor under the 

19 supervision and direction of the county director of tax equalization. The board of county 

20 oommissioners shall appoint the distriot assessors to a four year term of offioe, the first term 

21 oommenoing on January 1, 1974 . In ease of vacancy in the office of district assessor in any of 

22 such districts, such vacancies must be filled by the board of county commissioners for the 

23 balance of the term. In making the appointment of a district assessor, theThe county director of 

24 tax equalization for such county is eligible for appointment to a district assessor positionmay 

25 serve as an assessor of property under this section. Every individual performing assessor ef 

26 territory not organized into civil townships shall receive asservices under this section is entitled 

27 to compensation for services a sumand mileage and travel expenses determined by the board 

28 of county commissioners for the time actually and necessarily employed in making and 

29 completing the assessment of the distriotproperty. The compensation and expenses must be 

30 paid from the treasury of the county in which such distriotthe assessed property is located only 

31 upon submission of an itemized statement setting forth the actual time spent in the work of the 
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1 assessor and mileage traveled, approved by the board of county commissioners. In addition, 

2 the district assessor must be paid such mileage as is required to perform the duties of the office. 

3 The board of county commissioners has the authority to appoint a deputy assessor if needed, to 

4 be compensated in the same manner as the district assessor. 

5 SECTION 8. AMENDMENT. Section 57-06-17.3 of the North Dakota Century Code is 

6 amended and reenacted as follows: 

7 57-06-17.3. New transmission line property tax exemption. 

8 A transmission line of two hundred thirty kilovolts or larger, and its associated transmission 

9 substations, which is not taxable under chapter 57-33.2 and is initially placed in service on or 

10 after October 1, 2002, is subject to a tax at the rate of three hundred dollars per mile [1.61 

11 kilometers] or fraction of a mile. A transmission line subject to taxation under this section is 

12 exempt from property taxes for the first taxable year after the line is initially placed in service, 

13 and the taxable valuation as otherwise determined by lmu on the transmission line and its 

14 associated transmission substationstaxes under this section must be reduced by: 

15 1. Seventy-five percent for the second taxable year of operation of the transmission line. 

16 2. Fifty percent for the third taxable year of operation of the transmission line. 

17 3. Twenty-five percent for the fourth taxable year of operation of the transmission line. 

18 After the fourth taxable year of operation of the transmission line, the transmission line and 

19 its associated transmission substations are exempt from property taxes and are subject to a tax 

20 at the rate of three hundred dollars per mile [1 .61 kilometers] or fraction thereof of the line 

21 located in this state. The per mile tax imposed by this section applies to the transmission line 

22 and its associated transmission substations and is subject to allocation among counties in the 

23 proportion that the miles of that transmission line in the county bears to the miles of that 

24 transmission line in the state. 

25 For purposes of this section, "initially placed in service" includes both new construction and 

26 substantial expansion of the carrying capacity of a preexisting line, and "substantial expansion" 

27 means an increase in carrying capacity of fifty percent or more. 

28 SECTION 9. AMENDMENT. Section 57-20-07.2 of the North Dakota Century Code is 

29 amended and reenacted as follows: 
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1 57-20-07.2. (Effective for the first two taxable years beginning after December 31, 

2 ~State-paid property tax relief credit. 

3 1. The owner of taxable property is entitled to a credit against property taxes levied 

4 

5 

6 

against the total amount of property or mobile home taxes in dollars levied against the 

taxable value of the property. The credit is equal to twelve percent of property or 

mobile home taxes levied in dollars against that property. 

7 2. The owner, operator, or lessee of railroad property assessed by the state board of 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

equalization under chapter 57-05 or public utility operative property assessed by the 

state board of equalization under chapter 57-06 is entitled to a credit against property 

taxes levied within each county against that property in the amount provided in 

subsection 1 against property taxes levied in dollars against that property in that 

county. 

13 3. The owner. operator, or lessee of transmission lines assessed by the state board of 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

equalization under section 57-06-17.3 is entitled to a credit against taxes per mile in 

the amount provided in subsection 1. The tax commissioner shall determine the total 

amount of credits under this subsection and certify the amount to the state treasurer 

for transfer from the general fund to the electric generation. transmission. and 

distribution tax fund. The credit for each transmission company must be allocated and 

distributed to counties in the same manner as the tax collected from that company is 

allocated. 

21 4. The owner, operator, or lessee of electric transmission or distribution property 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

assessed by the state board of equalization under section 57-33.2-02 or 57-33.2-03 is 

entitled to a credit against the transmission or distribution tax in the amount provided 

in subsection 1. The tax commissioner shall determine the total amount of credits 

under this subsection and certify the amount to the state treasurer for transfer from the 

general fund to the electric generation, transmission, and distribution tax fund. The 

credit for each transmission or distribution company must be allocated and distributed 

to counties in the same manner as the tax collected from that company is allocated. 

29 2. The owner, operator, or lessee of operative property of an air carrier transportation 

30 

31 

company assessed and taxed under chapter 57-32 is entitled to a credit in the amount 

provided in subsection 1 against property taxes in dollars levied against that property. 
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The tax commissioner shall determine the total amount of credits under this 

subsection and certify the amount to the state treasurer for transfer from the general 

fund to the air transportation fund. The credit for each air transportation company must 

be allocated to each city or municipal airport authority where that company makes 

regularly scheduled landings, in the same manner as the tax collected from that 

company is allocated. 

7 4.-6. The tax commissioner shall estimate the amount necessary to provide each county 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

advance payment of seventy-five percent of the amount the county and the taxing 

districts in the county will ultimately receive for a taxable year under this section and 

certify the estimated amounts to the state treasurer by March fifteenth for transfer by 

April first to the county treasurer and distribution to the county and taxing districts in 

the county as provided in subsection fi>Z. 

13 fr.7. The tax commissioner shall determine the total amount of credits under this section for 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

each county from the abstract of the tax list filed by the county auditor under section 

57-20-04, as audited and corrected by the tax commissioner. The tax commissioner 

shall certify to the state treasurer for payment, by June first following receipt of the 

abstract of the tax list, the amount determined for each county under this subsection . 

No penalty or interest applies to any state payment under this section, regardless of 

when the payment is made. The tax commissioner shall reduce the June certification 

of payments to reflect the April estimated payments previously made to counties under 

subsection 4§.. 

22 B-:-8. Upon receipt of the payment from the state treasurer under subsections 4§. and al, the 

23 

24 

25 

county treasurer shall apportion and distribute it to the county and the taxing districts 

in the county on the basis on which the general real estate tax for the preceding year 

is apportioned and distributed. 

26 -7-:-9. After payments to counties under subsection al have been made, the tax 

27 

28 

29 

30 

31 

commissioner shall certify to the state treasurer as necessary any supplemental 

amounts payable to counties or the air transportation fund or any amounts that must 

be returned by counties or returned from the air transportation fund for deposit in the 

state general fund to correct any errors in payments or reflect any abatement or 

compromise of taxes, court-ordered tax reduction or increase, or levy of taxes against 
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omitted property. The county auditor shall provide any supplemental information 

requested by the tax commissioner after submission of the abstract of the tax list. The 

county treasurer shall apply to the tax commissioner for any supplemental payments 

to which the county treasurer believes the county is entitled . 

5 &:-fil Notwithstanding any other provision of law, for any property other than mobile homes, 

6 the property tax credit under this section does not apply to any property subject to 

7 payments or taxes that are stated by law to be in lieu of personal or real property 

8 taxes. 

9 SECTION 10. AMENDMENT. Section 57-33.2-02 of the North Dakota Century Code is 

10 amended and reenacted as follows: 

11 57-33.2-02. Transmission line mile tax - Exemption. 

12 Transmission lines are subject to annual taxes per mile [1.61 kilometers] or fraction of a 

13 mile based on their nominal operating voltages on January first of each year, as follows: 

14 1. For transmission lines that operate at a nominal operating voltage of less than fifty 

15 kilovolts, a tax of fifty dollars . 

16 2. For transmission lines that operate at a nominal operating voltage of fifty kilovolts or 

17 more, but less than one hundred kilovolts, a tax of one hundred dollars . 

18 3. For transmission lines that operate at a nominal operating voltage of one hundred 

19 kilovolts or more, but less than two hundred kilovolts , a tax of two hundred dollars. 

20 4. For transmission lines that operate at a nominal operating voltage of two hundred 

21 kilovolts or more, but less than three hundred kilovolts, a tax of four hundred dollars. 

22 5. For transmission lines that operate at a nominal operating voltage of three hundred 

23 kilovolts or more, a tax of six hundred dollars. 

24 6. A transmission line initially placed in service after January 1, 2009, and before 

25 

26 

27 

28 

29 

30 

December 31, 2013. is exempt from transmission line taxes under this section for the 

first taxable year after the line is initially placed in service, and transmission line taxes 

under this section must be reduced by: 

a. Seventy-five percent for the second taxable year of operation of the transmission 

line. 

b. Fifty percent for the third taxable year of operation of the transmission line. 
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c. Twenty-five percent for the fourth taxable year of operation of the transmission 

line. 

~ After the fourth taxable year of operation , such transmission lines are subject to 

the standard transmission line taxes under this section. 

5 7. A transmission line of two hundred thirty kilovolts or larger initially placed in service 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

after January 1, 2009, is subject to a tax at the rate of three hundred dollars per mile 

[1.61 kilometers] or fraction of a mile. A transmission line subject to tax under this 

subsection is exempt for the first taxable year after the line is initially placed in service, 

and transmission line taxes under this subsection must be reduced by: 

.§..:. Seventy-five percent for the second taxable year of operation of the transmission 

line. 

~ Fifty percent for the third taxable year of operation of the transmission line. 

~ Twenty-five percent for the fourth taxable year of operation of the transmission 

line. 

d. After the fourth taxable year of taxable operation , such transmission lines are 

subject to the standard transmission line taxes under this subsection. 

17 ~ For purposes of this section, "initially placed in service" includes both new construction 

18 and substantial expansion of the carrying capacity of a preexisting line, and 

19 "substantial expansion" means an increase in carrying capacity of fifty percent or 

20 !JlQ@_,_ 

21 SECTION 11. TRANSITION. The state supervisor of assessments shall recertify assessors 

22 at the end of the term of any certification that expires after July 31, 2017, upon application and 

23 submission by the certificate holder of evidence of completion of required educational sessions 

24 under North Dakota Administrative Code chapter 81-02.1-02 or under section 57-02-01 .1 or 

25 rules adopted to administer that section, subject to the following additional requirements: 

26 1. The holder of a township assessor or class II city assessor certification may be 

27 

28 

29 

30 

recertified as a certified class II assessor upon completion of the instruction required 

for class II assessor certification, with credit allowed by the state supervisor of 

assessments for any instruction previously received by the applicant for certification as 

a township assessor. 

Page No. 17 15.0149.03007 



Sixty-fourth 
Legislative Assembly 

1 2. The holder of a class I city assessor or county director of tax equalization certification 

2 may be recertified as a certified class I assessor upon submission of evidence of 

3 completion of required education sessions during the term of the class I city assessor 

4 or county director of tax equalization certification. 

5 SECTION 12. EFFECTIVE DATE. This Act is effective for taxable years beginning after 

6 December 31 , 2014. 
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PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO REENGROSSED HOUSE BILL NO. 1059 

That the Senate recede from its amendments as printed on pages 1735-17 42 of the House 
Journal and pages 1487-1494 of the Senate Journal and that Reengrossed House Bill No. 
1059 be amended as follows: 

Page 1, line 1, after "Act" insert "to create and enact section 57-02-01.1 of the North Dakota 
Century Code, relating to training and certification of assessors;" 

Page 1, line 1, after "sections" insert "11-10.1-01, 11-10.1-05, 18-10-07, and 57-01-05, 
subsection 1 of section 57-02-08.1, and sections 57-02-33," 

Page 1, line 2, after "to" insert "training and certification of assessors, the homestead tax credit, 
rural fire protection district increased levy approval," 

Page 1, line 3, after the semicolon, insert "to provide for transition;" 

Page 1, after line 5, insert: 

"SECTION 1. AMENDMENT. Section 11-10.1-01 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

11-10.1-01. County director of tax equalization. 

1. The board of county commissioners of each county in this state shall 
appoint a county director of tax equalization who must be qualified and 
experienced in property appraisals, familiar with assessment and 
equalization procedures and techniques, and who is the holder ofholds a 
current certificatecertification as a class I assessor issued by the state 
supervisor of assessments. The state supervisor of assessments shall 
confer with representatives of the county commissioners, city governing 
bodies, state township officers association, and personnel at North Dakota 
state university to establish or revise the minimum requirements for 
attaining the certificate. Any person who is denied such certificate may 
appeal to the state tax commissioner for a hearing under the provisions of 
chapter 28 a2. 

2. The board of county commissioners may, in its discretion, appoint a 
personcounty director of tax equalization on a probationary basis who does 
not hold a current certificate as provided for in subsection 1 certification as 
a class I assessor, if the board deems such personthe individual qualified 
to act as county director of tax equalization by virtue of education, training, 
aR9 experience. and willingness to obtain certification as a class I 
assessor. The appointment must be for a term of not more than tRreetwo 
years. Any person receiving a probationary appointment who does not 
obtain a certificatecertification as a class I assessor within tRreetwo years 
from the appointment is not eligible for reappointment. 

3. The county director of tax equalization shall serve at the pleasure of the 
board of county commissioners and may be employed on a full-time or 
part-time basis. Vacancies in the office of county director of tax 
equalization must be filled in the same manner as the original appointment. 
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SECTION 2. AMENDMENT. Section 11-10.1-05 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

11-10.1-05. Powers and duties of county director of tax equalization -
Qualifications of assessors. 

1. The county director of tax equalization shall havehas the power, duty, and 
responsibility to call upon and confer with township and city assessors in 
the county and to instructassist them in the preparation and proper use of 
land maps and property record cards, tRe preparation of assessment 
books, tRe changes in assessment laws and regulationsrules , #le 
determination of proper standards of value, tRe use of proper 
classifications of property, determination of what property qualifies as 
exempt from property taxes. and #le authority to require attendance at 
meetings, to the end that apromote uniform assessment of all real property 
in the county will prevail. 

2. Any city with a population of under five thousand or township may. by 
resolution of its governing body. retain an assessor who is certified or 
eligible to be certified as a class II assessor who shall retain the powers. 
duties. and responsibilities of the office. Any city with a population of five 
thousand or greater may, by resolution of its governing body. retain an 
assessor who is certified or eligible to be certified as a class I assessor 
who shall retain the powers. duties. and responsibilities of the office. A 
person may not serve as an assessor for longer than twenty-four months 
before being certified by the state supervisor of assessments as having 
met the minimum requirements. The expenses of the city or township 
assessors must be paid by the city or township exercising this option. 

~3. On January 1, 1981, theThe county director of tax equalization shall 
succeed to all the powers and duties of assessors of tm'Ynships, cities with 
a population of under five thousand, and unorganized districtssupervise all 
individuals performing assessor services in the county and arrange for the 
assessment of property within the county, except that any city with a 
population of under five thousand or township may, at its option by 
resolution of its governing body, employ an assessor who shall retain the 
powers, duties, and responsibilities of the office. The resolutionwithin the 
jurisdiction of a city or township in which the governing body to employ 
ooretains a certified class I or class II assessor continues in force until 
rescinded by the governing body. Notwithstanding any other provision of 
law to the contrary, the state supervisor of assessments shall confer with 
representatives of the county commissioners, city go•1erning bodies, state 
township officers association, and personnel at North Dakota state 
university to establish minimum requirements for all city and township 
assessors . The standards shall reflect their limited jurisdiction and need 
not be equal to those minimum requirements set for county directors of tax 
equalization. Any courses of instruction included in those minimum 
requirements for assessors of townships or cities with a population under 
five thousand must be conducted by the county director of tax equalization 
't't'ho may cooperate with other county directors of tax equalization in 
holding joint classes. The county director of tax equalization may call upon 
the state supervisor of assessments for any necessary materials and 
assistance. No person may serve as an assessor of a township or a city 
with a population under five thousand for longer than twelve months before 
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being certified by the state supervisor of assessments as having met the 
minimum requirements. ~Jo person may serve as an assessor of a city ·.vith 
a population of five thousand or more for longer than three years before 
being certified by the state supervisor of assessments as having met the 
minimum requirements. The expenses and salaries of city and township 
assessors must be paid by the city or township exercising this option. 

3:4. Any city or township wffieRthat does not employ its ownretain a certified 
class I or class II assessor shall utilize the certified assessor of the county 
in which the city or township is located. The county commission may 
require the city or township to reimburse the county for the expenses 
incurred in assessing the property of that city or township. 

4:-5. Any assessment made by an assessor who is not currently certified as 
qualified for that assessment jurisdiction must be reviewed and approved 
by a certified county director of tax equalization, or a certified city assessor 
of a city ·.vith a population of five thousand or moreassessor, prior to the 
township or city board of equalization annual meeting. The cost of the 
assessment review must be paid by the township or city having jurisdiction 
over the assessment at the same rate as paid to a special assessor in 
section 57-14-08. 

SECTION 3. AMENDMENT. Section 18-10-07 of the North Dakota Century Code 
as amended in section 1 of House Bill No. 1056, as approved by the sixty-fourth 
legislative assembly, is amended and reenacted as follows: 

18-10-07. Fire protection policy to be determined -Tax levy. 

The board of directors shall determine a general fire protection policy for the 
district and shall annually estimate the probable expense for carrying out the 
contemplated program. The annual estimate of probable expense may include an 
amount determined by the board of directors to be necessary to be carried over to a 
future year for purchase of firefighting equipment, ambulances, or other emergency 
vehicles. The estimate must be certified by the president and secretary to the proper 
county auditor or county auditors, on or before June thirtieth of each year, who shall 
levy a tax upon the taxable property within the district for the maintenance of the fire 
protection district for the fiscal year as provided by law. The tax may not exceed a tax 
rate of five mills per dollar of the taxable valuation of property in the district except 
upon resolution adopted by the board of directors and approval by a majority of the 
qualified electors voting on the question at an annual or special meeting of electors 
called by the board of directors, the levy may be made in an amount not exceeding 
thirteen mills. If an election to approve or reauthorize an excess levy will be held at an 
annual or special meeting of electors of the district called by the board of directors, 
notice of the meeting and the proposed excess levy election must be provided by at 
least one publication in the official newspaper of each county in which the district is 
located at least seven days, but not more than fourteen days, before the date of the 
public meeting. The published notice must include the amount of the proposed tax_rate 
increase in mills and the duration for which elector approval of the increase is sought 
and must include the location where, and hours during which, ballots may be cast. 

Votes to approve or disapprove the levy increase must be cast on the date of 
the meeting. The polling place must remain open for at least six hours on the date of 
the meeting. The secretary-treasurer of the district shall prepare and distribute to 
qualified electors at the polling place paper ballots to conduct the election on the 
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question of increased levy authority. Three election judges to receive and count the 
ballots, who are qualified electors of the district but not members of the board, must be 
selected at least seven days before the meeting by approval of a majority of the 
members of the board. A marked ballot must be delivered to one of the judges, folded 
to conceal its contents, the judge shall deposit it in the ballot box, and another judge 
shall enter the name of the elector who cast the ballot in the poll book. When the 
election is closed , the judges shall count the ballots and announce the result. Results 
of the election must be certified by the secretary-treasurer of the district and each of 
the election judges to the tax commissioner and to the county auditor of each county in 
which the district is located within ten days after the election. The certificate must 
include a statement of the question as it appeared on the ballot, together with the total 
number of votes cast in favor, and the number of votes cast against, authorizing the 
excess levy. 

After July 31 , 2015, approval or reauthorization by electors of increased levy 
authority under this section may not be effective for more than ten taxable years or the 
period of time necessary for repayment of indebtedness incurred which was intended 
to be repaid from the increased levy. whichever expires later. Additional levy authority 
authorized by the board of directors after petition of electors before August 1, 2015, 
remains in effect under the provisions of law at the time the levy was authorized for the 
time period authorized by the electors but not exceeding fi.veten taxable years or the 
period of time necessary for repayment of indebtedness incurred which was intended 
to be repaid from the increased levy. whichever expires later. The tax must be: 

1. Collected as other taxes are collected in the county. 

2. Turned over to the secretary-treasurer of the rural fire protection district, 
who shall have a surety bond in the amount of at least five thousand 
dollars. 

3. Placed to the credit of the rural fire protection district so authorizing the 
same by its secretary-treasurer in a state or national bank, except amounts 
to be carried over to a future year for purchase of firefighting equipment, 
ambulances, or other emergency vehicles may be invested to earn the 
maximum return available. 

4. Paid out upon warrants drawn upon the fund by authority of the board of 
directors of the district, bearing the signature of the secretary-treasurer and 
the countersignature of the president of the rural fire protection district. 

The amount of tax levy may not exceed the amount of funds required to defray the 
expenses of the district for a period of one year as embraced in the annual estimate of 
expense, including the amount of principal and interest upon the indebtedness of the 
district for the ensuing year and including any amount determined by the board of 
directors to be necessary to be carried over to a future year for purchase of firefighting 
equipment, ambulances, or other emergency vehicles. 

SECTION 4. AMENDMENT. Section 57-01-05 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

57-01-05. State supervisor of assessments. 

The state tax commissioner shall appoint a state supervisor of assessments 
who must be a person trained and experienced in property appraisals and famil iar with 
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assessment and equalization procedures and techniques. The state supervisor of 
assessments serves at the pleasure of the state tax commissioner and office space 
must be furnished to the state supervisor of assessments by the commissioner. 

The state supervisor of assessments shall perform the following duties under 
the direction of the tax commissioner: 

1. The state supervisor of assessments shall advise and give the various 
assessors in the state the necessary instructions and directions as to their 
duties under the laws of this state, to the end that apromote uniform 
assessment of all real and personal property in this state will be attained. 

2. The state supervisor of assessments shall assist and instruct the various 
assessors in this state in the use of soil reconnaissance surveys, land 
classification methods, fA...tRe preparation and proper use of land maps and 
record cards, fA...tRe proper classification of real and personal property, and 
fA...tRe determination of proper standards of value. 

3. The state supervisor of assessments may require the attendance of groups 
of assessors at meetings called by the state supervisor of assessments for 
the purpose of giving them further assistance and instruction as to their 
duties. 

4. The state supervisor of assessments may make sales, market, and 
productivity studies and other studies of property assessments in the 
various counties and cities of this state for the purpose ofto properly 
advisingadvise the various assessors and directors of tax equalization in 
the state and for the purpose of recommendingto recommend to the tax · 
commissioner changes to be made by the state board of equalization in 
the performance of tAeits equalization powers and duties prescribed for it 
by section 57 1 a 04. In any sales, market, and productivity study made 
according to section 57-01-06, the county directors of tax equalization or 
city assessors, as the case may be, are responsible for compiling shall 
compile a record of sales of property made in the county or city, and in 
conjunction with the board of county commissioners shall analyze the 
sales for the purpose of advising the state supervisor of assessments as to 
the value of using the sales in any such study. The compilations must be 
forwarded to the state supervisor of assessments with the findings of the 
county director of tax equalization, city assessors, and the board of county 
commissioners. In any county or city or any part thereof where the number 
of sales of properties is insufficient for making a sales, market, and 
productivity study, the county director of tax equalization or city assessor, 
as the case may be, in cooperation with the state supervisor of 
assessments or that person's assistants shall make appraisals of 
properties in order to determine the market value. 

5. The state supervisor of assessments shall cooperate with North Dakota 
state university in the development of a soil mapping program , a land 
classification system, valuation studies, and other matters relating to the 
assessment of property and shall provide for the use of such information 
and procedure at the earliest possible date by the assessors of this state. 

6. The state supervisor of assessments has general supervision of assessors 
and county directors of tax equalization pertaining to methods and 
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procedures of assessment of all property and has authority to require all 
county directors of tax equalization to do any act necessary to obtain 
uniform methods and procedures of assessment. 

7. Whenever an investigation by the state supervisor of assessments shows 
there is probable cause to believe the holder of a certificate issued by the 
state supervisor of assessments under chapter 11 10.1 section 57-02-01.1 
has failed to comply with any of the provisions of this titlelaw pertaining to 
assessments, or any rules prescribedadopted by the tax commissioner, the 
state supervisor of assessments may petition the tax commissioner for a 
hearing to show cause why the certificate should be suspended or 
revoked. 

a. The state supervisor of assessments must provide the certificate 
holder at least ten days' notice of the time and place of the hearing. 

b. If cause to suspend or revoke the certificate is shown, the tax 
commissioner may suspend or revoke the certificate. 

c. The tax commissioner may restore a certificate after suspension or 
revocation. 

d. An individual whose certificate has been suspended or revoked in the 
manner provided in this section may appeal that determination to the 
district court as provided in section 28-32-42. 

8. If a certificate holder's certificate is suspended or revoked under this 
section, the governing body of the county in which the certificate holder 
performs duties shall ensure the continued administration of assessments 
within that county by a person authorized under section 11-10.1-05 and be 
responsible for any expenses associated with the fulfillment of this 
responsibility. Expenses incurred by a county to fulfill the duties of a 
township or city assessment official whose certificate has been suspended 
or revoked must be charged to the political subdivision in which the 
certificate holder is employed and must either be paid directly to the county 
by the political subdivision or deducted by the county treasurer from funds 
coming into the treasurer's control which are apportionable to the 
subdivision. 

9. The state supervisor of assessments shall perform such other duties 
relating to assessment and taxation of property as the tax commissioner 
directs. 

10. The tax commissioner may prescribeadopt rules under chapter 28-32 
necessary for the detailed and efficient administration of this section. 

SECTION 5. Section 57-02-01 .1 of the North Dakota Century Code is created 
and enacted as follows: 

57-02-01.1. Certification of assessors. 

The state supervisor of assessments shall certify assessors as provided in this 
section. 

1.:. To be certified as a class I assessor. an individual must: 
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a. Have a high school diploma or its equivalent. 

!L Successfully complete one hundred eighty hours of assessment and 
appraisal instruction approved by the state supervisor of 
assessments. The number of hours of instruction determined 
necessary by the state supervisor of assessments for each of the 
following topics is required: 

ill Tax administration. 

@ Principles and theory of value. 

@ Residential property appraisal. 

.(11 Commercial property appraisal. 

.(fil Agricultural property valuation. 

2. To be certified as a class II assessor. an individual must: 

a. Have a high school diploma or its equivalent. 

b. Successfully complete eighty hours of assessment and appraisal 
instruction approved by the state supervisor of assessments. The 
number of hours of instruction determined necessary by the state 
supervisor of assessments for each of the following topics is required: 

ill Tax administration. 

@ Principles and theory of value. 

@ Residential property appraisal. 

.(11 Commercial property appraisal. 

.(fil Agricultural property valuation. 

3. The state supervisor of assessments may allow credit against required 
instruction in any topic under subdivision b of subsection 1 and subdivision 
b of subsection 2 upon receipt of documented training in this state or 
another state in the topic. 

4. An individual appointed as an assessor must hold the required assessor 
certificate at the time of appointment or obtain that certificate within two 
years after initial appointment or by July 31. 2017, whichever is later. An 
assessor who does not obtain the required certificate within two years after 
initial appointment or by July 31, 2017, whichever is later. or who does not 
maintain that certificate in good standing is not eligible for reappointment. 

~ An assessor certificate is valid for a term of two years from the first day of 
the calendar year for which it becomes effective. 

6. A class I assessor certificate may be renewed if the holder has completed 
twenty hours of approved classroom instruction or seminars during the 
term of the certificate. For purposes of this subsection. an assessor 
certificate holder is entitled to one and one-half hours of credit for each 
hour spent as an instructor of approved classroom instruction or seminars 
during the term of the certificate. 
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7. A class II assessor certificate may be renewed if the holder has completed 
ten hours of approved classroom instruction or seminars during the term of 
the certificate. 

8. The state supervisor of assessments shall notify the holder of an assessor 
certificate of the time for application for renewal of the individual's 
certificate. The state supervisor of assessments shall notify the governing 
body of the taxing district employing an assessor whose certificate is not 
renewed or whose certificate is suspended or revoked. 

9. Any person who is denied a certificate under this section may appeal to the 
tax commissioner for a hearing under chapter 28-32. 

10. The tax commissioner may adopt rules under chapter 28-32 for the 
administration of this section . 

SECTION 6. AMENDMENT. Subsection 1 of section 57-02-08.1 of the North 
Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

1. a. Any person sixty-five years of age or older or permanently and totally 
disabled, in the year in which the tax was levied, with an income that 
does not exceed the limitations of subdivision c is entitled to receive a 
reduction in the assessment on the taxable valuation on the person's 
homestead. An exemption under this subsection applies regardless of 
whether the person is the head of a family. 

b. The exemption under this subsection continues to apply if the person 
does not reside in the homestead and the person's absence is due to 
confinement in a nursing home, hospital, or other care facility, for as 
long as the portion of the homestead previously occupied by the 
person is not rented to another person. 

c. The exemption must be determined according to the following 
schedule: 

(1) If the person's income is not in excess of twenty-two thousand 
dollars, a reduction of one hundred percent of the taxable 
valuation of the person's homestead up to a maximum reduction 
of fooffive thousand ffifesix hundred twenty-five dollars of 
taxable valuation. 

(2) If the person's income is in excess of twenty-two thousand 
dollars and not in excess of twenty-six thousand dollars, a 
reduction of eighty percent of the taxable valuation of the 
person's homestead up to a maximum reduction of tAreefour 
thousand ~five hundred dollars of taxable valuation. 

(3) If the person's income is in excess of twenty-six thousand 
dollars and not in excess of thirty thousand dollars, a reduction 
of sixty percent of the taxable valuation of the person's 
homestead up to a maximum reduction of twethree thousand 
seY(ffithree hundred seventy-five dollars of taxable valuation. 

(4) If the person's income is in excess of thirty thousand dollars and 
not in excess of thirty-four thousand dollars, a reduction of forty 
percent of the taxable valuation of the person's homestead up to 
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a maximum reduction of eootwo thousand ~wo hundred fifty 
dollars of taxable valuation. 

(5) If the person's income is in excess of thirty-four thousand dollars 
and not in excess of thirty-eight thousand dollars, a reduction of 
twenty percent of the taxable valuation of the person's 
homestead up to a maximum reduction of ffifleone thousand one 
hundred twenty-five dollars of taxable valuation. 

(6) If the person's income is in excess of thirty-eight thousand 
dollars and not in excess of forty-two thousand dollars, a 
reduction of ten percent of the taxable valuation of the person's 
homestead up to a maximum reduction of foo.Ffive hundred 
mtysixty-three dollars of taxable valuation. 

d. Persons residing together, as spouses or when one or more is a 
dependent of another, are entitled to only one exemption between or 
among them under this subsection. Persons residing together, who 
are not spouses or dependents, who are coowners of the property are 
each entitled to a percentage of a full exemption under this subsection 
equal to their ownership interests in the property. 

e. This subsection does not reduce the liability of any person for special 
assessments levied upon any property. 

f. Any person claiming the exemption under this subsection shallsign a 
verified statement of facts establishing the person's eligibility. 

g. A person is ineligible for the exemption under this subsection if the 
value of the assets of the person and any dependent residing with the 
person exceeds five hundred thousand dollars, including the value of 
any assets divested within the last three years. 

h. The assessor shall attach the statement filed under subdivision f to 
the assessment sheet and shall show the reduction on the 
assessment sheet. 

i. An exemption under this subsection terminates at the end of the 
taxable year of the death of the applicant. 

SECTION 7. AMENDMENT. Section 57-02-33 of the North Dakota Century Code 
is amended and reenacted as follows: 

57-02-33. Assessor distriotsservices for unorganized territory. 

/\II counties or parts of counties in this state not organized into civil 
townshipsAny area not within an organized township or city must be divided into 
assessor districts, which must be designated by the board of county 
commissionersassessed by a certified assessor under the supervision and direction of 
the county director of tax equalization . The board of county commissioners shall 
appoint the district assessors to a four year term of office, the first term commencing on 
January 1, 1974. In case of vacancy in the office of district assessor in any of such 
districts, such vacancies must be filled by the board of county commissioners for the 
balance of the term. In making the appointment of a district assessor, theThe county 
director of tax equalization for such county is eligible for appointment to a district 
assessor positionmay serve as an assessor of property under this section . Every 
individual performing assessor of territory not organized into civil townships shall 
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receive asservices under this section is entitled to compensation for services a sumand 
mileage and travel expenses determined by the board of county commissioners for the 
time actually and necessarily employed in making and completing the assessment of 
the districtproperty. The compensation and expenses must be paid from the treasury of 
the county in which such districtthe assessed property is located only upon submission 
of an itemized statement setting forth the actual time spent in the work of the assessor 
and mileage traveled, approved by the board of county commissioners. In addition, the 
district assessor must be paid such mileage as is required to perform the duties of the 
office. The board of county commissioners has the authority to appoint a deputy 
assessor if needed, to be compensated in the same manner as the district assessor." 

Page 5, after line 27, insert: 

"SECTION 11. TRANSITION. The state supervisor of assessments shall 
recertify assessors at the end of the term of any certification that expires after July 31, 
2017, upon application and submission by the certificate holder of evidence of 
completion of required educational sessions under North Dakota Administrative Code 
chapter 81-02.1-02 or under section 57-02-01.1 or rules adopted to administer that 
section, subject to the following additional requirements: 

1. The holder of a township assessor or class II city assessor certification 
may be recertified as a certified class 11 assessor upon completion of the 
instruction required for class II assessor certification, with credit allowed by 
the state supervisor of assessments for any instruction previously received 
by the applicant for certification as a township assessor. 

2. The holder of a class I city assessor or county director of tax equalization 
certification may be recertified as a certified class I assessor upon 
submission of evidence of completion of required education sessions 
during the term of the class I city assessor or county director of tax 
equalization certification." 

Page 5, line 29, after "2014" insert ", except section 6, which is effective for taxable years 
beginning after December 31, 2015." 

Renumber accordingly 
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15.0149.03010 SECOND ENGROSSMENT 
H~ 105q 
4 -~1..J-15 

Sixty-fourth 
Legislative Assembly 
of North Dakota 

Introduced by 

Legislative Management 

REENGROSSED HOUSE BILL NO. 1059 

(Taxation Committee and Advisory Commission on Intergovernmental Relations) 

#J..p .I 

A BILL for an Act to create and enact section 57-02-01.1 of the North Dakota Century Code. 

relating to training and certification of assessors; to amend and reenact sections 11 -10.1-01 

11-10.1-05, 18-10-07, and 57-01-05, subsection 1 of section 57-02-08.1, and sections 57-02-33, 

57-06-17.3, 57-20-07.2, and 57-33.2-02 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to training 

and certification of assessors. the homestead tax credit. rural fire protection district increased 

levy approval, a new transmission line property tax exemption, a state-paid property tax relief 

credit, and the transmission line mile tax rate; to provide for transition ; and to provide an 

effective date . 

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY OF NORTH DAKOTA: 

SECTION 1.AMENDMENT. Section 11-10.1-01 of the North Dakota Century Code is 

amended and reenacted as follows: 

11-10.1-01. County director of tax equalization. 

1. The board of county commissioners of each county in this state shall appoint a county 

director of tax equalization who must be qualified and experienced in property 

appraisals, familiar with assessment and equalization procedures and techniques, and 

who is the holder ofholds a current certificatecertification as a class I assessor issued 

by the state supervisor of assessments. The state supervisor of assessments shall 

confer with representatives of the county commissioners, city governing bodies, state 

township officers association, and personnel at North Dakota state university to 

establish or revise the minimum requirements for attaining the certificate. Any person 

'Nho is denied such certificate may appeal to the state tax commissioner for a hearing 

under the provisions of chapter 28 32 . 

2. The board of county commissioners may, in its discretion, appoint a personcounty 

director of tax equalization on a probationary basis who does not hold a current 
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oertifioate as provided for in subsection 1 certification as a class I assessor, if the board 

deems suoh personthe individual qualified to act as county director of tax equalization 

by virtue of education, training,--aOO experience. and willingness to obtain certification 

as a class I assessor. The appointment must be for a term of not more than ti=H=eetwo 

years. Any person receiving a probationary appointment who does not obtain a 

oertifioatecertification as a class I assessor within ti=H=eetwo years from the appointment 

is not eligible for reappointment. 

8 3. The county director of tax equalization shall serve at the pleasure of the board of 

9 county commissioners and may be employed on a full-time or part-time basis. 

10 Vacancies in the office of county director of tax equalization must be filled in the same 

11 manner as the original appointment. 

12 SECTION 2. AMENDMENT. Section 11-10.1-05 of the North Dakota Century Code is 

13 amended and reenacted as follows: 

14 11-10.1-05. Powers and duties of county director of tax equalization - Qualifications 

15 of assessors. 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

29 

30 

31 

1. The county director of tax equalization shall havehas the power, duty, and 

responsibility to call upon and confer with township and oity assessors in the county 

and to instruotassist them in the preparation and proper use of land maps and property 

record cards,-tAe preparation of assessment books,-tAe changes in assessment laws 

and regulationsrules ,-tAe determination of proper standards of value,-tAe use of proper 

classifications of property, determination of what property qualifies as exempt from 

property taxes. and-tAe authority to require attendance at meetings, to the end that 

apromote uniform assessment of all real property in the county will prevail. 

2. Any city with a population of under five thousand or township may, by resolution of its 

governing body, retain an assessor who is certified or eligible to be certified as a 

class II assessor who shall retain the powers, duties. and responsibilities of the office. 

Any city with a population of five thousand or greater may, by resolution of its 

governing body, retain an assessor who is certified or eligible to be certified as a 

class I assessor who shall retain the powers. duties. and responsibilities of the office. 

A person may not serve as an assessor for longer than twenty-four months before 

being certified by the state supervisor of assessments as having met the minimum 
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requirements. The expenses of the city or township assessors must be paid by the city 

or township exercising this option . 

~~ On January 1, 1981, the The county director of tax equalization shall succeed to all the 

powers and duties of assessors of townships, cities \\'ith a population of under five 

thousand, and unorganized districtssupervise all individuals performing assessor 

services in the county and arrange for the assessment of property within the county, 

except that any city with a population of under five thousand or township may, at its 

option by resolution of its governing body, employ an assessor who shall retain the 

powers, duties, and responsibilities of the office. The resolutionwithin the jurisdiction of 

a city or township in which the governing body to employ anretains a certified class I 

or class II assessor continues in force until rescinded by the governing body. 

Not\vithstanding any other provision of law to the contrary, the state supervisor of 

assessments shall confer with representatives of the county commissioners , city 

governing bodies, state township offioers assooiation, and personnel at North Dakota 

state university to establish minimum requirements for all oity and township assessors. 

The standards shall refleot their limited jurisdiotion and need not be equal to those 

minimum requirements set for oounty direotors of tax equalization. Any oourses of 

instruotion inoluded in those minimum requirements for assessors of townships or 

oities with a population under five thousand must be oonduoted by the county director 

of tax equalization who may cooperate with other oounty directors of tax equalization 

in holding joint olasses. The oounty direotor of tax equalization may call upon the state 

supervisor of assessments for any necessary materials and assistance. No person 

may serve as an assessor of a township or a city with a population under five 

thousand for longer than tlvelve months before being certified by the state supervisor 

of assessments as having met the minimum requirements. No person may serve as 

an assessor of a oity with a population of five thousand or more for longer than three 

years before being certified by the state supervisor of assessments as having met the 

minimum requirements. The expenses and salaries of city and township assessors 

must be paid by the oity or township exercising this option. 

30 ~4. Any city or township wffiehthat does not employ its ownretain a certified class I or 

• 31 class II assessor shall utilize the certified assessor of the county in which the city or 
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township is located. The county commission may require the city or township to 1 

2 

3 

reimburse the county for the expenses incurred in assessing the property of that city or • 

township. 

4 4.-§,_ Any assessment made by an assessor who is not currently certified as qualified for 

5 that assessment jurisdiotion must be reviewed and approved by a certified oounty 

6 direotor of tax equalization, or a certified city assessor of a oity with a population of five 

7 thousand or moreassessor, prior to the township or city board of equalization annual 

8 meeting. The cost of the assessment review must be paid by the township or city 

9 having jurisdiction over the assessment at the same rate as paid to a special assessor 

10 in section 57-14-08. 

11 SECTION 3. AMENDMENT. Section 18-10-07 of the North Dakota Century Code as 

12 amended in section 1 of House Bill No. 1056, as approved by the sixty-fourth legislative 

13 assembly, is amended and reenacted as follows: 

14 18-10-07. Fire protection policy to be determined-Tax levy. 

15 The board of directors shall determine a general fire protection policy for the district and 

16 shall annually estimate the probable expense for carrying out the contemplated program. The 

17 annual estimate of probable expense may include an amount determined by the board of • 
18 directors to be necessary to be carried over to a future year for purchase of firefighting 

19 equipment, ambulances, or other emergency vehicles. The estimate must be certified by the 

20 president and secretary to the proper county auditor or county auditors, on or before June 

21 thirtieth of each year, who shall levy a tax upon the taxable property within the district for the 

22 maintenance of the fire protection district for the fiscal year as provided by law. The tax may not 

23 exceed a tax rate of five mills per dollar of the taxable valuation of property in the district except 

24 upon resolution adopted by the board of directors and approval by a majority of the qualified 

25 electors voting on the question at an annual or special meeting of electors called by the board 

26 of directors, the levy may be made in an amount not exceeding thirteen mills. If an election to 

27 approve or reauthorize an excess levy will be held at an annual or special meeting of electors of 

28 the district called by the board of directors, notice of the meeting and the proposed excess levy 

29 election must be provided by at least one publication in the official newspaper of each county in 

30 which the district is located at least seven days, but not more than fourteen days, before the 

31 date of the public meeting. The published notice must include the amount of the proposed tax • 
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1 rate increase in mills and the duration for which elector approval of the increase is sought and 

• 2 must include the location where, and hours during which, ballots may be cast. 

• 

3 Votes to approve or disapprove the levy increase must be cast on the date of the meeting. 

4 The polling place must remain open for at least six hours on the date of the meeting. The 

5 secretary-treasurer of the district shall prepare and distribute to qualified electors at the polling 

6 place paper ballots to conduct the election on the question of increased levy authority. Three 

7 election judges to receive and count the ballots, who are qualified electors of the district but not 

8 members of the board, must be selected at least seven days before the meeting by approval of 

9 a majority of the members of the board. A marked ballot must be delivered to one of the judges, 

10 folded to conceal its contents, the judge shall deposit it in the ballot box, and another judge shall 

11 enter the name of the elector who cast the ballot in the poll book. When the election is closed, 

12 the judges shall count the ballots and announce the result. Results of the election must be 

13 certified by the secretary-treasurer of the district and each of the election judges to the tax 

14 commissioner and to the county auditor of each county in which the district is located within ten 

15 days after the election. The certificate must include a statement of the question as it appeared 

16 on the ballot, together with the total number of votes cast in favor, and the number of votes cast 

17 against, authorizing the excess levy. 

18 After July 31, 2015, approval or reauthorization by electors of increased levy authority under 

19 this section may not be effective for more than ten taxable years or the period of time necessary 

20 for repayment of indebtedness incurred which was intended to be repaid from the increased 

21 levy, whichever expires later. Additional levy authority authorized by the board of directors after 

22 petition of electors before August 1, 2015, remains in effect under the provisions of law at the 

23 time the levy was authorized for the time period authorized by the electors but not exceeding 

24 fiveten taxable years or the period of time necessary for repayment of indebtedness incurred 

25 which was intended to be repaid from the increased levy, whichever expires later. The tax must 

26 be: 

27 1. Collected as other taxes are collected in the county. 

28 2. Turned over to the secretary-treasurer of the rural fire protection district, who shall 

29 have a surety bond in the amount of at least five thousand dollars. 

30 3. Placed to the credit of the rural fire protection district so authorizing the same by its 

• 31 secretary-treasurer in a state or national bank, except amounts to be carried over to a 
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future year for purchase of firefighting equipment, ambulances, or other emergency 

vehicles may be invested to earn the maximum return available. 

3 4. Paid out upon warrants drawn upon the fund by authority of the board of directors of 

4 the district, bearing the signature of the secretary-treasurer and the countersignature 

5 of the president of the rural fire protection district. 

6 The amount of tax levy may not exceed the amount of funds required to defray the expenses of 

7 the district for a period of one year as embraced in the annual estimate of expense, including 

8 the amount of principal and interest upon the indebtedness of the district for the ensuing year 

9 and including any amount determined by the board of directors to be necessary to be carried 

10 over to a future year for purchase of firefighting equipment, ambulances, or other emergency 

11 vehicles. 

12 SECTION 4. AMENDMENT. Section 57-01-05 of the North Dakota Century Code is 

13 amended and reenacted as follows: 

14 57-01-05. State supervisor of assessments. 

15 The state tax commissioner shall appoint a state supervisor of assessments who must be a 

16 person trained and experienced in property appraisals and familiar with assessment and 

17 equalization procedures and techniques. The state supervisor of assessments serves at the 

18 pleasure of the state tax commissioner and office space must be furnished to the state 

19 supervisor of assessments by the commissioner. 

20 The state supervisor of assessments shall perform the following duties under the direction 

21 of the tax commissioner: 

22 1. The state supervisor of assessments shall advise and give the various assessors..ffi 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

29 

the state the necessary instructions and directions as to their duties under the laws of 

this state, to the end that apromote uniform assessment of all real and personal 

property in this state will be attained. 

2. The state supervisor of assessments shall assist and instruct the various assessors in 

this state in the use of soil reeonnaissanoe surveys, land classification methods,-ffi...t.Ae 

preparation and proper use of land maps and record cards,-ffi...t.Ae proper classification 

of real and personal property, and-ffi...t.Ae determination of proper standards of value . 
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1 3. The state supervisor of assessments may require the attendance of groups of 

2 

3 

assessors at meetings called by the state supervisor of assessments for the purpose 

of giving them further assistance and instruction as to their duties. 

4 4. The state supervisor of assessments may make sales, market, and productivity 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

studies and other studies of property assessments in the various counties and cities of 

this state for the purpose ofto properly advisingadvise the various assessors and 

directors of tax equalization in the state and for the purpose of reoommendingto 

recommend to the tax commissioner changes to be made by the state board of 

equalization in the performance of tAeits equalization powers and duties prescribed for 

it by section 57 13 04. In any sales, market, and productivity study made according to 

section 57-01-06, the county directors of tax equalization or city assessors, as the 

ease may be, are responsible for compiling shall compile a record of sales of property 

made in the county or city, and in conjunction with the board of county commissioners 

shall analyze the sales for the purpose of advising the state supervisor of 

assessments as to the value of using the sales in any such study. The compilations 

must be forwarded to the state supervisor of assessments with the findings of the 

county director of tax equalization, city assessors, and the board of county 

commissioners. In any county or city or any part thereof where the number of sales of 

properties is insufficient for making a sales, market, and productivity study, the county 

director of tax equalization or city assessor, as the case may be, in cooperation with 

the state supervisor of assessments or that person's assistants shall make appraisals 

of properties in order to determine the market value. 

23 5. The state supervisor of assessments shall cooperate with North Dakota state 

24 

25 

26 

27 

university in the development of a soil mapping program, a land classification system, 

valuation studies, and other matters relating to the assessment of property and shall 

provide for the use of such information and procedure at the earliest possible date by 

the assessors of this state. 

28 6. The state supervisor of assessments has general supervision of assessors and county 

29 

30 

• 31 

directors of tax equalization pertaining to methods and procedures of assessment of 

all property and has authority to require all county directors of tax equalization to do 

any act necessary to obtain uniform methods and procedures of assessment. 
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1 7. Whenever an investigation by the state supervisor of assessments shows there is 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

probable cause to believe the holder of a certificate issued by the state supervisor of 

assessments under ehapter 11 10.1section 57-02-01 .1 has failed to comply with any 

of the provisions of this titlelaw pertaining to assessments, or any rules 

preseribedadopted by the tax commissioner, the state supervisor of assessments may 

petition the tax commissioner for a hearing to show cause why the certificate should 

be suspended or revoked. 

a. The state supervisor of assessments must provide the certificate holder at least 

ten days' notice of the time and place of the hearing. 

b. If cause to suspend or revoke the certificate is shown, the tax commissioner may 

suspend or revoke the certificate. 

c. The tax commissioner may restore a certificate after suspension or revocation. 

d. An individual whose certificate has been suspended or revoked in the manner 

provided in this section may appeal that determination to the district court as 

provided in section 28-32-42. 

8. If a certificate holder's certificate is suspended or revoked under this section, the 

governing body of the county in which the certificate holder performs duties shall 

ensure the continued administration of assessments within that county by a person 

authorized under section 11-10.1-05 and be responsible for any expenses associated 

with the fulfillment of this responsibility. Expenses incurred by a county to fulfill the 

duties of a township or city assessment official whose certificate has been suspended 

or revoked must be charged to the political subdivision in which the certificate holder is 

employed and must either be paid directly to the county by the political subdivision or 

deducted by the county treasurer from funds coming into the treasurer's control which 

are apportionable to the subdivision. 

26 9. The state supervisor of assessments shall perform such other duties relating to 

27 assessment and taxation of property as the tax commissioner directs. 

28 10. The tax commissioner may preseribeadopt rules under chapter 28-32 necessary for 

29 the detailed and effieient administration of this section. 

30 SECTION 5. Section 57-02-01 .1 of the North Dakota Century Code is created and enacted 

31 as follows: 
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1 57-02-01.1. Certification of assessors . 

• 

• 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

29 

30 

• 31 

The state supervisor of assessments shall certify assessors as provided in this section. 

1. To be certified as a class I assessor. an individual must: 

a. Have a high school diploma or its equivalent. 

b. Successfully complete one hundred eighty hours of assessment and appraisal 

instruction approved by the state supervisor of assessments. The number of 

hours of instruction determined necessary by the state supervisor of 

assessments for each of the following topics is required: 

(1) Tax administration . 

(2) Principles and theory of value. 

(3) Residential property appraisal. 

( 4) Commercial property appraisal. 

(5) Agricultural property valuation. 

2. To be certified as a class II assessor. an individual must: 

a. Have a high school diploma or its equivalent. 

b. Successfully complete eighty hours of assessment and appraisal instruction 

approved by the state supervisor of assessments. The number of hours of 

instruction determined necessary by the state supervisor of assessments for 

each of the following topics is required: 

(1) Tax administration. 

(2) Principles and theory of value. 

(3) Residential property appraisal. 

( 4) Commercial property appraisal. 

(5) Agricultural property valuation. 

3. The state supervisor of assessments may allow credit against required instruction in 

any topic under subdivision b of subsection 1 and subdivision b of subsection 2 upon 

receipt of documented training in this state or another state in the topic. 

4. An individual appointed as an assessor must hold the required assessor certificate at 

the time of appointment or obtain that certificate within two years after initial 

appointment or by July 31. 2017. whichever is later. An assessor who does not obtain 

the required certificate within two years after initial appointment or by July 31. 2017. 
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whichever is later, or who does not maintain that certificate in good standing is not 

e 1g1 e or reappo1n men . r ·b1 f . t 

5. An assessor certificate is valid for a term of two years from the first day of the calendar 

year for which it becomes effective. 

6. A class I assessor certificate may be renewed if the holder has completed twenty 

hours of approved classroom instruction or seminars during the term of the certificate. 

For purposes of this subsection, an assessor certificate holder is entitled to one and 

one-half hours of credit for each hour spent as an instructor of approved classroom 

instruction or seminars during the term of the certificate. 

7. A class II assessor certificate may be renewed if the holder has completed ten hours 

of approved classroom instruction or seminars during the term of the certificate. 

8. The state supervisor of assessments shall notify the holder of an assessor certificate 

of the time for application for renewal of the individual's certificate. The state 

supervisor of assessments shall notify the governing body of the taxing district 

employing an assessor whose certificate is not renewed or whose certificate is 

suspended or revoked . 

9. Any person who is denied a certificate under this section may appeal to the tax 

commissioner for a hearing under chapter 28-32. 

10. The tax commissioner may adopt rules under chapter 28-32 for the administration of 

this section . 

SECTION 6. AMENDMENT. Subsection 1 of section 57-02-08.1 of the North Dakota 

Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

1. a. Any person sixty-five years of age or older or permanently and totally disabled, in 

the year in which the tax was levied, with an income that does not exceed the 

limitations of subdivision c is entitled to receive a reduction in the assessment on 

the taxable valuation on the person's homestead. An exemption under this 

subsection applies regardless of whether the person is the head of a family. 

b. The exemption under this subsection continues to apply if the person does not 

reside in the homestead and the person's absence is due to confinement in a 

nursing home, hospital, or other care facility, for as long as the portion of the 

homestead previously occupied by the person is not rented to another person. 
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1 c . The exemption must be determined according to the following schedule: 

• 2 ( 1) If the person's income is not in excess of twenty-two thousand dollars, a 

3 reduction of one hundred percent of the taxable valuation of the person's 

4 homestead up to a maximum reduction of fetffiive thousand f.ivesix hundred 

5 twenty-five dollars of taxable valuation. 

6 (2) If the person's income is in excess of twenty-two thousand dollars and not in 

7 excess of twenty-six thousand dollars, a reduction of eighty percent of the 

8 taxable valuation of the person's homestead up to a maximum reduction of 

9 tAreefour thousand ~five hundred dollars of taxable valuation. 

10 (3) If the person's income is in excess of twenty-six thousand dollars and not in 

11 excess of thirty thousand dollars, a reduction of sixty percent of the taxable 

12 valuation of the person's homestead up to a maximum reduction of twethree 

13 thousand seveRthree hundred seventy-five dollars of taxable valuation. 

14 (4) If the person's income is in excess of thirty thousand dollars and not in 

15 excess of thirty-four thousand dollars, a reduction of forty percent of the 

• 16 taxable valuation of the person's homestead up to a maximum reduction of 

17 ooetwo thousand ei§hltwo hundred filly_ dollars of taxable valuation. 

18 (5) If the person's income is in excess of thirty-four thousand dollars and not in 

19 excess of thirty-eight thousand dollars, a reduction of twenty percent of the 

20 taxable valuation of the person's homestead up to a maximum reduction of 

21 Rffieone thousand one hundred twenty-five dollars of taxable valuation. 

22 (6) If the person's income is in excess of thirty-eight thousand dollars and not in 

23 excess of forty-two thousand dollars, a reduction of ten percent of the 

24 taxable valuation of the person's homestead up to a maximum reduction of 

25 fetffiive hundred fiftysixty-three dollars of taxable valuation. 

26 d. Persons residing together, as spouses or when one or more is a dependent of 

27 another, are entitled to only one exemption between or among them under this 

28 subsection. Persons residing together, who are not spouses or dependents, who 

29 are coowners of the property are each entitled to a percentage of a full exemption 

I 

30 under this subsection equal to their ownership interests in the property. • 
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e. This subsection does not reduce the liability of any person for special 

assessments levied upon any property. 

f. Any person claiming the exemption under this subsection shall sign a verified 

statement of facts establishing the person's eligibility. 

g. A person is ineligible for the exemption under this subsection if the value of the 

assets of the person and any dependent residing with the person exceeds five 

hundred thousand dollars, including the value of any assets divested within the 

last three years. 

h. The assessor shall attach the statement filed under subdivision f to the 

assessment sheet and shall show the reduction on the assessment sheet. 

i. An exemption under this subsection terminates at the end of the taxable year of 

12 the death of the applicant. 

13 SECTION 7. AMENDMENT. Section 57-02-33 of the North Dakota Century Code is 

14 amended and reenacted as follows: 

15 57-02-33. Assessor distriotsservices for unorganized territory. 

16 All counties or parts of counties in this state not organized into civil townshipsAny area not 

17 within an organized township or city must be divided into assessor districts, \Vhich must be 

18 designated by the board of county eommissionersassessed by a certified assessor under the 

19 supervision and direction of the county director of tax equalization . The board of county 

20 commissioners shall appoint the district assessors to a four year term of office, the first term 

21 commencing on January 1, 1974. In ease of vacancy in the office of district assessor in any of 

22 sueh districts, sueh vaeaneies must be filled by the board of county commissioners for the 

23 balance of the term. In making the appointment of a distriot assessor, theThe county director of 

24 tax equalization for such county is eligible for appointment to a district assessor positionmay 

25 serve as an assessor of property under this section . Every individual performing assessor ef 

26 territory not organized into eivil townships shall receive asservices under this section is entitled 

27 to compensation for services a sumand mileage and travel expenses determined by the board 

28 of county commissioners for the time actually and necessarily employed in making and 

29 completing the assessment of the distriotproperty. The compensation and expenses must be 

30 paid from the treasury of the county in which such districtthe assessed property is located only 

• 

• 

31 upon submission of an itemized statement setting forth the actual time spent in the work of the • 
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1 assessor and mileage traveled, approved by the board of county commissioners. In addition, 

• 2 the district assessor must be paid such mileage as is required to perform the duties of the office. 

• 

• 

3 The board of county oommissioners has the authority to appoint a deputy assessor if needed, to 

4 be compensated in the same manner as the district assessor. 

5 SECTION 8. AMENDMENT. Section 57-06-17.3 of the North Dakota Century Code is 

6 amended and reenacted as follows: 

7 57-06-17.3. New transmission line property tax exemption. 

8 A transmission line of two hundred thirty kilovolts or larger, and its associated transmission 

9 substations, which is not taxable under chapter 57-33.2 and is initially placed in service on or 

10 after October 1, 2002, is subject to a tax at the rate of three hundred dollars per mile (1.61 

11 kilometers] or fraction of a mile. A transmission line subject to taxation under this section is 

12 exempt from property taxes for the first taxable year after the line is initially placed in service, 

13 and the taxable valuation as other.'lise determined by law on the transmission line and its 

14 associated transmission substationstaxes under this section must be reduced by: 

15 1. Seventy-five percent for the second taxable year of operation of the transmission line. 

16 

17 

2. Fifty percent for the third taxable year of operation of the transmission line . 

3. Twenty-five percent for the fourth taxable year of operation of the transmission line. 

18 After the fourth taxable year of operation of the transmission line, the transmission line and 

19 its associated transmission substations are exempt from property taxes and are subject to a tax 

20 at the rate of three hundred dollars per mile [1 .61 kilometers] or fraction thereof of the line 

21 located in this state. The per mile tax imposed by this section applies to the transmission line 

22 and its associated transmission substations and is subject to allocation among counties in the 

23 proportion that the miles of that transmission line in the county bears to the miles of that 

24 transmission line in the state. 

25 For purposes of this section , "initially placed in service" includes both new construction and 

26 substantial expansion of the carrying capacity of a preexisting line, and "substantial expansion" 

27 means an increase in carrying capacity of fifty percent or more. 

28 SECTION 9. AMENDMENT. Section 57-20-07.2 of the North Dakota Century Code is 

29 amended and reenacted as follows: 
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1 57-20-07 .2. (Effeotive for the first two taxable years beginning after Deoember 31, 

2 2042} State-paid property tax relief credit. 

3 1. The owner of taxable property is entitled to a credit against property taxes levied 

4 

5 

6 

against the total amount of property or mobile home taxes in dollars levied against the 

taxable value of the property. The credit is equal to twelve percent of property or 

mobile home taxes levied in dollars against that property. 

7 2. The owner, operator, or lessee of railroad property assessed by the state board of 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

equalization under chapter 57-05 or public utility operative property assessed by the 

state board of equalization under chapter 57-06 is entitled to a credit against property 

taxes levied within each county against that property in the amount provided in 

subsection 1 against property taxes levied in dollars against that property in that 

county. 

13 3. The owner. operator, or lessee of transmission lines assessed by the state board of 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

equalization under section 57-06-17.3 is entitled to a credit against taxes per mile in 

the amount provided in subsection 1. The tax commissioner shall determine the total 

amount of credits under this subsection and certify the amount to the state treasurer 

for transfer from the general fund to the electric generation. transmission . and 

distribution tax fund . The credit for each transmission company must be allocated and 

distributed to counties in the same manner as the tax collected from that company is 

allocated . 

21 4. The owner. operator. or lessee of electric transmission or distribution property 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

assessed by the state board of equalization under section 57-33 .2-02 or 57-33.2-03 is 

entitled to a credit against the transmission or distribution tax in the amount provided 

in subsection 1. The tax commissioner shall determine the total amount of credits 

under this subsection and certify the amount to the state treasurer for transfer from the 

general fund to the electric generation, transmission . and distribution tax fund. The 

credit for each transmission or distribution company must be allocated and distributed 

to counties in the same manner as the tax collected from that company is allocated. 

29 5. The owner, operator, or lessee of operative property of an air carrier transportation 

30 

31 

company assessed and taxed under chapter 57-32 is entitled to a credit in the amount 

provided in subsection 1 against property taxes in dollars levied against that property. 
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The tax commissioner shall determine the total amount of credits under this 

subsection and certify the amount to the state treasurer for transfer from the general 

fund to the air transportation fund . The credit for each air transportation company must 

be allocated to each city or municipal airport authority where that company makes 

regularly scheduled landings, in the same manner as the tax collected from that 

company is allocated. 

7 4.-~ The tax commissioner shall estimate the amount necessary to provide each county 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

advance payment of seventy-five percent of the amount the county and the taxing 

districts in the county will ultimately receive for a taxable year under this section and 

certify the estimated amounts to the state treasurer by March fifteenth for transfer by 

April first to the county treasurer and distribution to the county and taxing districts in 

the county as provided in subsection al. 

13 fr.L The tax commissioner shall determine the total amount of credits under this section for 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

each county from the abstract of the tax list filed by the county auditor under section 

57-20-04, as audited and corrected by the tax commissioner. The tax commissioner 

shall certify to the state treasurer for payment, by June first following receipt of the 

abstract of the tax list, the amount determined for each county under this subsection. 

No penalty or interest applies to any state payment under this section , regardless of 

when the payment is made. The tax commissioner shall reduce the June certification 

of payments to reflect the April estimated payments previously made to counties under 

subsection 4§_. 

22 &.-8. Upon receipt of the payment from the state treasurer under subsections 4§_ and aI. the 

23 

24 

25 

county treasurer shall apportion and distribute it to the county and the taxing districts 

in the county on the basis on which the general real estate tax for the preceding year 

is apportioned and distributed . 

26 +.:-~ After payments to counties under subsection aI have been made, the tax 

27 

28 

29 

30 

• 31 

commissioner shall certify to the state treasurer as necessary any supplemental 

amounts payable to counties or the air transportation fund or any amounts that must 

be returned by counties or returned from the air transportation fund for deposit in the 

state general fund to correct any errors in payments or reflect any abatement or 

compromise of taxes, court-ordered tax reduction or increase, or levy of taxes against 
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omitted property. The county auditor shall provide any supplemental information 

requested by the tax commissioner after submission of the abstract of the tax list. The 

county treasurer shall apply to the tax commissioner for any supplemental payments 

to which the county treasurer believes the county is entitled . 

5 &.1.Q,_ Notwithstanding any other provision of law, for any property other than mobile homes, 

6 the property tax credit under this section does not apply to any property subject to 

7 payments or taxes that are stated by law to be in lieu of personal or real property 

8 taxes. 

9 SECTION 10. AMENDMENT. Section 57-33.2-02 of the North Dakota Century Code is 

10 amended and reenacted as follows: 

11 57-33.2-02. Transmission line mile tax - Exemption. 

12 Transmission lines are subject to annual taxes per mi le [1 .61 kilometers] or fraction of a 

13 mile based on their nominal operating voltages on January first of each year, as follows: 

14 1. For transmission lines that operate at a nominal operating voltage of less than fifty 

15 

16 

17 

kilovolts, a tax of fifty dollars. 

2. For transmission lines that operate at a nominal operating voltage of fifty kilovolts or 

more, but less than one hundred kilovolts , a tax of one hundred dollars. 

18 3. For transmission lines that operate at a nominal operating voltage of one hundred 

19 kilovolts or more, but less than two hundred kilovolts, a tax of two hundred dollars. 

20 4. For transmission lines that operate at a nominal operating voltage of two hundred 

21 kilovolts or more, but less than three hundred kilovolts, a tax of four hundred dollars. 

22 5. For transmission lines that operate at a nominal operating voltage of three hundred 

23 kilovolts or more, a tax of six hundred dollars. 

24 6. A transmission line initially placed in service after January 1, 2009, and before 

25 

26 

27 

28 

29 

30 

December 31. 2013. is exempt from transmission line taxes under this section for the 

first taxable year after the line is initially placed in service, and transmission line taxes 

under this section must be reduced by: 

a. Seventy-five percent for the second taxable year of operation of the transmission 

line. 

b. Fifty percent for the third taxable year of operation of the transmission line . 
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c. Twenty-five percent for the fourth taxable year of operation of the transmission 

line. 

Q_,_ After the fourth taxable year of operation, such transmission lines are subject to 

the standard transmission line taxes under this section . 

5 7. A transmission line of two hundred thirty kilovolts or larger initially placed in service 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

after January 1, 2009, is subject to a tax at the rate of three hundred dollars per mile 

[1.61 kilometers] or fraction of a mile. A transmission line subject to tax under this 

subsection is exempt for the first taxable year after the line is initially placed in service. 

and transmission line taxes under this subsection must be reduced by: 

a. Seventy-five percent for the second taxable year of operation of the transmission 

line. 

Q_,_ Fifty percent for the third taxable year of operation of the transmission line. 

c. Twenty-five percent for the fourth taxable year of operation of the transmission 

line. 

Q_,_ After the fourth taxable year of taxable operation. such transmission lines are 

subject to the standard transmission line taxes under this subsection . 

§.,, For purposes of this section. "initially placed in service" includes both new construction 

18 and substantial expansion of the carrying capacity of a preexisting line. and 

19 "substantial expansion" means an increase in carrying capacity of fifty percent or 

20 more. 

21 SECTION 11. TRANSITION. The state supervisor of assessments shall recertify assessors 

22 at the end of the term of any certification that expires after July 31 , 2017, upon application and 

23 submission by the certificate holder of evidence of completion of required educational sessions 

24 under North Dakota Administrative Code chapter 81-02.1-02 or under section 57-02-01 .1 or 

25 rules adopted to administer that section, subject to the following additional requirements: 

26 1. The holder of a township assessor or class II city assessor certification may be 

27 

28 

29 

30 

recertified as a certified class II assessor upon completion of the instruction required 

for class II assessor certification, with credit allowed by the state supervisor of 

assessments for any instruction previously received by the applicant for certification as 

a township assessor . 
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1 2. The holder of a class I city assessor or county director of tax equalization certification 

2 may be recertified as a certified class I assessor upon submission of evidence of 

3 completion of required education sessions during the term of the class I city assessor 

4 or county director of tax equalization certification. 

5 SECTION 12. EFFECTIVE DATE. This Act is effective for taxable years beginning after 

6 December 31 , 2014, except section 6, which is effective for taxable years beginning after 

7 December31 , 2015. 
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